HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ
AGENDA OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
November 12, 2025 at 11:00 a.m.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ
2160 41" Avenue, Capitola, CA 95010

1. Roll Call
HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:

Chairperson Providence Martinez Alaniz 4 year term expires, February 10, 2027
Vice Chairperson Annette Melendrez 4 year term expires, September 29, 2027
Commissioner Carol Berg 4 year term expires, May 21, 2029
Commissioner Ligaya Eligio 2 year term expires, October 18, 2026
Commissioner Silvia Morales 4 year term September 1, 2027
Commissioner Andy Schiffrin 4 year term expires, March 17, 2027
Commissioner Richard Schmale 2 year term expires, May 12, 2027

2. Consideration of Late Additions and Changes to the Agenda

3. Consent Agenda

A. Minutes of the Regular Meeting held September 24, 2025

Motion to Approve

B. Housing Authority Annual Agency Goals — Quarter 1 Report

Receive Report

C. Housing Authority Project Based Voucher Program — FY 2026 Quarter 1 Report

Receive Report

4. Oral Communications (All oral communications must be directed to an item not listed on this agenda
and must be within the jurisdiction of the Board. Presentations must not exceed three minutes in length. The
Board will not take action or respond immediately to any Oral Communication presented, but may choose to
follow up at a later time or schedule item for a subsequent agenda. The Board may limit the total amount of
time allowed for oral communication). Anyone addressing the Board of Commissioners is asked to complete
a card and leave it with the Board secretary so that their names may be accurately recorded in the Minutes.

5. Unfinished Business
6. New Business

A. MTW 2025 Amended Annual Submission Receive Report

Discuss Draft MTW 2025 Amended Annual Submission

B. Financing for the Development of 136 River Street

Motion to Adopt Resolution 2025-09 to authorize the Executive Director to



provide a $2,000,000 loan, which may be forgivable, to New Horizons to support the
development of 136 River Street and enter into all documents necessary to effectuate

the loan.
7. Written Correspondence
8. Director’s Report
0. Reports from Board Members

(Board members may report on meetings attended, if any, or other items of interest.)

10.  Closed Session
11.  Report on Closed Session

12. Adjournment

The Housing Authority complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act. If you are a person with disabilities and
you require special assistance in order to participate, please contact the Board secretary at 831-454-9455, ext. 201 at
least 72 hours in advance of the meeting in order to make arrangements. Persons with disabilities may request a copy
of the agenda in an alternative format.

Spanish language translation is available on an as needed basis. Please make arrangements 72 hours in advance by
contacting the Housing Authority at 831-454-9455, ext. 280.

Agendas can be obtained from the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz Administration Department.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE REGULAR
MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 24 , 2025, AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF
SANTA CRUZ, 2160 4157 AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA 95010

AGENDA ITEM NO.1  Roll Call

Vice-Chairperson Melendrez called the meeting to order 11:02 a.m. Members present Vice-Chairperson
Melendrez, Commissioners Berg, Eligio, Morales, Schiffrin and Schmale (Chairperson Martinez Alaniz
entered the meeting at 11:16 a.m.)

Members Absent
None.

Staff Present
Jennifer Panetta, Tom Graham, Aaron Pomeroy, Marshall Crockett and Courtney Byrd of the Housing
Authority

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2 Consideration of Late Additions or Changes to the Agenda

Secretary Panetta informed the Board that staff propose an amendment to the draft revision language of
Section 5.8.1.2 in Agenda Item 3E, Procurement Policy Revision, in response to Commissioner Schiffrin’s
request and with the approval of legal counsel. The first sentence of the section will now read:

An emergency exists that seriously threatens the public health, welfare, or safety, or endangers property,
or would otherwise cause serious injury to the Agency and/or result in displacement of households, as
may arise by reason of a flood, earthquake, epidemic, riot, equipment failure, loss of affordable units, or
similar event.

AGENDA ITEM NO.3 Consent Agenda

Vice-Chairperson Melendrez asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda unless any Board of
Commissioners or members of the public would like to pull an item from the agenda or have
comments/questions on an item.

Commissioner Schiffrin moved for the approval of the Consent Agenda as amended; Commissioner Berg
seconded the motion and it was passed by the following vote:

AYES: Commissioners Berg, Eligio, Melendrez, Morales, Schiffrin and Schmale
NOES: None

ABSENT: Commissioner Martinez Alaniz

ABSTAIN: None

Agenda Item 3A. Approved Minutes of the Annual Meeting of August 27, 2025



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE REGULAR
MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 24 , 2025, AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF
SANTA CRUZ, 2160 4157 AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA 95010

Agenda Item 3B. Approved Cancellation of the Regular Meeting of Wednesday October 22, 2025 at 11:00
a.m. and the Scheduling of Special Meetings on Wednesday, November 12, 2025 at
11:00 a.m. and Wednesday December 10, 2025 at 11:00 a.m.

Agenda Item 3C. Authorized Year-End Interfund Loans from 41% Ave Office Fund

Agenda Item 3D. Received Report Write-Offs and Collections for Landlord Overpayment Recovery

Agenda Item 3E. Approved Draft Revision to Procurement Policy

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 Oral Communications
None.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5A  Unfinished Business
None.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6A Fiscal Year-End Financials

Secretary Panetta introduced newly appointed Finance Director, Marshall Crockett to the Board of
Commissioners. Secretary Panetta informed the Board that Finance Director Crockett has been working
closely with outgoing Finance Director Aaron Pomeroy for a few months as part of the transition process.
She further noted that Finance Director Pomeroy has agreed to continue assisting Finance Director
Crockett during this transition period. Incoming Finance Director Crockett introduced himself to the
Board, and the Board of Commissioners extended a warm welcome to him.

Finance Director Crockett presented a report to the Board of Commissioners on the Fiscal Year-End
Financials, including a budget comparison of all funds and an agency-wide summary. Finance Director
Crockett noted that this item is typically included on the Consent Agenda; however, due to recent HUD
and funding challenges, staff determined it would be beneficial for the Board to review and discuss the
information in the regular agenda. A discussion followed.

Chairperson Martinez Alaniz entered the meeting and took over as Chairperson.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6B Emergency Housing Voucher and Housing Choice Voucher Funding

Secretary Panetta informed the Board that the Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV) Program was
established under the American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act of 2021 to assist individuals and families who are
homeless, at risk of homelessness, fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, stalking, or human trafficking, or who are recently homeless and for whom rental assistance can
prevent homelessness or housing instability. Secretary Panetta noted that program costs have exceeded
HUD’s initial projections, and the funding appropriated under the ARP Act is being rapidly depleted.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE REGULAR
MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 24 , 2025, AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF
SANTA CRUZ, 2160 4157 AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA 95010

HUD projects that EHV funding will be exhausted by December 2026. Staff had previously developed a
plan to transition EHV households into the regular HCV program. However, new information about EHV
renewal funding, as well as information about likely cuts to the HCV program has necessitated a change
to the plan. Staff have contacted EHV households to inform them about the funding situation and the
termination of the EHV program. Staff are also pursuing multiple strategies to connect EHV households
to PBV units, as well as other affordable housing programs. Beyond these strategies, the extent to which
the Authority can transition EHV households into the HCV program will depend on funding. Therefore,
staff are working to develop cost saving strategies that will 1) reduce the likelihood of a funding shortfall
and also 2) increase the likelihood of transferring EHV households into the HCV program. Secretary
Panetta informed the Board that this item is being presented to the Board of Commissioners to request
authorization to draft and publish a Moving to Work (MTW) supplement amendment incorporating cost-
saving waivers. Those cost saving waivers will be presented to the Board at the November meeting. A
discussion followed.

Commissioner Schiffrin moved to Authorize Staff to Draft MTW Supplement Amendment with Cost
Saving Waivers, and Initiate Public Comment Period; Commissioner Berg seconded the motion and it was
passed by the following vote:

AYES: Commissioners Berg, Eligio, Martinez Alaniz, Melendrez, Morales, Schiffrin and
Schmale
NOES: None

ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 Written Correspondence
None.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 Report of Executive Director

Executive Director Panetta gave the Board a Federal Appropriations update.

Executive Director Panetta informed the Board that staff worked with filmmaker Michael Daniel on a
short film to document the making of the mural at Natural Bridges Apartments. Executive Director Panetta
informed the Board that the short film is now complete and has been shared on Housing Authority social
media. Staff has emailed Commissioners with a link to the video on the Housing Authority website, and
can also be viewed at the following web address: https://youtu.be/4YjPSFVabh4.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 Reports from Board Members
None.



https://youtu.be/4YjPSFVabh4

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE REGULAR
MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 24 , 2025, AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF
SANTA CRUZ, 2160 4157 AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA 95010

Director of Development Suzi Merriam entered the meeting at 12:11 p.m. Finance Directors Aaron
Pomeroy and Marshall Crockett and Executive Secretary Courtney Byrd exited the meeting.

The Board of Commissioners meeting entered Closed Session at 12:11 p.m. Chairperson Martinez Alaniz
called the meeting back to order at 12:54p.m.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10A Closed Session-Real Property Negotiations — 3501, 3507, 3509 & 3513
Portola Drive, Santa Cruz County APN 032-041-68

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11  Report on Closed Session

The Board of Commissioners directed staff to terminate escrow for 3501, 3507, 3509 & 3513 Portola
Drive.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12  Adjournment

The Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 12:55 p.m.

I hereby certify that these minutes were approved by the Housing Authority of the County of
Santa Cruz, on the Twelfth Day of November 2025.

Chairperson of the Authority
ATTEST:

Secretary of the Authority



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

MEETING DATE: November 12, 2025 ITEM NUMBER: 3B

FROM:  Executive Director

SUBJECT: Housing Authority Annual Agency Goals — Quarter 1 Report

RECOMMENDATION: Receive Report

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

Each year, the Housing Authority Board of Commissioners establishes Annual Agency Goals for
the upcoming fiscal year. Below are Agency Goals established by the Board for the 2025 - 2026
fiscal year. Housing Authority staff will provide the Board with an update on progress towards
these goals on a quarterly basis, with a final report provided at the August 2026 meeting. This
report demonstrates the progress on these goals during the first quarter.

Approved Housing Authority Agency Goals for 2025 - 2026 Fiscal Year

1. Housing Choice Voucher Program:
a. Balance utilization rate to allow future absorption of Emergency Housing
Voucher (EHV) households and Project Based Voucher (PBV) units that become
available for occupancy.

The Housing Authority is actively working to attrition down the Housing Choice
Voucher (HCV) Program in order to reduce the likelihood of experiencing a financial
shortfall, as well as to make room in the HCV Program for PBVs that will be ready for
occupancy this fiscal year, and to absorb as many EHVs as possible before funding for
that program ends in December 2026. To attrition the program, the Housing Authority
has stopped issuing new vouchers to families on the HCV Waiting List, has stopped
accepting HCV referrals for special purpose programs, and has temporarily suspended
issuing HCV transfer vouchers to PBV participants. In the first quarter of this fiscal
year, the overall program utilization percentage decreased from 99.04% to 98.34%.
This utilization percentage decrease is the result of an increase to our total number of
vouchers effective July 1, 2025, when we were awarded 52 additional Family
Unification Program (FUP) vouchers. The actual number of households in the program
has not yet decreased because of program attrition (see goal 1c below).



b. Reduce the size of the Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV) program by at least
130 households, through attrition and by transferring those households to other
rental assistance programs with more stable funding.

At the time that the above goal was established, Agency staff anticipated sufficient
funding for the HCV program to allow for the absorption of 130 households. New
information from HUD regarding EHV renewal funding and anticipated HCV funding
indicates that the HCV program is very unlikely to have sufficient funding to absorb
EHV families. Staff are waiting until a budget is approved by Congress to determine
how many (if any) EHVs can be absorbed into the HCV Program.

In September, staff contacted all EHV households to provide information on the status
of EHV funding including informing households that rental assistance through the
EHV program is expected to end in December 2026. Once families were contacted and
provided with this information about the EHV funding status, staff also began outreach
to EHV families for all vacancies in Housing Authority owned properties, as well as
for all PBV vacancies as they occur, and initiated additional tracking and reporting to
closely monitor the status of EHV participation. The table below shows that the
baseline number of participants as of October 1, 2025 was 272 households. The table
details information about how many households are housed, how many are searching,
and how many have exited the program (by type of program exit). The information
presented below is effective 10/31/25. It will be updated on a quarterly basis in
subsequent reports.

EHV Participation Status 10/31/25 | 12/31/25 | 3/30/26 | 6/30/26
Baseline EHV Participants as of 10/1/25 272
Currently Housed in EHV Program
In Jurisdiction 256
Billable Port — Out of Jurisdiction 3
Total Housed in EHV Program 259
Out of Unit Searching with EHV
In Jurisdiction 6
Billable Port — Out of Jurisdiction 2
Total Searching in EHV Program 8
Program Exits
Expired Voucher 3
Deceased 1
Program Violation 1
Transfer to PBV 0
Total Program Exits 5
Current EHV Program Participants 267




¢. Reduce the size of the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program group to
approximately 5,754 households by the end of the FY.

Baseline Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
HCV Households 5,856 5,866
Cumulative change n/a +10

The Housing Authority is actively working to attrition down the Housing Choice
Voucher (HCV) Program, as noted in goal 1a above. Although the Housing Authority
has stopped issuing new vouchers to families on the HCV Waiting List, has stopped
accepting HCV referrals for special purpose programs, and has temporarily suspended
issuing HCV transfer vouchers to PBV participants, the total number of households
assisted has increased slightly in the first quarter of this fiscal year, primarily because
families that were issued vouchers before we took the actions noted above, had been
given 6 months to search for housing, and are still being added to the program when
they secure rental units. In the coming months, as these last vouchers are either added
to the program or expire, the number of families leaving the program through attrition
will exceed the number of families being added to the program, and the program size
will reduce.

2. Affordable Housing Supply:
a. Optimize financial resources and funding sources, including MTW and New
Horizons funds, to acquire property and develop new affordable housing projects.

The Housing Authority completed two significant acquisitions which included 2021
Chanticleer Avene and 2030 17" Avenue. MTW funds were used for the purchase of
2021 Chanticleer. New Horizons funds were used for the purchase of 2030 17" Avenue
to ensure the acquisition could be completed in a timely manner. MTW funding was
allocated as gap financing for Natural Bridges to close out remaining development
costs for this project. Staff have also engaged in negotiation with For the Future to
allocate MTW funds in the form of a development loan to act as co-General Partner on
the 136 River St affordable housing project. The loan is expected to be issued to the
partnership prior to end of calendar year 2025. The allocation of MTW funds for
Chanticleer, Natural Bridges, and River St will collectively support the Housing
Authority’s baseline calculation for subsequent year funding from HUD. Staff continue
to engage in other strategies to allocate MTW funds which include assessing new
property which includes existing multi-family sites and vacant parcels, co-development
partnership opportunities, and other investment opportunities to optimize our
resources.



b. Establish a total of two partnerships on LIHTC projects, to acquire the LIHTC
experience points that are required in order to apply for tax credits for our own
future projects.

Staff have identified two development opportunities to support the agency’s goal to
gain LIHTC experience. 136 River St is a 50-unit new construction affordable housing
project lead by For the Future (FTF). The project has received an award of 4% tax
credit through CTCAC. New Horizons is negotiating with FTF to enter the project as
a co-General Partner with a 25% interest. New Horizons has selected MidPen Housing
as a development partner for the 2021 Chanticleer project. Staff are currently engaged
with MidPen Housing to outline the terms and conditions of the joint development
agreement and will present the partnership recommendation to the Board prior to
execution. These partnerships will help to provide New Horizons with the necessary
LIHTC experience to apply for future tax credits for our own projects.

c. Execute purchase and sale agreement for 2021 Chanticleer to acquire property,
enter a co-development agreement with a development partner in association with
submitting a LIHTC application, and submit the entitlement application to the
county.

New Horizons acquired 2021 Chanticleer on August 19, 2025, and 2030 17th Avenue
on October 10, 2025. Staff have selected MidPen Housing as co-development partner
to provide the necessary LIHTC experience to secure a tax credit award for the project.
Staff are working with the architect 10 Over Studio on the schematic building design
and expect to present the initial plans to the Board for feedback in December. Staff plan
to submit the application to secure entitlements by March 2026.

d. Complete environmental review for 3501 Portola, and if cleared execute purchase
and sale agreement to acquire property, enter a co-development agreement with
a development partner in association with submitting a LIHTC application, and
enter a contract with an architecture firm to prepare preliminary schematic plans
for a project description.

The environmental review for 3501 Portola Drive has been completed. At its meeting
on September 24, 2025, the Board of Commissioners directed staff to terminate escrow
for the property, citing the substantial estimated cost of environmental remediation
required to make the site suitable for housing development.



e. Support efforts to increase funding for affordable housing development in Santa
Cruz County.

The Housing Authority Board of Commissioners voted to endorse the Santa Cruz
Workforce Housing Affordability Act of 2025 (Measure C). The ballot measure would
implement a parcel tax and property transfer tax to help fund affordable housing
projects, resulting in a significant and ongoing source of local funds for affordable
housing. The ballot measure aligns with the Housing Authority’s mission as well as our
specific goals related to supporting the development of new affordable housing and
supporting efforts to increase funding for affordable housing development in Santa

Cruz County.

3. Expand Programs and Services:

a. Complete year two implementation of two-year plan for expansion of New

Horizons Programs and Services.

Youth Services

Fully Implemented Programs and Services

Service

Q1 Status

Scholarship Program:

Provides scholarships of at least $1,000 to college-
bound high school seniors, continuing college
students, and returning students enrolled full or part
time at a university, community college, or
technical school.

Status: Annual scholarship cycle will
open for application in April 2026.

Summer Enrichment Activities: Summer
enrichment program for school-aged children (ages
5-17) in households receiving Housing Authority
assistance. The program was established through a
three-way Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
with County Park Friends and the Santa Cruz
County Parks Department. Assisted households
receive a grant of up to $500 towards recreational
programs offered through the County of Santa Cruz
Parks and Recreation.

Status: Staff have initiated discussions
with County Park Friends in preparation
for the 2026 program cycle. The annual
program is scheduled to launch in
January, with grant applications opening
in February 2026.

Tutoring Program: New Horizons will offer free,
high-quality tutoring aimed at supporting academic
achievement and student success. Tutoring services
will be offered across core subject areas, including
reading, math, writing, science, and social studies.
Services will be delivered primarily online, with in-

Status: The Tutoring Program launched
in August 2025. To date, two student
referrals were received for tutoring
services during Q1. Staff continue
outreach efforts to promote the program
and encourage additional enrollment.




person support available as needed, and will be
offered in both English and Spanish. The program
was launched in Fall 2025 as a pilot focused on K—
12 students living in Housing Authority properties.

Backpacks and School Supplies: This initiative
provides backpacks and essential school supplies to
K—12 students in Housing Authority properties.

Status: The program is scheduled to
launch in June, ahead of the 202627
school year. Staff are exploring
opportunities to expand eligibility to
include all Housing Authority program
participants.

General Program Population and Family Services

Fully Implemented Programs and Services

Service

Conflict Resolution Mediation Services:
Program offering free mediation services to
households participating in Housing Authority
programs, and to the landlords renting to Housing
Authority participants, offered through contract
with the Conflict Resolution Center of Santa Cruz
County.

Status & Recommendations

Status: During Q1, the program received
six referrals for mediation services, all
related to landlord—tenant disputes. Of
these cases, four were successfully
resolved through mediation, and two
remain in progress.

Security Deposit Gap Assistance: Security deposit
assistance program for residents of Housing
Authority properties. Assistance may also be made
available to other program participants on a case-
by-case basis. Program designed to supplement
similar programs offered by local jurisdictions,
which at times face funding shortfalls or
interruptions.

Status: During QIl, New Horizons
provided a total of $6,300 in security
deposit assistance, helping 3 households
secure stable housing.

Loss Mitigation Funds: Owner Assurance
Program that offers financial assistance of up to
$5,000 to landlords for tenant-caused damages
exceeding the security deposit. The Housing
Authority has active contracts with the County of
Santa Cruz and the cities of Capitola, Santa Cruz,
Scotts Valley and Watsonville to partner on the
funding for this program, with the first $2,500 of
funding for each claim coming from the

Status: During QI, the program
processed six claims, resulting in
$14,113.42 in payments from New

Horizons. These were supplemented by
an additional $15,000 in contributions
from participating jurisdictions,
providing a combined total of $29,113.42
in landlord assistance.




jurisdictions, and the remainder being funded
through New Horizons.

Santa Cruz METRO Eco Passes: Program offering
free METRO EcoPasses to residents living in
Housing Authority properties.

Status: During QI, a total of 41 active
passes are distributed to residents
reflecting continued program growth.

Internet Access Assistance: Cruzio partnership
which provides free broadband internet access to
residents living in Housing Authority—owned and
controlled properties. As of FY 24/25, the program
is active at seven out of our existing 20 sites, with
124 out of 160 eligible units currently connected.

Connected Properties
Property Units | Subscribed Udlization
Rate

30th 19 12 63%
Portola Dr. 24 12 50%
Crestview 16 8 50%
Arista Ct. 16 10 81%
Arista Ln. 15 14 93%
Casa Pajaro 34 30 88%
Tierra Alta 36 36 100%
Total 160 122 76%

Workforce Development: Service which will
provide workshops and one-on-one career
counseling to help participants explore careers,
build job readiness skills, and secure employment.

Status: During QI, the Housing
Authority and Cruzio began
implementation of the California

Advanced Services Fund (CASF) Public
Housing Account grant award totaling
$653,800. Planning is underway to
expand free internet access to an
additional seven sites, with site work
expected to begin in Q2.

Planned for Implementation in 2025/2026

Status: The program will launch in Q2,
with services provided under contract by
Advanced Employment Group and
available to all program participants.
Virtual informational sessions were held
in English and Spanish on October 17.

Financial Workshops & Coaching:
Service designed to equip participants with
essential financial knowledge and tools. A recent

Status: Staff are engaging with financial
institutions  to partnership
opportunities develop a

explore
and




Request for Proposals (RFP) during FY 2024/25 for
financial workshops and coaching did not result in
a contract award. However, the Housing Authority
remains committed to offering financial education
opportunities. Staff are currently exploring a
partnership with a financial institution that has a
proven track record in delivering financial literacy
workshops and asset-building strategies.

comprehensive  financial  education
program. Program  design  and
implementation planning are expected to
take place during Q2.

Stakeholder Survey: Biennial survey to evaluate
satisfaction with current offerings, assess
utilization, and identify any unmet service needs.

Status: Staff plan to release an RFP for
Survey Research services during Q2 with
results anticipated in late Q3 to Q4.

Senior Services

Fully Implemented Programs and Services

Service

Project: Silver Bells: Project Silver Bells is a
seasonal initiative that provides holiday care
packages and greeting cards to senior residents
living in Housing Authority properties. The
packages are thoughtfully assembled and
personally delivered by Housing Authority staff,
fostering community connection and holiday cheer.

Status & Recommendations
Status: This project kicked off during

Q1. Staff are planning to deliver an
anticipated 166 care packages in
December.

Senior Services Fair: This program hosts small-
scale senior service events that connect residents
with local providers offering senior-focused
benefits and services. These events serve as an
opportunity for community partners to share
resources and engage directly with seniors.

Senior Support Services: Senior Support Services
Program intended to provide critical assistance
including case management, access to public
benefits, Medicare support, and in-home services
for seniors residing in Housing Authority properties
or HCV participants experiencing extreme
hardship.

Status: The first of two annual Senior
Services Fairs was held on October 3 at
the Watsonville Civic Plaza Community
Room, with 96 participants in
attendance. A second fair is scheduled for
February 27 at the London Nelson
Community Center in Santa Cruz.

Planned for Implementation in 2025/2026

Status: The initial Services RFP did not
yield proposals that included senior-
specific support services. A revised RFP
is planned for release in Q2, with
services expected to begin in Q3




4. Improve Agency and Program Management:
a. Reopen Housing Choice Voucher waiting list

Although staff had planned to reopen the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) waiting list
in the 25/26 fiscal year, those plans are temporarily on hold due to anticipated funding
cuts to the HCV program, as well as the discontinuation of the Emergency Housing
Voucher (EHV) program. At this time, the Housing Authority does not have sufficient
funding to issue new vouchers, and any available funding for rental assistance for the
foreseeable future will be prioritized for preserving the rental assistance of families
with an EHV. Therefore, re-opening the HCV waiting list will depend on receiving
sufficient funding to add new households to the program.

b. Expand training and professional development opportunities for staff to promote
diversity and representation at supervisorial and management levels within the
Agency:

i. Present recommendation to the Board of Commissioners to establish and
implement a tuition reimbursement employee benefit program to offer financial
assistance to employees that are pursuing educational programs, related to their
job or relevant professional development.

The agency has developed and adopted an Employee Educational Assistance
and Tuition Reimbursement Program. The Board of Commissioners approved
the establishment of this program in September 2025. This program is designed
to encourage employees to pursue educational opportunities that enhance
professional skills, support career growth, and strengthen the Housing
Authority by fostering a more knowledgeable workforce. The program provides
reimbursement of up to $3,000 per employee annually, with a total agency-wide
cap of $30,000 per year.

ii. Expand tools, resources, and training opportunities for staff. This will
include a combination of required and optional training programs and
professional development opportunities for staff.

Staff are actively developing initiatives to expand training and professional
development opportunities. In particular, staff are working on the development
of a HOUSER Program, which will be a gamified professional development
initiative designed to engage staff in continuous learning across all areas of
housing work. The program is scheduled to launch in January 2026. Staff will
provide more details on the HOUSER staff development program once the
program has been implemented.



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

MEETING DATE: November 12, 2025 ITEM NUMBER: 3C

FROM: Executive Director

SUBJECT: Housing Authority Project Based Voucher Program — FY 2026 Quarter 1 Report

RECOMMENDATION: Receive Report

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

The Board of Commissioners directed staff to provide quarterly reports on the Project-Based
Voucher (PBV) Program, including information about the number of projects in various stages of
the PBV pipeline, as well as projects that are completed and under a Housing Assistance Payments
(HAP) Contract. The FY2026 first quarter report is attached. The report includes key milestones,
deadlines, and details about each project.

The report on PBV projects is separated into three key phases, with a separate table for each phase.

1. Conditional Award of Vouchers: The first table includes a list of projects that have
been conditionally awarded vouchers. This includes new construction projects that
have not yet executed an Agreement to Enter into a HAP Contract (AHAP) or are
existing housing projects that have not yet executed a HAP Contract. This section
includes the original date of conditional award, the deadline for execution of the AHAP,
and any extensions to the AHAP deadline that the project has requested or received
pursuant to the Housing Authority’s PBV rescission policy. The report will also include
the status of the environmental review (ER) and subsidy layering review (SLR), which
must be completed prior to execution of the AHAP. Existing housing projects do not
need to complete ER or SLR requirements.

2. Projects under an AHAP: The second table lists projects for which an Agreement to
Enter into a HAP Contract (AHAP) is in place and the project is either actively under
construction or construction is on hold. The report on projects under an AHAP includes
the date of conditional award and, from the AHAP itself, the date of AHAP execution,
date of commencement of work, and date for completion of the work. The report will
include the date(s) of any AHAP amendments previously executed to extend the
deadline for completion of the work.

3. Projects Under a HAP Contract: The final table lists completed projects, for which
a HAP Contract is in place. These projects are either stably occupied or in the process
of initial lease-up. The report on projects under HAP includes the date the HAP
Contract was entered into, and the term of the HAP Contract.

RECOMMENDATION: Receive Report



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ



1.

Projects with Conditional Awards (Not Under an AHAP)

Original : AHAP AHAP | Environm- | SuPsidy -
. . T e Total Deadline to . . Layering Building
Project Project Conditiona Number of Deadline Deadline ental . .
Address Number of Execute . . . Review Permit
Number Name 1 Award . PBVs Extension Extension Review
Units AHAP (SLR) Status
Date Request #1 | Request #2 Status
Status
Mimosa
Street & Clearance
West of Union Approved — | Approved — . Pending Anticipated
! Fairview Road, 3/3/2023 100 40 32120251 001262025 | 032612026 | TVEd |G pmission | July 2026
. 4/8/2024
Hollister
CA 95023
%j?dgevale Received
2 Baler Place | Dr, 2/7/2024 54 25 2062026 | 10/20/2023 N/A In progress | Lcnding | Anticipated
. — under submission May 2026
Hollister, revie
CA 92117 view
1098 38th
Capitola Ave I Pendin Pendin
3 P Ve, 2/9/2024 52 25 2/8/2026 N/A N/A received cng ne
Manor Capitola, 09/03/2024 submission receipt
CA 95010
4408 &
4444 Scotts
Beverl Valley Clearance Anticipated
4 Gar det?s Drive, 3/26/2024 25 24 3/26/2026 N/A N/A received In progress November
Scotts 08/07/2025 2025
Valley, CA
95066
75 Mount
. Hermon Rd, Clearance . . .
5 gzga"le Scotts 4/30/2024 40 25 4/30/2026 N/A N/A received | ierﬁ?;:i% N ﬁ:"lggé‘zd
Valley, CA 07/31/2025 Y
95066
917,919,
Banana Belt 923 Water Clearance Pendin Anticipated
6 Apartment Street, 5/23/2024 60 25 5/23/2026 N/A N/A received — bmi ig N January
PArmEnts | ganta Cruz, 04/25/2025 | SUPTHSSIO 2026
CA 95062
Clearance . .
7 150 Felker | 150 Felker 1 ¢/1 4774 44 24 8/14/2026 N/A N/A received | _Lending Pending
Street St, Santa 05/06/2025 submission receipt




Cruz, CA
95060

525 Water
Street

525 Water
Street,
Santa Cruz,
CA 95060

8/14/2024

90

33

8/14/2026

N/A

N/A

In progress

In progress

Anticipated
March 2026

41st &
Soquel

2755 &
1831 41st
Ave,
Soquel, CA
95073

8/14/2024

289

91

8/14/2026

N/A

N/A

Clearance
received —
09/30/2024

Pending
submission

Anticipated
May 2026

10

Watsonville
Metro

475
Rodriguez
St,
Watsonville,
CA 95076

8/14/2024

61

20

8/14/2026

N/A

N/A

In progress

Pending
submission

Pending
receipt

11

136 River
Street

136 River
Street,
Santa Cruz,
CA 95060

1/16/2025

51

20

1/16/2027

N/A

N/A

In progress

Pending
submission

Pending
receipt

12

Casa Pajaro

127 -193
East Front
St.,
Watsonville,
CA 95076

08/08/2025

34

33

N/A -
existing
housing

N/A

N/A

N/A -
existing
housing

N/A -
existing
housing

N/A -
existing
housing

TOTAL

900

385




2. Projects Under an AHAP

. Total AHAP Expectation for | Expectation for .
Project . Number of . . . Construction
Project Name Address Number of Effective Construction Construction
Number . PBVs . Status
Units Date Commencement Completion
Park Haven 2840 Park Avenue, Inactive due to
1 Plaza Soquel CA 95073 36 35 10/18/2022 10/23/2022 03/01/2025 funding gap
Veterans 8705 Hwy 9, Ben Inactive due to
2 Villa Lomond, CA 20 15 12/21/2022 06/01/2024 10/25/2025 fundine oa
£e 95005 CA unaing gap
902, 912, and 920
Pacific Station Pacific Avenue
3 crie SO 1 and 423 Front 128 51 02/20/2024 05/20/2024 12/31/2026 Active
North
Street, Santa Cruz,
CA 95060
Harvey West 119 Coral Street, 60
4 ey Wes Santa Cruz, CA 121 (and 20 Shelter | 05/15/2024 05/01/2026 11/16/2026 Active
Studios
95060 Plus Care)
4401 Capitola
5 The Bluffs at | p 4. Capitola CA 36 25 03/05/2025 04/01/2024 05/02/2026 Active
44th
95010
D t 119 Lincoln St,
6 owntown Santa Cruz, CA 124 31 04/23/2025 07/22/2025 03/03/2029 Active
Library
95060
Westsid 850 Almar Ave,
7 osside Santa Cruz, CA 38 25 06/17/2025 09/15/2025 06/16/2028 Active
Village
95060
4575 Scotts Valley
8 ;]2?156 SCDOrtitje Drive, Scotts 100 40 07/24/2025 10/22/2025 07/23/2028 Active
y Valley, CA 95066
831 Water Street,
9 831 Water Street | Santa Cruz CA 140 64 10/30/2025 01/28/2026 10/29/2028 Active
95060
346 PBVs and
TOTAL 743 20 Shelter Plus

Care




3. Projects Under a HAP Contract

Total

Project . Number of HAP Contract HAP Contract
Number Project Name Address Nugl;)ig of PBVs Effective Date Expiration Date

1 El Centro ;;})25 acific Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 45 44 11/1/2014 10/31/2029
Emerald Hill 101 & 102 Civic Center Drive, Scotts

2 Apartments Valley, CA 95066 46 7 12/1/2014 11/30/2029

295 San Andreas Road, Watsonville,

3 San Andreas CA 95076 43 5 1/1/2015 12/31/2029

4 Resetar Residential 15 W. Lake Ave, Watsonville, CA 73 59 6/23/2015 5/31/2030
Hotel 95076

5 St. St;phens Senior 2510 Soquel Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA 40 39 5/24/2017 4/30/2032
Housing 95062
Pippin Orchards 56 Atkinson Lane, Watsonville, CA

6 Apartments 95076 41 31 11/15/2018 10/31/2033

7 Water Street 708 Water St, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 41 33 9/19/2019 8/31/2034
Apartments
Sunrise Senior 580 Westside Blvd, Hollister, CA

8 Apartments 95023 49 48 12/11/2019 12/11/2034

. 110 Kearney Street, 112 Kearney
9 IS):Jr iri‘;e\;a”ey Shelter | o cet, 561 Rodriguez Street, 62 4 4 6/17/2020 5/31/2035
Arista Lane, Watsonville, CA 95076

10 La Playa g;g 6Loe‘brandt Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 8 2 5/1/2018 4/30/2038

1 Sycamore Commons 58 6Scharn0re St, Santa Cruz, CA 60 13 5/1/2018 4/30/2038
Woodland Senior 3050 Dover Dr, Santa Cruz, CA

12 Apartments 95065 68 27 3/16/2020 2/29/2040

. 76 Murphy's Crossing Rd,

13 Jardines Del Valle Watsonville, CA 95076 18 5 3/18/2020 2/29/2040

14| Villas Del Paraiso | pao o1o0 Drive Watsonville, CA 51 15 3/18/2020 2/29/2040

15 Merrill Road 3201 Merrill Rd, Aptos, CA 95003 15 15 7/1/2023 6/30/2043
Apartments

16 Bienestar Plaza 1520 - 1350 Capitola Rd, Santa Cruz, 65 40 11/13/2023 10/31/2043

CA 95062




1482 Freedom Blvd, Watsonville, CA

17 Tabasa Gardens 95076 53 37 3/26/2024 2/29/2044
Cedar Street Family 538 Cedar Street, Santa Cruz CA
18 Apartments 95060 65 8 4/22/2024 3/31/2044
19 LIPH PBVs Various 234 220 5/1/2024 4/30/2044
20 Pacific Station South g;g 61:)"‘C1ﬁc Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 70 47 11/13/2024 11/30/2044
. . 1515, 1615, 1715 Brewington Ave,
21 Cienega Heights Watsonville, CA 95076 80 37 11/18/2024 11/30/2044
139 and 141 Miles Lane, Watsonville
22 Sparrow Terrace CA 95076 72 43 12/20/2024 12/31/2044
Natural Bridges 415 Natural Bridges Drive, Santa
23 Apartments Cruz CA 95060 20 20 1/7/2025 1/31/2045
. 101 - 114 Tierra Alta Drive,
24 Tierra Alta Watsonville, CA 95076 36 33 2/1/2025 2/28/2045
25 Jessie Street 316 Jessie Street, Santa Cruz CA 50 48 3/28/2025 3/31/2045
95060
TOTAL 1,352 873




AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

MEETING DATE: November 12, 2025 ITEM NUMBER: 6A

FROM: Executive Director

SUBJECT: MTW 2025 Amended Annual Submission

RECOMMENDATION: Discuss Draft MTW 2025 Amended Annual Submission

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

At the September 2025 Board of Commissioners meeting, the Board authorized staff to draft an MTW
Supplement amendment with cost saving waivers, and to initiate a public comment period on this draft. The
goal of these potential cost saving waivers is to reduce the likelihood of a financial shortfall in the HCV
program in 2026 (and beyond), to create financial capacity in the HCV program to allow for the absorption
of EHV families prior to the loss of EHV funding, and generally to maximize the number of households
that can be assisted in the HCV program.

On Friday, October 24, a draft 2025 MTW Amended Annual Submission was posted publicly for comment
on the HACSC webpage, and public notice was initiated by publication in the Santa Cruz Sentinel, Register
Pajaronian, and Hollister Freelance. The 45-day public comment period will be open through 4:00 pm on
Tuesday, December 9" and will be followed by a General Public Hearing on Wednesday, December 10"
during the Special December Board Meeting at 11:00 am, with a Safe Harbor Waiver and Agency Specific
Waiver hearing immediately thereafter. Any public comments received prior to or at the public hearings
will be summarized and submitted to HUD with the 2025 MTW Amended Annual Submission and will be
considered by the Board.

Cost Saving Measures
The 2025 MTW Amended Annual Submission includes two staff-recommended cost savings waiver
requests:

1. Activity 1.h. Tenant Rent Policies — Tenant Payment as a Modified Percentage of Income
(HCV). [Amended Submission Pages 8-9]

HACSC proposes to request a waiver allowing our Agency to establish a modified total tenant
payment (TTP) of up to 35% of monthly adjusted income. It is important to note that HACSC is
requesting authorization to set the tenants’ portion of rent at “up to” 35% of monthly adjusted
income, in order to maximize our flexibility with the implementation of the waiver. Depending upon
HUD funding levels in FY 2026 and beyond, HACSC may not need to implement the waiver at all.
In fact, Agency staff is hoping to avoid taking any steps that increase tenant’s portions of rent.

Page 1 of 3



However, if funding is insufficient, Agency staff would be able to use the waiver to increase the
tenants’ portions of rents to any value between the current required 30% contribution, up to a
maximum of 35% of monthly adjusted income. Staff would endeavor to utilize the lowest possible
value within that range, while still achieving the cost savings necessary to achieve the necessary
cost savings.

If implemented at the 35% level for all households, the Agency is estimated to save approximately
87.9 million per year in HCV rental assistance payments.

Impact on affordability of housing costs for affected families with implementation of a 35% TTP

for all families:

e Program wide, families are expected to see a median increase of $116 to their TTP. The median
rent burden is expected to increase from 30% to 35%.

2. Safe Harbor Waiver for Activity 1.h. Tenant Rent Policies — Tenant Payment as a Modified
Percentage of Income [Amended Submission, Page 44]
One of the safe harbor provisions of Activity 1.h. is “Agency must exempt elderly and disabled
families from rent policy.” HACSC intends to apply for the option to implement this waiver to all
households, instead of excluding elderly and disabled households. Given the large number of elderly
and disabled households in the HCV program, exempting elderly and disabled families would
decrease the potential cost savings by approximately $3.4 million of the total potential $7.9 million
in estimated savings.

Impact on affordability of housing costs for elderly and disabled families with implementation of a

35% TTP for all families:

e Elderly families are expected to see a median increase of $65 to their TTP. The median rent
burden is expected to increase from 29% to 34%.

e Disabled families are expected to see a median increase of $61 to their TTP. The median rent
burden is expected to increase from 29% to 34%.

Neither Activity 1.h. nor the Safe Harbor Waiver for Activity 1.h. have disparate impacts on any protected
classes.

Agency Specific Waiver Request [Amended Submission, Pages 46-49]
In addition to the cost saving waivers listed above, Staff propose to request the following Agency Specific
Waiver.

1. Agency Specific Waiver: Place HCV Families on PHA-Managed PBYV Site-Based Waitlists.
HACSC seeks to waive certain provisions of 982.204 and 982.206, as necessary, to allow HACSC
to place existing participants of the HACSC tenant-based voucher program on HACSC-managed
site-based waiting lists for Project Based Voucher (PBV), without requiring the families to submit
individual applications and without public notice of opening and closing of the site-based waiting
lists. This waiver would achieve administrative efficiencies and increase housing choice.

Page 2 of 3



Specifically, HACSC would utilize this waiver to offering opportunities for continued assistance to
EHV-assisted families whose rental assistance program is ending. The flexibility under this waiver
will expand the universe of possible PBV units which may be offered to such families, increasing
the likelihood that they will have continued rental assistance after the EHV program funding is
exhausted. Time is of the essence so that opportunities may begin to be offered as soon as possible
while EHV program funding is running out. Families will be permitted to remove their names from
the site-based waiting list at any time and any housing opportunity offered to them would be
accepted only on a voluntary basis.

Next Steps

After discussion with the Board at the November meeting, staff may amend the Draft MTW 2025 Amended
Annual Submission prior to the December meeting, at which time staff would recommend approval of the
submission. If staff submit the MTW 2025 Amended Annual Submission to HUD in December, we hope
to receive approval in Spring, with enough time to implement the waivers on or before July 1, 2026,
allowing us to receive significant cost savings in 2026 and potentially allowing us to absorb more EHV
families into the HCV program and/or avoid shortfall in the HCV program.

RECOMMENDATION: Discuss Draft MTW 2025 Amended Annual Submission with Cost Saving
Waivers

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ

Page 3 of 3



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

PHA Name: Housing Authority Of The County Of Santa Cruz

PHA Code : CA072

MTW Supplement for PHA Fiscal Year Beginning: 7/1/2025

PHA Program Type: Combined

MTW Cohort Number: Asset Building

MTW Supplement Submission Type: AnnualSubmissionAmendment fo the Annual Submission

Page 1 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

B. MTW Supplement Narrative.

The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz (HACSC) is pleased to submit this Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 Moving to
Work (MTW) Supplement component of the Annual PHA Plan. HUD designated HACSC as an MTW Agency in
September 2022, through the MTW Asset Building Cohort, to test asset building initiatives to encourage growth of
savings accounts and/or aim to build credit for assisted households. HACSC’s MTW Plan and Application selected the
HUD defined “Opt-Out Savings Account” as the initial MTW asset building activity. HACSC has worked for the past two
years with HUD and the evaluation team to develop, implement and evaluate the “Opt-Out Savings Account” initiative.
HACSC has also actively participated in the “Community of Practice” with HUD, the evaluation team, and other MTW
agencies in the Asset Building Cohort to further develop and implement best practices related to asset building.

This supplement identifies the MTW waivers and activities that HACSC has implemented and hopes to implement to
achieve the three MTW statutory objectives which are outlined in more detail below in the sections of Economic Mobility,
Cost Effectiveness, and Housing Choice.

Economic Mobility: Implementation of the Opt-Out Savings Account initiative is the focal point of HACSC initial economic
mobility efforts. HACSC plans to use the Opt-Out Savings Account program as the baseline for future economic mobility
programs. This initiative will assist HACSC to build and expand upon a network of partnerships with service providers,
financial service institutions, and other community-based organizations to promote economic mobility. In the first year,
the HACSC partnered with a financial capabilities service organization which has provided individual financial coaching
sessions to Opt-Out Savings Program participants. Other activities to support economic mobility include administrative
changes to the Housing Choice Voucher program such as alternative income inclusions / exclusions, alternative
reexamination schedule, and extension of zero HAP participation from 180 to 360 days. HACSC will continue exploring
opportunities to encourage assisted households to seek employment opportunities, increased wages, and build assets.

Cost Effectiveness: HACSC is leveraging MTW authority and has implemented a range of waivers to achieve
administrative efficiencies and cost effectiveness. These waivers are enabling HACSC to provide more meaningful
service to enhance customer service, and to reduce administrative burden for participants and property owners.
Program participants benefit from alternative income inclusions / exclusions, alternative reexamination schedule, and
self-certification of assets. HACSC conducting certain HQS functions and PBV processes in which third-party assistance
was previously required has eliminated administrative time spent coordinating contractors, and support tenants to
secure housing. Administrative time savings have allowed HACSC to provide additional resources to our families
through the addition of a new Resident Services Coordinator.

Housing Choice: HACSC’s approach to improving housing choice includes providing housing stability to program
participants that are already housed through waivers such as alternative income inclusions / exclusions, alternative
reexamination schedule, and Moving On policies to align tenant rent and utility payments between partner agencies.
The strategy to promote housing choice and to increase the supply of affordable housing is being achieved through our
increase to the PBV program cap and PBV project cap. The ability to expand the PBV program is already providing new
housing opportunities to program participants and supporting the development of hundreds of new affordable housing
units within our community. Additionally, housing choice will be expanded through implementation of an Agency Specific
Waiver to adopt an alternative reasonable cost formula to include Hard Construction Cost (HCD) and Total Development
Cost (TDC) for development and construction activities under the local non-traditional activities.

HACSC is excited to be participating in the Asset Building Cohort and implementing MTW waivers that achieve HUD’s
statutory objectives. These activities align with the HACSC mission and our long-term vision for MTW.

Under the MTW Operations Notice, the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz is authorized to flexibly and
interchangeably utilize Public Housing Operating Fund, Capital Fund Program and certain Housing Assistance
Payments funds for any purpose authorized under Sections 8 and 9 of the US Housing Act of 1937 and for local, non-
traditional activities. The agency may utilize this flexibility over the fiscal year to support activities described in the Annual
Plan in accordance with the requirements of the Operations Notice. HACSC intends, per Federal Register Notice FR-
6284-N-01, to extend the term of FUP-Youth and FYI voucher assistance for up to an additional 24 months for youth
participating in the HACSC Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) program or who otherwise meet the criteria for extension as
stipulated in FR-6284-N-01.

Page 2 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Development: Casa Pajaro Apartments is a 34-unit apartment complex, located at 127-193 East Front Street in the
City of Watsonville, which consists of seventeen 2-bedroom units and seventeen 3-bedroom units. The Housing
Authority is providing a loan with Moving to Work funds to the borrower in the amount of $21,200,000 in order to facilitate
the purchase of the property. The Housing Authority is applying a regulatory agreement and declaration of restrictive
covenants in which the Authority agrees to provide an award of Project-Based Vouchers (PBV) for thirty-three of the
units and the borrower agrees to accept the PBV Award and enter into a Housing Assistance Payment contract. This
project is considered 100% affordable through assistance from the PBV program.

The Housing Authority may utilize LNT authority under waiver 17.c. for Housing Development Programs. The Housing
Authority has an Option Agreement to acquire “Chanticleer” at 2021 — 2031 Chanticleer Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA 95602
from the seller. The Housing Authority plans to use MTW funds for the acquisition. At the time of purchase, the Housing
Authority will record a regulatory agreement and declaration of restrictive covenants in which the property must be used
for the development of affordable housing and for the units to be occupied by low-income households with incomes at
or below 80% of the Santa Cruz County area median income level. After acquisition, the project is anticipated to consist
of the new construction of an estimated 50 affordable units, with the exact amount and AMI levels to be determined
pending a feasibility analysis. The proposed unit mix includes 50% two-bedroom and three-bedroom units, with the
remaining 50% of units to include studios and one-bedrooms. The Housing Authority is currently conducting the
feasibility analysis to determine the cost and source of funds to support the development and construction of the project.
The Housing Authority anticipates MTW funds will also be used to support the development and construction costs of
this project utilizing LNT authority and will seek other non-MTW funding such as low-income housing tax credits, HOME,
CDBG, and other state and local funding.

Additionally, housing choice will be expanded through implementation of an Agency Specific Waiver to adopt an
alternative reasonable cost formula to include Hard Construction Cost (HCD) and Total Development Cost (TDC) for
development and construction activities under the local non-traditional activities.

Page 3 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



C. The policies that the MTW agency is using or has used (not currently implemented, currently implementing,

Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

plan to implement in the submission year, plan to discontinue, previously discontinued).

1. Tenant Rent Policies

a. Tiered Rent (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

b. Tiered Rent (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

c. Stepped Rent (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

d. Stepped Rent (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

e. Minimum Rent (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

f. Minimum Rent (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

g. Total Tenant Payment as a Percentage of Gross Income (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

h. Tenant Payment as a Modified Percentage of Income (HCV)

Plan to Implement in the
Submission Year

Not CurrenthyImplemented

i. Alternative Utility Allowance (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

j- Alternative Utility Allowance (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

k. Fixed Rents (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

|. Fixed Subsidy (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

m. Utility Reimbursements (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

n. Utility Reimbursements (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

o. Initial Rent Burden (HCV)

Plan to Implement in the
Submission Year

p. Imputed Income (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

g. Imputed Income (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

r. Elimination of Deduction(s) (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

s. Elimination of Deduction(s) (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

t. Standard Deductions (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

u. Standard Deductions (HCV)

Currently Implementing

v. Alternative Income Inclusions/Exclusions (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

w. Alternative Income Inclusions/Exclusions (HCV)

Currently Implementing

2. Payment Standards and Rent Reasonableness

b. Payment Standards- Fair Market Rents (HCV)

Currently Implementing

c. Rent Reasonableness — Process (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

d. Rent Reasonableness — Third-Party Requirement (HCV)

Currently Implementing

Page 4 of 38

Revision Date 10/22/2025

S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word

Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx




Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

3. Reexaminations

a. Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

b. Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households (HCV)

Currently Implementing

c. Self-Certification of Assets (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

d. Self-Certification of Assets (HCV)

Currently Implementing

4. Landlord Leasing Incentives

a. Vacancy Loss (HCV-Tenant-based Assistance)

Not Currently Implemented

b. Damage Claims (HCV-Tenant-based Assistance)

Not Currently Implemented

c. Other Landlord Incentives (HCV- Tenant-based Assistance)

Not Currently Implemented

5. Housing Quality Standards (HQS)

a. Pre-Qualifying Unit Inspections (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

b. Reasonable Penalty Payments for Landlords (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

c. Third-Party Requirement (HCV)

Currently Implementing

d. Alternative Inspection Schedule (HCV)

Plan to Implement in the
Submission Year

6. Short-Term Assistance

a. Short-Term Assistance (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

b. Short-Term Assistance (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

7. Term-Limited Assistance

a. Term-Limited Assistance (PH)

Not Currently Implemented

b. Term-Limited Assistance (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

8. Increase Elderly Age (PH & HCV)

Increase Elderly Age (PH & HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

9. Project-Based Voucher Program Flexibilities

a. Increase PBV Program Cap (HCV)

Currently Implementing

b. Increase PBV Project Cap (HCV)

Currently Implementing

c. Elimination of PBV Selection Process for PHA-owned Projects Without Improvement,

Development, or Replacement (HCV)

Currently Implementing

d. Alternative PBV Selection Process (HCV)

Not Currently Implemented

e. Alternative PBV Unit Types (Shared Housing and Manufactured Housing) (HCV) Not Currently Implemented

f. Increase PBV HAP Contract Length (HCV) Not Currently Implemented

g. Increase PBV Rent to Owner (HCV) Not Currently Implemented

h. Limit Choice Mobility for PBV Units (HCV) Currently Implementing
Page 5 of 38

Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

10. Family Self-Sufficiency Program with MTW Flexibility

a.PH Waive Operating a Required FSS Program (PH) Not Currently Implemented
a. HCV Waive Operating a Required FSS Program (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
b.PH Alternative Structure for Establishing Program Coordinating Committee (PH) Not Currently Implemented
b. HCV Alternative Structure for Establishing Program Coordinating Committee (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
c.PH Alternative Family Selection Procedures (PH) Not Currently Implemented
c. HCV Alternative Family Selection Procedures (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
d.PH Modify or Eliminate the Contract of Participation (PH) Not Currently Implemented
d. HCV Modify or Eliminate the Contract of Participation (HCV) Plan to Implement in the
Submission Year

e.PH Policies for Addressing Increases in Family Income (PH) Not Currently Implemented
e. HCV Policies for Addressing Increases in Family Income (HCV) Plan to Implement in the

Submission Year

11. MTW Self-Sufficiency Program

a. PH Alternative Family Selection Procedures (PH) Not Currently Implemented
a. HCV Alternative Family Selection Procedures (HCV) Not Currently Implemented
b. PH Policies for Addressing Increases in Family Income (PH) Not Currently Implemented
c. HCV Policies for Addressing Increases in Family Income (HCV) Not Currently Implemented

12. Work Requirement

a. Work Requirement (PH) Not Currently Implemented

b. Work Requirement (HCV) Not Currently Implemented

13. Use of Public Housing as an Incentive for Economic Progress (PH)

Use of Public Housing as an Incentive for Economic Progress (PH) Not Currently Implemented

14. Moving on Policy

a. Waive Initial HQS Inspection Requirement (HCV) Currently Implementing
b. PH Allow Income Calculations from Partner Agencies (PH) Not Currently Implemented
c. HCV Allow Income Calculations from Partner Agencies (HCV) Currently Implementing
d. PH Aligning Tenant Rents and Utility Payments Between Partner Agencies (PH) Not Currently Implemented
e. HCV Aligning Tenant Rents and Utility Payments Between Partner Agencies (HCV) Currently Implementing

15. Acquisition without Prior HUD Approval (PH)

Acquisition without Prior HUD Approval (PH) Not Currently Implemented

16. Deconcentration of Poverty in Public Housing Policy (PH)

Deconcentration of Poverty in Public Housing Policy (PH) Not Currently Implemented

Page 6 of 38

Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

17. Local, Non-Traditional Activities

a. Rental Subsidy Programs Not Currently Implemented

b. Service Provision Not Currently Implemented

c. Housing Development Programs Currently Implementing
Page 7 of 38

Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

C. MTW Activities Plan that Housing Authority of The County Of Santa Cruz Plans to Implement in the Submission
Year or Is Currently Implementing

1.h. — Tenant Payment as a Modified Percentage of Income

HACSC intends to establish a modified TTP of up to 35% of monthly adjusted income with the goal of achieving cost
effectiveness. HACSC is requesting authorization to set the tenants’ portion of rent at “up to” 35% of monthly adjusted
income. However, depending upon HUD funding levels in FY 2026 and beyond, HACSC may use the flexibility under
this waiver to set the modified TTP at some other value above 30% but below 35% of monthly adjusted income. -The
purpose of implementing this waiver is to maximize the number of families we can assist through the HCV program
based on current program funding levels. HACSC intends to implement a modified TTP in the range of 31% to 35%
of monthly adjusted income, at the lowest possible value within that range, while still achieving the cost savings
necessary to_maximize the number of families that can be served within- funding levels in FY 2026 and beyond.

HACSC currently has HUD approval to utilize flexibility under activities 1.u. Standard Deductions and 1.w. Alternative
Income Inclusions/Exclusions. Should HUD approve this activity (1.h. Total Tenant Payment as a Percentage of
Gross Income) HACSC would comply with all applicable requirements that limit the combination of waivers 1.h with
1.u. or 1.w.

HACSC will observe the following safe harbors:

i. The Tenant Payment in public housing and the Tenant Payment in HCV must not exceed 32% of income for non-
elderly/non-disabled families if the agency is utilizing flexibility under activities 1.r., 1.t. and/or 1.v. (for 1.g.) or 1.s.,
1.u. and/or 1.w. (for 1.h.).

ii. The Tenant Payment in public housing and the Tenant Payment in HCV must not exceed 35% of income for non-
elderly/non-disabled families if the agency is not utilizing flexibility under activities 1.r., 1.t. and/or 1.v. (for 1.g.) or
1.s., 1.u. and/or 1.w. (for 1.h.).

iv. Agency must conduct an impact analysis. *

v. Agency must implement a hardship policy. *

HACSC is requesting a Safe Harbor Waiver to the following safe harbor:

iii. Agency must exempt elderly and disabled families from rent policy.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Decreased Expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

All assisted households.

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

N/A

Does this MTW activity require a hardship policy?
Yes.
The hardship policy is attached.

Page 8 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Does the hardship policy apply to more than this MTW activity?
No

Has the MTW agency modified the hardship policy since the last submission of the MTW Supplement?
No

How many hardship requests have been received associated with this activity in the past year?
0

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
Yes.
The Safe Harbor Waiver is attached.

Does the MTW activity require an impact analysis?
Yes.
The impact analysis is attached.

Does the impact analysis apply to more than this MTW activity?
No

What percentage of income will equal the Total Tenant Payment (TTP)

Up to 35% of monthly adjusted income

This activity uses adjusted annual income as defined in 24 CFR 5.611.

Page 9 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

1.0. Tenant Rent Policies — Initial Rent Burden

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative

HACSC will waive the maximum family share at initial occupancy of 40% of the family’s monthly income. HACSC
will not allow the family share at initial occupancy to exceed 50% of the family’s monthly income.

Santa Cruz County is currently the most expensive rental market in the nation. HACSC requests this waiver to
promote increased housing choice for households, allowing HCV participants more options in their housing search.
Implementation of this activity allows participants to look for housing that may be more costly than otherwise permitted
under HUD regulations, but it also gives participants the option to live in lower poverty neighborhoods with access to
better schools and employment opportunities

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Housing choice

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Cost neutral.

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

N/A

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Does this MTW activity require a hardship policy?
No

Does the MTW activity require an impact analysis?
Yes

Does the impact analysis apply to more than this MTW activity?
No

If the MtW agency plans to implement a new maximum income-based rent percentage (higher than 40% of
adjusted monthly income), what is that maximum? 50%

Page 10 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

1.u. — Standard Deduction (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative

The HACSC intends to establish a standard deduction for medical expenses applicable to all elderly and disabled
households with medical expenses exceeding an established threshold. The standard deduction for medical
expenses and the threshold at which it applies shall both be indicated in the HACSC Section 8 Administrative Plan.
Eligible elderly and disabled families who claim medical expenses at or above the established threshold will be
required to sign a self-certification.

This MTW activity doesn’t impact the family’s eligibility to receive the elderly/disabled and dependent deductions in
accordance with §5.611(a)(1) — (a)(2).

For purposes of this MTW activity, medical expenses are defined in accordance with 24 CFR §5.603: Health and
medical care expenses are any costs incurred in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention of disease
or payments for treatments affecting any structure or function of the body. Health and medical care expenses include
medical insurance premiums and long-term care premiums that are paid or anticipated during the period for which
annual income is computed.

For FY starting 7/1/2024, the proposed standard deduction for medical expenses is $1,500 for elderly and disabled
households with expenses at or above a $1,500 threshold. HACSC will periodically adjust the amount of the standard
medical deduction, adhering to HUD’s methodology for calculating inflationary adjustments for the elderly/disabled
family deduction, pursuant to a pending HUD Federal Register notice.

The MTW activity applies to all tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers.

Households may request a Medical Expense Hardship exemption to the standard deduction in accordance with the
HACSC Medical Expense Hardship Policy. Families requesting a hardship exception will be asked to complete a
medical expense verification packet, and may be asked to provide supporting documents, receipts, and/or contact
information of healthcare providers that can verify the expenses.

Staff currently spend a significant amount of time calculating medical expenses to determine a household’s allowable
medical expense deduction. By establishing a standard deduction for medical expenses, and by allowing households
eligible for the standard deduction to self-certify their medical expenses and applying a standardized deduction,
significant staff time will be saved. It's anticipated that savings in staff time previously spent calculating medical
expenses can be redirected to direct client services or other programs benefiting the clients served by HACSC.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Decreased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

Page 11 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households

New admissions and currently assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
The MTW activity applies only to selected family types: elderly and disabled.

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?
The MTW activity applies to specific tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers:
The MTW activity applies to all tenant-based units and all properties with project-based vouchers.

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

The activity was approved by HUD in October 2024 and HACSC is in the process of implementation. Staff training
and Yardi setup are scheduled for Spring 2025, with an anticipated effective date of 7/1/2025.

Does this MTW activity require a hardship policy?
Yes.

Does the hardship policy apply to more than this MTW activity?
No

Has the MTW agency modified the hardship policy since the last submission of the MTW Supplement?
No

How many hardship requests have been received associated with this activity in the past year?
0

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Does the MTW activity require an impact analysis?
Yes

Does the impact analysis apply to more than this MTW activity?
No

How much will the single standard deduction be in the Fiscal Year?
$1,500 for FY beginning July 1, 2024.

1.w. - Alternative Income Inclusions/Exclusions (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative

Exclude income from asset-building activities. This change benefits clients, increasing self-sufficiency and housing
choice as well as saving tenant time. Additionally, it reduces staff time. Decreased staff paperwork increases
operational efficiency and cost-effectiveness.

Page 12 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness; Self-sufficiency; Housing choice

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Increased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

The asset-building activities have been implemented, with deposits effective March 2024.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
Yes

What is the status of the Safe Harbor Waiver request?
The waiver was previously approved.

Please describe the extent to which the Safe Harbor Waiver is supporting the MTW agency’s goal in
implementing this MTW activity.

Income attributable to the asset-building activities our PHA has implemented as part of the MTW Asset Building
cohort are excluded. This safe harbor waiver contributes to the success of the asset building program.

What inclusions or exclusions will be eliminated, modified, or added?

Income attributable to the asset-building activities our PHA implements as part of the MtW Asset Building Cohort is
excluded.

Page 13 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

2.b. - Payment Standards- Fair Market Rents (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative.

The HACSC shall implement a payment standard between 80% and 120% of Fair Market Rents.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Housing choice

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Neutral (no cost implications)

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households.

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation

The Housing Authority has established payment standards ranging between 80% and 120% of the Fair Market Rent
(FMR). This strategic utilization of payment standards offers flexibility within a reasonable range, aiming to
accommodate varying housing market conditions for the benefit of program participants.

Does this MTW activity require a hardship policy?
Yes

Does the hardship policy apply to more than this MTW activity?
No

Has the MTW agency modified the hardship policy since the last submission of the MTW Supplement?
No

How many hardship requests have been received associated with this activity in the past year?
0

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Does the MTW activity require an impact analysis?
Yes

Does the impact analysis apply to more than this MTW activity?
No

Please explain the payment standards by FMR:

Currently, PHAs are required to establish payment standards between 90% - 120% Fair Market Rents. The proposed
waiver would provide HACSC with greater flexibility to establish payment standards that reflect market rates, resulting
in greater housing choice for program families.

Page 14 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\0 - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

2.d. - Rent Reasonableness — Third-Party Requirement (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative.

HACSC no longer requires a third party to conduct rent reasonableness tests and to assist the family in negotiating
the rent to owner on units at properties that HACSC owns, manages, and/or controls. HACSC will follow the rent
reasonableness process used for all other HCV properties and conduct the test using a database consisting of
comparable units or properties. Requiring approval from a third party increases costs and creates potential delays in
the availability of needed housing units. Conducting these rent reasonableness tests in- house will achieve greater
cost-effectiveness in federal expenditures, improve administrative efficiencies, eliminate confusion for staff and
participants, and improve the response time for conducting rent reasonableness analyses. The agency will meet all
safe harbor requirements of the Operations Notice including (1) The agency shall establish and make available a
quality assurance method to ensure impartiality; (2) The agency shall make available the method used to determine
that rents charged by owners to voucher participants are reasonable when compared to similar unassisted units in
the market area; and (3) At the Department’s request, the agency must obtain the services of a third-party.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Cost effectiveness; Housing choice

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Decreased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households?

New admissions and currently assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
The MTW activity applies to all family types.

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?

The MTW activity applies to specific tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers.

Please describe which tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers participate in the
MTW activity.

Applies only to units owned or controlled by the PHA.

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation

The Housing Authority has implemented the waiver and no longer uses a third party to conduct rent reasonable tests
for at properties owned and/or controlled by the Agency.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Page 15 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Please explain or upload a description of the quality assurance method.

The HACSC has developed and implemented procedures for the conduct of regularly scheduled quality control of
PHA-owned rent reasonableness assessments, including establishing the sampling size and frequency within the
procedures and designating quality control roles and responsibilities.

An explanation is provided in lieu of an uploaded document.

Please explain or upload a description of the rent reasonableness determination method.

Reasonable rent is currently determined using information produced by Affordable Housing.com, a national rent
reasonableness system, via the AffordableHousing.Com database. The AffordableHousing.com database meets
HUD regulatory requirements for rent comparisons based on comparable unassisted units, including information
about each unit’s location, size, type, age, quality/condition, utilities and amenities. HACSC may institute a change
to which database is used for Rent Reasonableness determinations but will always utilize a national rent
reasonableness system that meets HUD regulatory requirements.

An explanation is provided in lieu of an uploaded document.

Page 16 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

3.b. - Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative.

Reducing the frequency of household certifications allows participants to keep more of their income as their income
increases. It also reduces the burden on both participants and Housing Specialists in acquiring, submitting, and
processing paperwork. This waiver gives tenants a longer time with stable rent to allow for better financial planning
and housing security. Tenants have a greater ability to save for and accomplish life goals such as pursuing education
and rent independence or home ownership. To enhance self-sufficiency and increase housing choice, HACSC wiill
not perform an interim reexamination for earned and/or unearned income increases that occur between regularly
scheduled reexaminations, regardless of the amount of the increase, unless requested by the family. This waiver,
approved by HUD prior to HUD issuing the new HOTMA Final Rule updates to 24 CFR 982.505, supersedes the
HOTMA updates which are in conflict with this approved waiver and at odds with the administrative efficiencies
created by HACSC’s implemented alternative reexamination schedule. Per our existing waiver, HACSC will only
apply increases in the payment standard amount outside of regular re-examinations for contract rent increases in
which the gross rent would result in an increase in the family share, or in the case of a hardship.

There is no limit to the number of interim reexaminations a family may request per year, without requesting a
hardship, for qualifying events.

The activity meets all of the applicable safe harbor requirements in the Operations Notice including (1)
Reexaminations must occur at least every three years; (2) The agency must allow at least one interim adjustment
per year at the request of the household, if the household gross income has decreased 10% or more; (3) Agency
must implement an impact analysis; and (4) Agency must include a hardship policy.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness; Self-sufficiency

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Increased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation

HACSC has implemented the waiver with no changes to the waiver request as submitted. With HACSC’s waiver of
certain provisions of 24 CFR Part 982.516(a) and (c), HACSC has introduced an Alternative Reexamination Schedule
to streamline reevaluation processes. Under this initiative, MTW households reliant on fixed-income sources undergo
reexaminations at least every three years, non-fixed income MTW households every two years, and all other
households annually. Fixed income is defined as stable and primary income sources such as Social Security,
Disability Insurance, employment pensions, Veterans Affairs benefits, or similar. As this waiver was written and
implemented, HACSC conducts interim adjustments to redetermine subsidy only when the household experiences
a qualifying event. Qualifying events are described in the HCV Administrative Plan and include decreases in income,
increases in income when requested by the household, changes in household composition, and changes to the
contractrent. This waiver, approved by HUD prior to HUD issuing the new HOTMA Final Rule updates to 24 CFR
982.505, supersedes the HOTMA updates which are in conflict with this approved waiver and at odds with the
administrative efficiencies created by HACSC’s implemented alternative reexamination schedule. Per our existing
waiver, HACSC will only apply increases in the payment standard amount outside of regular re-examinations for
contract rent increases in which the gross rent would result in an increase in the family share, or in the case of a
hardship.

Does this MTW activity require a hardship policy?

Already provided.

Page 17 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Does the hardship policy apply to more than this MTW activity?

No

Has the MTW agency modified the hardship policy since the last submission of the MTW Supplement?
No

How many hardship requests have been received associated with this activity in the past year?

0

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?

No

Does the MTW activity require an impact analysis?

Yes

Does the impact analysis apply to more than this MTW activity?

No
What is the recertification schedule? Other:

The Housing Authority will conduct reexaminations for fixed-income households at least every three years, conduct
reexaminations for non-fixed income households under MTW flexibility at least every two years, and all other
households will have a reexamination conducted annually. Fixed Income means primary or sole source of income
that comes from stable and fixed sources such as Social Security, Social Security Disability Insurance, employment
pensions, Veterans Affairs benefits, or similar. Zero income families are not considered to be fixed income; zero
income families will have reexaminations conducted annually.

In between reexaminations, the HACSC will conduct any number of interim adjustments to redetermine subsidy when
the household experiences a qualifying event. Qualifying events will include decreases in income, without regard to
a specified threshold, increases in income (when requested by the household), changes in household composition,
and changes to the contract rent. When interim adjustments are conducted, HACSC may apply payment standards
and utility allowances in effect at the time of the effective date of the adjustment. HACSC will reserve the right to
conduct reexaminations more frequently either for administrative or financial reasons. HACSC will not perform an
interim reexamination for both earned and unearned income increases that occur between regularly scheduled
reexaminations, regardless of the amount of the increase, unless requested by the family.

Families may also request an interim reexamination under the HACSC hardship policy. A hardship may be requested
if a family has experienced a decrease in income because of changed circumstances, including loss or reduction of
employment, death in the family, or reduction in or loss of earnings or other assistance; and/or, the family has
experienced an increase in expenses, because of changed circumstances, for medical costs, childcare,
transportation, education, or similar items.

How many interim recertifications per year may a household request?
2 or more

Please describe briefly how the MTW agency plans to address changes in family/household circumstances
under the alternative reexamination schedule.

The HACSC will conduct reexaminations for fixed-income families at least every three years and will conduct
reexaminations for all remaining (non-fixed-income families) at least every two years. Between reexaminations, the
HACSC will conduct interim adjustments to redetermine subsidy when the household experiences a qualifying event.
Qualifying events are described in the HCV Administrative Plan and include decreases in income, increases in
income (when requested by the household) changes in household composition, and changes to the contract rent.
When interim adjustments are conducted, HACSC may apply payment standards and utility allowances in effect at
the time of the effective date of the adjustment. HACSC will reserve the right to conduct reexaminations more
frequently either for administrative or for financial reasons.

Page 18 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

3.d. - Self-Certification of Assets (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative.

At reexamination, the agency will allow the self-certification of assets up to $50,000. Reduced documentation
requirements will reduce staff time for processing, thereby increasing operational efficiency and cost effectiveness.
Reducing documentation saves time for staff and the majority of tenants whose assets are below a level that makes
a difference in qualifying for support.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Decreased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

The Housing Authority has implemented this waiver and is allowing households to self-certify assets up to $50,000.
This initiative simplifies the asset verification process, empowering eligible households to self-report assets within
the specified threshold.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Please state the dollar threshold for the self-certification of assets.
$50,000.

Page 19 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

5.c. - Third-Party Requirement (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative.

HACSC eliminated the requirement for third -party inspections on units at properties the PHA owns, manages, and/or
controls, which will save staff time, increase operational efficiency, and increase cost effectiveness. Additionally, it
may increase housing choice for tenants through a faster inspection process. With third-party inspections, delays are
beyond HACSC's control. HACSC has certified HQS Inspectors on staff and plans to utilize them for PHA-owned unit
inspections. This will increase efficiency and reduce staff time. This change will allow HACSC to operate more
efficiently and strategically to serve its mission and focus on innovative programs and services to tenants.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness; Housing choice

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Decreased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households?

New admissions and currently assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
The MTW activity applies to all family types

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?
The MTW activity applies to specific tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers.

Please describe which tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers participate in the
MTW activity.

Applies only to units owned or controlled by the PHA.

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

The Housing Authority has removed the requirement for third-party inspections on all units, both PBV and HCV,
owned or controlled by the Agency. This strategic move is streamlining operations, reducing staff workload, and
enhancing cost efficiency by eliminating the need for external inspections.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Please explain or upload the description of the quality assurance method:

HACSC has developed and implemented procedures for the conduct of regularly scheduled quality control of PHA-
owned PBV and HCV unit inspections, including establishing the sampling size and frequency within the procedures
and designating quality control inspector roles and responsibilities. An explanation is provided in lieu of an upload.

5.d. Housing Quality Standards — Alternative Inspection Schedule (HCV)

Page 20 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative

HACSC proposes to modify the frequency of inspections for both HCV and PBV Units, to be conducted every three
years instead of every two years. This change will result in the ability to reallocate staff time to better meet the needs
of residents and participants and working with the community to assess and help meet other housing needs.
Participants and/or property owners will continue to be able to request an inspection at any time. This change does
not allow any alteration of the Housing Quality Standards, nor does it prohibit the Housing Authority from requiring
an inspection at any time for health, safety and accessibility issues. This change will save staff time thus allowing
staff to devote more time to supporting participants and the housing issues in the larger community and reduce the
burden on participants and property owners who need to schedule time to open up the unit to our inspectors.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost Effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Decreased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households.

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

N/A
Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Page 21 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

9.a. - Increase PBV Program Cap (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative.

The HACSC proposes to project-base the lower of fifty percent (50%) of the total authorized units or fifty percent
(50%) of annual budget authority of its vouchers to attach the funding to specific affordable units through the Project
Based Voucher program.

The Project-Based Voucher (PBV) program allows a Housing Authority to use up to twenty percent (20%) percent of
its vouchers to attach the funding to specific affordable units. PHAs may project base an additional ten percent (10%)
of vouchers that are excepted from this cap, for units designated for homeless, veterans, supportive services, or in a
low poverty census tract.

Benefits to Development: Project basing gives developers a guarantee of a future source of stable income for a
development, which can be integral to the financing package that makes constructing or rehabilitating affordable
housing possible. In markets facing a housing shortage, this is one of the only tools housing authorities have to spur
the construction of new, quality, affordable units. Many families with tenant-based vouchers struggle to find a unit in
the private rental market due to an extreme scarcity of rental housing and property owner reluctance to participate in
the voucher program. Scarcity of rental units leads to tenant-based vouchers often expiring before a household can
secure a unit, and results in loss of voucher assistance. Committing vouchers to affordable properties through the
PBV program ensures those units will be available exclusively to voucher households. Since the PBV program
promotes construction of affordable housing in high opportunity low poverty neighborhoods, increasing the PBV cap
allows more low-income households, often including children, to benefit from good neighborhoods that are likely to
have better schools, parks, healthcare, jobs, transportation, and other assets that improve outcomes for low-income
families. Families are not required to stay in PBV units and may move into any unit of their choosing in the private
market using a tenant-based voucher at the end of their initial lease term, freeing up the PBV unit for the next eligible
household waiting for assistance.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Housing choice

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Neutral (no cost implications)

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

This waiver has been implemented as planned, and HACSC is continuing to spur new affordable housing production with
awards of project-based vouchers to projects selected through the RFP process. HACSC has introduced a new PBV
Request for Proposals and will continue to expand the PBV portfolio. Before the end of FY 2024-25, HACSC's total
commitment of PBVs is anticipated to exceed 30% of our ACC Authorized Units.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

What percentage of total authorized HCV units will be authorized for project-basing?
50.00%

9.b. - Increase PBV Project Cap (HCV)

Page 22 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative.

Allows more than the greater of twenty-five units or 25% of the units at a complex to receive Project-Based Voucher
assistance. Under current regulations, “excepted” units that are for the elderly or those providing supportive services
are already exempt from this cap. This activity would allow units that may not be serving the excepted populations to
go above the cap up to 100% of the units at a project. This will increase housing choice and contribute to the
development of additional affordable housing production available to households eligible for the Section 8 Program.
The HACSC will continue to be subject to Notice PIH 2013-27 where applicable, or successor notices.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Housing choice

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Neutral (no cost implications)

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

The Housing Authority initially implemented this waiver in FY 2023-24 to allow more than the greater of twenty-five
units or 40% of the units at a complex to receive PBV assistance and introduced a new PBV Request for Proposals.
The Housing Authority has since reduced the PBV Project Cap back down to the greater of 15 units or 40 percent of
the units at the project. The waiver as approved still allows HACSC to award up to 100% of the units at a project.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Page 23 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

9.c. - Elimination of PBV Selection Process for PHA-owned Projects Without Improvement, Development, or
Replacement (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative.

Under this waiver, the HACSC eliminated the independent third-party selection process and competitive process in
the award of PBV’s to properties owned or controlled by the agency when the agency is not engaged in an initiative
to improve, develop, or replace a public housing property or site. All other PBV selection and approval requirements,
including HQS compliance, NEPA review and subsidy layering review are still applicable and must be conducted.
The HACSC will comply with the following Safe Harbor requirements (1) A subsidy layering review must be
conducted; (2) The agency must complete site selection requirements; (3) HQS inspections must be performed by
an independent entity according to 24 CFR 983.59(b) or 24 CFR 983.103(f), unless MTW waiver 5.c. or an Agency-
Specific Waiver is implemented; (4) The agency is subject to Notice PIH 2013-27 where applicable, or successor;
and (5) Property must be owned by a single-asset entity of the agency, see Notice PIH 2017-21. The HACSC has an
approved MTW waiver to conduct its own inspections for PHA-owned or controlled units.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Decreased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households?

New admissions and currently assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
The MTW activity applies to all family types

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?
The MTW activity applies to specific tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers

Please describe which tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers participate in the
MTW activity.

Applies only to units owned or controlled by the PHA.

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation

The HACSC eliminated the independent third-party selection process and competitive process in the award of PBV’s
to properties owned or controlled by the agency when the agency is not engaged in an initiative to improve, develop,
or replace a public housing property or site.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Page 24 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

9.h. - Limit Choice Mobility for PBV Units (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative

HACSC will limit moves from PBV units using a Housing Choice Voucher for 24 months after PBV move-in for
applicants coming from site-based waiting lists or from non-waiting list referral programs. PBV Residents coming
from the HCV waiting list will continue to have portability with a Housing Choice Voucher after 12 months. This change
ensures that households electing to move into a PBV unit cannot convert to an HCV after only one year, effectively
bypassing the HCV waitlist. Additionally, it decreases the administrative burden for staff after initial intake. HACSC
will comply with all safe harbor requirements including (1) Portability under this activity must not be restricted for more
than 24 months; (2) The agency must have a clear and uniform policy in place to address how move requests are
received and how they are approved/denied for PBV households; and (3) Participants must still retain the ability to
request a tenant-based voucher for reasonable accommodation according to existing rules.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Decreased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation

The Housing Authority has not yet implemented this waiver.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Page 25 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

10.d. HCV — Modify or Eliminate the Contract of Participation (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative

The agency is authorized to modify the terms of or eliminate the FSS Contract of Participation (HUD-52650), in lieu
of a local form. The agency may modify the terms of the Contract of Participation to align with adjustments made to
its MTW FSS Program using MTW flexibility. Further, the agency may discontinue use of the Contract of Participation
and instead employ a locally-developed agreement that codifies the terms of participation. The proposed activity will
meet all of the applicable safe harbor requirements in the Operations Notice.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Self Sufficiency

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Increased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households.

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households

New admissions and currently assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
The MTW activity applies only to selected family types.

Please select the family types subject to this MTW activity:

Other — another specifically defined target population or populations. Please describe this target population:
Participants in the FSS Program

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?
The MTW activity applies to specific tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers.

Please describe which tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers participate in the
MTW activity.

The MTW activity applies to all tenant-based units and to all properties with project-based vouchers

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

N/A

Does this MTW activity require a hardship policy?
No

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Does the MTW activity require an impact analysis?
No

10.e. FSS Program with MTW Flexibility Activities — Policies for Addressing Increases in Family Income

Page 26 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative

HACSC proposes to increase the FSS Program incentives for income growth, resident participation, education and
training outcomes. These new incentives could motivate and support residents to realize a higher degree of economic
independence. HACSC proposes two parts to the escrow payment: (1) The existing monthly deposit to a participant’s
escrow account when they have increased earned income that results in a Total Tenant Payment (TTP) over the
baseline set when they join FSS. (2) Specific dollar amounts, to be established annually, payable to a participant’s
escrow account based on specific achievements such as completion of financial literacy education, completion of
vocational training, or maintaining employment for specified periods of time. Some of these incentive payments result
in an immediate deposit to the escrow account while others would not be calculated and paid until a successful
program graduation.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Self Sufficiency

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Increased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households.

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households

New admissions and currently assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
The MTW activity applies only to selected family types.

Please select the family types subject to this MTW activity:

Other — another specifically defined target population or populations. Please describe this target population:
Participants in the FSS Program

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?
The MTW activity applies to all tenant-based units and to all properties with project-based vouchers.

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity's previous Fiscal Year's narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

N/A

Does this MTW activity require a hardship policy?
No

Does the hardship policy apply to more than this MTW activity?
No.

Has the MTW agency modified the hardship policy since the last submission of the MTW Supplement?
N/A

How many hardship requests have been received associated with this activity in the past year?
N/A

Page 27 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Does the MTW activity require an impact analysis?
No

Does the impact analysis apply to more than this MTW activity?
N/A

10.e. - Policies for Addressing Increases in Family Income:

How will the MTW agency treat increased earnings for families participating in the FSS Program with MTW
flexibility

HACSC proposes two parts to the escrow payment:

(1) The existing monthly deposit to a participant’s escrow account when they have increased earned income that
results in a Total Tenant Payment (TTP) over the baseline set when they join FSS. This would be no change to how
it is calculated without MTW flexibility.

(2) In addition to the standard increases to the escrow account, specific incentive payment amounts, to be established
annually, payable to a participant’s escrow account based on specific achievements such as completion of financial
literacy education, completion of vocational training, or maintaining employment for specified periods of time. Some
of these incentive payments result in an immediate deposit to the escrow account while others would not be calculated
and paid until a successful program graduation.

Page 28 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

14.a. - Waive Initial HQS Inspection Requirement (HCV)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative.

HACSC may, at their discretion, waive the initial HQS inspection requirement for PSH residents transitioning into
voucher-based assistance who are remaining in their unit. Waiving the initial HQS inspection will decrease costs and
increase efficiency, allowing the PSH household to transition to voucher-based assistance seamlessly without the
disruption of inspection. Participants retain the right to request inspection at any time.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness; Housing choice

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Decreased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households?

Currently assisted households only

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
The MTW activity applies only to selected family types

Please select the family types subject to this MTW activity.
Other — another specifically defined target population or populations.

If Other Selected in Previous Question: Please describe this target population in the text box.
Only residents of Permanent Supportive Housing Programs.

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?
The MTW activity applies to specific tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers.

Please describe which tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers participate in the
MTW activity.

Tenant-based Permanent Supportive Housing units from which resident will transition into a tenant-based or project-
based voucher unit.

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation

The Housing Authority has implemented this waiver and now allows discretion for PSH residents transitioning to
voucher-based assistance and staying in their current unit to potentially bypass the Initial HQS inspection. This
streamlined approach aims to enhance efficiency and minimize costs during transitions, while participants retain the
option to request an inspection at their convenience.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

14.b.HCV - Allow Income Calculations from Partner Agencies (HCV)

Page 29 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative.

HACSC may, at their discretion, utilize the income calculations and documentation from partner agencies for PSH
households transitioning to voucher-based assistance, provided that income calculations must be determined in
accordance with 24 CFR 5.609 and that any income calculations accepted from partner agencies must have been
calculated within the past year. Utilizing the income calculations and documentation from partner agencies will
decrease costs and increase efficiency, allowing the PSH household to transition to voucher-based assistance quickly
and seamlessly without completing redundant paperwork and procuring verification documents, which can be
extremely challenging for vulnerable populations. The Agency shall comply with all Safe Harbor provisions including
14.b.iv: Screenings for lifetime sex offender status and convictions of drug-related criminal activity for manufacture
or production of methamphetamine on the premises of federally assisted housing must continue and are not waivable.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Decreased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households?

Currently assisted households only

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
The MTW activity applies only to selected family types

Please select the family types subject to this MTW activity.
Other — another specifically defined target population or populations.

If Other Selected in Previous Question: Please describe this target population in the text box.
Only residents of Permanent Supportive Housing Programs transitioning to a voucher.

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?
The MTW activity applies to specific tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers

Please describe which tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers participate in the
MTW activity.

Tenant-based Permanent Supportive Housing units from which resident will transition into a tenant-based or project-
based voucher unit.

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation

The Housing Authority has implemented a waiver allowing the use of partner agency income calculations and
documentation, aligning with 24 CFR 5.609 (defining annual income) and within a one-year timeframe. This measure
is aimed at streamlining transitions, reducing costs, and simplifying the process for PSH households by eliminating
redundant paperwork and easing document verification burdens, especially for vulnerable populations.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

14.c.HCV - Aligning Tenant Rents and Utility Payments Between Partner Agencies (HCV)

Page 30 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative.

HACSC may, at their discretion, adjust the subsidy for PSH residents transitioning into voucher-based assistance to
align the tenant’s portion of rent with the PSH program they are transitioning from. If a PSH tenant is transitioning
from a program with a different subsidy structure, the transition could result in a significant increase in the tenant’s
contribution of rent, potentially resulting in displacement from their current unit. Having the flexibility to align the
voucher subsidy with the subsidy from the PSH program will avoid increases in tenant rent burden and the potential
for displacement.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Housing choice

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Increased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to both new
admissions and currently assisted households?

Currently assisted households only

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
The MTW activity applies only to selected family types

Please select the family types subject to this MTW activity.
Other — another specifically defined target population or populations.

If Other Selected in Previous Question: Please describe this target population in the text box.
Only residents of Permanent Supportive Housing Programs transitioning to a voucher.

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?
The MTW activity applies to specific tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers

Please describe which tenant-based units and/or properties with project-based vouchers participate in the
MTW activity.

Tenant-based Permanent Supportive Housing units from which resident will transition into a tenant-based or project-
based voucher unit.

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation

The Housing Authority has implemented a waiver enabling the adjustment of subsidies for PSH residents transitioning
to voucher-based assistance, aligning with the tenant's previous rent contributions from their PSH program. This
measure aims to prevent substantial increases in tenant rent payments during transitions between programs with
varying subsidy structures, thereby mitigating the risk of displacement for affected individuals.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Page 31 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

17.c. - Housing Development Programs

Describe the MTW activity, the MTW agency's goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW
activity contributes to a larger initiative.

HACSC intends to use MTW funding to acquire, renovate and/or build affordable units that are not public housing
units. Eligible activities may include gap financing or construction costs for development of affordable housing,
conducted by the PHA or a PHA-controlled affiliate or by a non-PHA affordable housing developer, including but not
limited to development of tax credit units, or affordable units funded with any other local, state, or federal funds.
HACSC will not spend more than 10% of its HAP budget on local, non-traditional activities. Families receiving housing
or services through local, non-traditional activities must meet the definition of low-income. Local, non-traditional
development activities will be conducted in accordance with the applicable requirements of PIH Notice 2011-45 and
the MTW Operations Notice. The Agency shall comply with Safe Harbor provisions requiring compliance with Section
30 of the 1937 Housing Act and that any MTW Funding awarded to a third-party provider must be competitively
awarded.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Housing choice

What are the cost implications of this MTW activity? Pick the best description of the cost implications based
on what you know today.

Increased expenditures

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation

The Housing Authority has provided $8 million of LNT funding for the construction of a 20-unit affordable housing
development called Natural Bridges in Santa Cruz. That development is helping the Housing Authority reach its goal
of providing new affordable housing opportunities to program participants in the community. Construction at Natural
Bridges was completed in December 2024, and the process of moving tenants in has commenced.

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Page 32 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\O - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Table 17.c.1

Housing Development Programs that the MTW Agency plans to commit Funds to in Fiscal Year

Type of
MTW Number Number Number Number
MTW Role: _Agens:y Number | Total of of of of
Acquisition, | Financing: Units Units Units Units
Name of Development Rehabilita- Gap of Number b b b
and Address tion or New | _ . |Affordable| of J by v v
Construct- | Financing, Unit Unit Afford- Afford- Afford- Afford-
; . nits nits o
ion PTax Cre:[t ability ability ability ability
artnership 80% AMI | 50% AMI | 309, AMI Other
or Other
Chanticleer
) New
2021-2031 Chanticleer Ave . TBD 50 50 0 0 0 N/A
Construction
Santa Cruz, CA 95062
Portola
3501 Portola Avenue Acquisition TBD 0 0 0 0 0 0
Santa Cruz CA 95062
Housing Development Programs that the MTW Agency plans to spend funds on in Fiscal Year
Type of Number | Number Number Number
. [MTW Agency of of of
MTW Role: Financing: | Number | Total . o . .
Acquisition, Units Units Units Units
Name of Development Rehabilita- Gap of Number b b b
and Address tion or New| Financing, |Affordable| of . by . .
Construct- X . . Afford- Afford- Afford- Afford-
o Tax Credit Units Units . ability . .
Partnership ability ability ability
or Other 80% AMI | 50% AMI | 30% AMI Other
Chanticleer
) New
2021-2031 Chanticleer Ave . TBD 50 50 0 0 0 N/A
Construction
Santa Cruz, CA 95062
Portola
3501 Portola Avenue Acquisition TBD 0 0 0 0 0 0
Santa Cruz CA 95062

Page 33 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\0 - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Table 17.c.2

Form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021)

Housing Development Programs that the MTW Agency committed funds to in prior Fiscal Year

Santa Cruz CA 95062

Type of Number | Number Number Number
. [MTW Agency of of of
MTW. R.qle. Financing: | Number | Total . o . .
Acquisition, Units Units Units Units
Name of Development Rehabilita- Gap of Number b b b
and Address tion or New| Financing, |Afford-able| of y by y y
Construct- X 5 : Afford- Afford- Afford- Afford-
. Tax Credit Units Units . o . .
ion Partnership ability ability ability ability
or Other 80% AMI | 50% AMI | 30% AMI Other
Natural Bridges Apartments New Gap Financing
415 Natural Bridges Drive | Construction or 20 20 0 20 0 0
Construction
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
Chanticleer
2021-2031 Chanticleer Ave Acquisition TBD 50 50
Santa Cruz, CA 95062
Portola
3501 Portola Avenue Acquisition TBD 0 0 0 0 0 0
Santa Cruz CA 95062
Housing Development Programs that the MTW Agency spent funds on in prior Fiscal Year
Type of Number | Number Number Number
. [MTW Agency of of of
MTW Role: Financing: | Number | Total . o . .
Acquisition, Units Units Units Units
Name of Development Rehabilita- Gap of Number b b b
and Address tion or New| Financing, |Afford-able| of . by . .
Construct- X . . Afford- Afford- Afford- Afford-
- Tax Credit Units Units . o . .
ion Partnership ability ability ability ability
or Other 80% AMI | 50% AMI | 30% AMI Other
Natural Bridges Apartments New Gap Financing
415 Natural Bridges Drive | Construction or 20 20 0 20 0 0
Construction
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
Chanticleer
2021-2031 Chanticleer Ave Acquisition TBD 50 50
Santa Cruz, CA 95062
Portola
3501 Portola Avenue Acquisition TBD 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revision Date 10/22/2025

Page 34 of 38

S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\0 - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx




D. Safe Harbor Waivers.

Will the MTW agency submit a request for approval of a Safe Harbor Waiver this year?
D1 Ne-Yes

E. Agency-Specific Waiver(s).

Agency-Specific Waiver(s) for HUD Approval:

The MTW demonstration program is intended to foster innovation and HUD encourages MTW agencies,
in consultation with their residents and stakeholders, to be creative in their approach to solving affordable
housing issues facing their local communities. For this reason, flexibilities beyond those provided for in
Appendix | may be needed. Agency-Specific Waivers may be requested if an MTW agency wishes to
implement additional activities, or waive a statutory and/or regulatory requirement not included in Appendix
l.

In order to pursue an Agency-Specific Waiver, an MTW agency must include an Agency-Specific Waiver
request, an impact analysis, and a hardship policy (as applicable), and respond to all of the mandatory core
questions as applicable.

For each Agency-Specific Waiver(s) request, please upload supporting documentation, that includes: a) a
full description of the activity, including what the agency is proposing to waive (i.e., statute, regulation,
and/or Operations Notice), b) how the initiative achieves one or more of the 3 MTW statutory objectives,
¢) a description of which population groups and household types that will be impacted by this activity, d)
any cost implications associated with the activity, e) an implementation timeline for the initiative, f) an impact
analysis, g) a description of the hardship policy for the initiative, and h) a copy of all comments received at
the public hearing along with the MTW agency's description of how the comments were considered, as a
required attachment to the MTW Supplement.

E.A

Will the MTW agency submit a request for approval of an Agency-Specific Waiver this year?

Yes.

E.1.a PBV Independent Entity Requirements 2
E.1.b Alternative Development Cost Limits 4
E1.cPBV Subsidy Standards 2

E.1.d Place HCV families on PHA-Managed PBV Site-Based Waitlists

N

Page 35 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\0 - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Agency-Specific Waiver(s) for which HUD Approval has been received: Does the MTW agency
have any approved Agency-Specific Waivers?

Yes:
E.2
A. Allow use of Tenant Income Certification (TIC) for PBV eligibility determination.

Has there been a change in how the waiver is being implemented from when it was originally|
approved?

Yes.
If there has been a change, please provide a description of what has changed.

HACSC initially implemented as approved, however we revised the waiver effective
7/1/2024 to: For PBV units that also are subject to the requirements of the Low-Income
Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Program, HACSC proposes to use the TIC form required
under the LIHTC Program as verification of the family’s income and assets. Owners of
PBV units that receive LIHTCs must comply with Federal LIHTC regulations, which are
similar to HCV regulations regarding verification of income and assets when
determining and recertifying income eligibility of residents. The TIC will only be used
as verification of income and assets.

This MTW activity applies to:

Both new admissions and currently assisted households

B. Extend Zero HAP participation from 180 days to 360 days.

Has there been a change in how the waiver is being implemented from when it was originally|
approved?

No.

C. PBV Subsidy Standards

Has there been a change in how the waiver is being implemented from when it was originally;
approved?
No.

F. Public Housing Operating Subsidy Grant Reporting.

Total Public Housing Operating subsidy amount authorized, disbursed by 9/30, remaining, and deadline for
FA disbursement, by Federal Fiscal Year for each year the PHA is designated an MTW agency.

Federal Fiscal [Total Operating Subsidy |[How Much PHA Remaining Not Yet Deadline
Year (FFY) |Authorized Amount Disbursed by the 9/30 |Disbursed
Reporting Period

0 0 0 0 N/A

Page 36 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\0 - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



G. MTW Statutory Requirements.

75% Very Low Income - Local, Non-Traditional.

HUD will verify compliance with the statutory requirement that at least 75% of the households assisted by
the MTW agency are very low-income for MTW public housing units and MTW HCVs through HUD
systems. The MTW PHA must provide data for the actual families housed upon admission during the PHA's

GA1 most recently completed Fiscal Year for its Local, Non-Traditional program households.

Number of Local, Non-Traditional Households Admitted

Income Level in the Fiscal Year*

80%-50% Area Median Income

49%-30% Area Median Income

0
0
Below 30% Area Median Income 0
0

Total Local, Non-Traditional Households

*Local, non-traditional income data must be provided in the MTW Supplement form until such time that it can be submitted
in IMS-PIC or other HUD system.

G.2 Establishing Reasonable Rent Policy.

Has the MTW agency established a rent reform policy to encourage employment and self-sufficiency?
Yes

G.3 Substantially the Same (STS) — Local, Non-Traditional.

Please provide the total number of unit months that
families were housed in a local, non-traditional rental 0
subsidy for the prior full calendar year.

Please provide the total number of unit months that 0
families were housed in a local, non-traditional housing
development program for the prior full calendar year.

Page 37 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\0 - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Number of units developed under the local, non-traditional housing development activity that were available for
occupancy during the prior full calendar year:

Popu- if # of # of Was this Property | What was

PROPERTY NAME/I 071 2 3 4 5 6+ | TOT| 1ation ‘Populatio| Section Section Made Available the Total
ADDRESS BRI AL n Type'is 504 504 for Initial Amount of
BR| BR| BR | BR| BR UNIT Type Other Accessiblel Access Occupancy during | MTW Funds

S .| ible the Prior Full Invested

(Mobility) (Hearin Calendar Year? into the

gl Property?

Vision)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
G4 Comparable Mix (by Family Size) — Local, Non-Traditional.

To demonstrate compliance with the statutory requirement to continue serving a 'comparable mix" of families by
family size to that which would have been served without MTW, the MTW agency will provide the number of families
occupying local, non-traditional units by household size for the most recently completed Fiscal Year in the provided
table.

Occupied Number of Local, Non-Traditional units by

Famfly Size: Household Size

1 Person

2 Person

3 Person

4 Person

5 Person

6+ Person

O (lO|lO|lO|O|O]| O

Totals

H. Public Comment

Pending Public Hearings scheduled for 12/10/2025.

l. Evaluations.

No known evaluations.

Page 38 of 38
Revision Date 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual Submission\Word
Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\0 - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission.docx



Hardship Policy
Activity 1.h. — Tenant Payment as a Modified Percentage of Income

The MTW Operations Notice requires that HACSC implement a hardship policy for MTW activity
1.h. The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz (HACSC) will utilize this hardship
policy during its intake and recertification processes.

Activity 1.h. allows HACSC to establish a total tenant payment (TTP) based on up to 35% of
monthly adjusted income.

It is not anticipated that any household’s assistance will be terminated as a result of this activity,
however, if this situation arises, HACSC will consider if a household qualifies for a hardship
exemption at the time of potential termination of assistance that is due to this activity.

HUD requires that the hardship policy address the following potential situations:

e The family has lost eligibility for or is awaiting an eligibility determination for a federal,
state, or local assistance program. This includes a family member who is a noncitizen
lawfully admitted for permanent residence under the Immigration and Nationality Act who
would be entitled to public benefits but for Title IV of the Personal Responsibility and
Work Opportunity Act of 1996.

A hardship will be considered to exist if the loss of eligibility, or impending eligibility
determination, for a federal, state, or local assistance program has an impact on the
family’s ability to pay the tenant’s portion of rent.

For a family waiting for a determination of eligibility, the hardship period will end as of the
first of the month following:

(1) implementation of federal, state, or local assistance program, if approved, or
(2) the decision to deny assistance. A family whose request for assistance for a
federal, state, or local assistance program is denied may request a hardship
exemption based upon one of the other allowable hardship circumstances.

o The family would be evicted because it is unable to pay the tenant’s portion of rent.
For a family to qualify under this provision, the cause of the potential eviction must be
the family’s inability to pay rent to the owner or tenant-paid utilities.

e Family income has decreased because of changed family circumstances, including the
loss of employment. In most instances, family income decreases will not constitute a
hardship exemption, as the tenant portion of rent will also decrease proportionally.
However, HACSC may determine that a family income decrease or change in family
circumstance results in a temporary or ongoing hardship. Individual family circumstances
will be considered on a case-by-case basis.

e A death has occurred in the family. HACSC may determine that a death in the family
results in a temporary or ongoing hardship. Individual family circumstances will be
considered on a case-by-case basis.

Revised 10/22/2025

S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended
Annual Submission\Word Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\1.h. Tenant Payment as
Modified Percentage of Income - Hardship Policy .docx

Page 39 of 92



Request for Hardship

When a family requests a hardship exemption, the PHA must suspend the modified TTP
beginning the first of the month following the family’s request. The PHA then determines
whether the financial hardship exists and whether the hardship is temporary or long-term.

Temporary Hardship

HACSC defines temporary hardship as a hardship expected to last 90 days or less. If the
HACSC determines that a qualifying financial hardship is temporary, HACSC must suspend the
modified TTP for the 90-day period beginning the first of the month following the date of the
family’s request for a hardship exemption. At the end of the 90-day suspension period, the
family must resume payment of the modified TTP. HACSC also may determine that
circumstances have changed and the hardship is now a long-term hardship.

Long-term Hardship

Long-term hardship is defined as a hardship expected to last more than 90 days. If HACSC
determines that the financial hardship is long-term, HACSC must exempt the family from the
modified TTP requirement for so long as the hardship continues. The exemption will apply from
the first of the month following the family’s request until the end of the qualifying hardship.

No Financial Hardship
If HACSC determines that the family is not eligible for a hardship exemption, HACSC will
reinstate the modified TTP.

Determination of Hardship
When a hardship is determined to exist, the modified TTP is suspended, and the TTP reverts to
the standard TTP under 24 CFR 5.628.

Revised 10/22/2025

S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended
Annual Submission\Word Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\1.h. Tenant Payment as
Modified Percentage of Income - Hardship Policy .docx

Page 40 of 92



Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

1.h. Tenant Payment as Modified Percentage of Income

Waiver Description:

Describe the MTW activity (including what specifically the agency is proposing to waive), the MTW
agency’s goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW activity contributes to a larger
initiative.

HACSC intends to establish a modified TTP of up to 35% of monthly adjusted income with the goal of achieving cost
effectiveness. HACSC is requesting authorization to set the tenants’ portion of rent at “up to” 35% of monthly
adjusted income. However, depending upon HUD funding levels in FY 2026 and beyond, HACSC may use the flexibility
under this waiver to set the modified TTP at some other value above 30% but below 35% of monthly adjusted income.
The purpose of implementing this waiver is to maximize the number of families we can assist through the HCV
program based on current program funding levels. HACSC intends to implement a modified TTP in the range of 31%
to 35% of monthly adjusted income, at the lowest possible value within that range, while still achieving the cost
savings necessary to maximize the number of families that can be served within funding levels in FY 2026 and
beyond.

HACSC currently has HUD approval to utilize flexibility under activities 1.u. Standard Deductions and 1.w. Alternative
Income Inclusions/Exclusions. Should HUD approve this activity (1.h. Total Tenant Payment as a Percentage of Gross
Income) HACSC would comply with all applicable requirements that limit the combination of waivers 1.h with 1.u. or
1.w.

HACSC will observe the following safe harbors:

i. The Tenant Payment in public housing and the Tenant Payment in HCV must not exceed 32% of income for non-
elderly/non-disabled families if the agency is utilizing flexibility under activities 1.r., 1.t. and/or 1.v. (for 1.g.) or 1.s.,
1.u. and/or 1.w. (for 1.h.).

ii. The Tenant Payment in public housing and the Tenant Payment in HCV must not exceed 35% of income for non-
elderly/non-disabled families if the agency is not utilizing flexibility under activities 1.r., 1.t. and/or 1.v. (for 1.g.) or
1.s., 1.u. and/or 1.w. (for 1.h.).

iv. Agency must conduct an impact analysis. *

v. Agency must implement a hardship policy. *

HACSC is requesting a Safe Harbor Waiver to the following safe harbor:

iii. Agency must exempt elderly and disabled families from rent policy.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or
subsets of assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households.

Impact on the agency’s finances (e.g., how much will the activity cost, and any change in the
agency’s per family contributions).

The activity will result in reduced agency expenditures. The increase in TTP will benefit the agency’s finances
and decrease the agency’s per family contribution. If implemented at the 35% level for all households, the
agency is estimated to save approximately $7.9 million per year due to the decreased HAP costs. This

Page 41 of 92
Revised 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended
Annual Submission\Word Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\1.h. Tenant Payment as
Modified Percentage of Income - Impact Analysis.docx



Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

decrease in the average HAP will allow HACSC to provide rental assistance to more households within our
total available funding. This cost savings is roughly equivalent to the cost of housing nearly 300 families per
year. Therefore, this waiver could allow HACSC to avoid termination of assistance for existing families if there
are reductions in funding.

Impact on affordability of housing costs for affected families (e.g. any change in how much affected
families will pay towards their housing costs.)

The following estimates are based on implementation of a 35% TTP for all families.

Program wide, families are expected to see a median increase of $116 to their TTP. The median rent burden
is expected to increase from 30% to 35%.

Elderly families are expected to see a median increase of $65 to their TTP. The median rent burden is
expected to increase from 29% to 34%.

Disabled families are expected to see a median increase of $61 to their TTP. The median rent burden is
expected to increase from 29% to 34%.

Impact on the agency’s waitlist(s) (e.g., any change in the amount of time families are on the waitlist)
This MTW activity may benefit wait list applicants by reducing wait times. To the extent that this waiver can
allow HACSC to achieve cost effectiveness and maximize the number of families assisted within our
available budget, these cost savings will allow us to pull families from the wait list sooner than we would be
able to without the waiver.

Impact on the agency’s termination rate of families (e.g., any change in the rate at which families non-
voluntarily lose assistance from the agency)
This MTW activity would not impact the termination rate of families.

Impact on the agency’s current occupancy level in public housing and utilization rate in the HCV
program

This MTW activity may allow the agency to maintain or increase our utilization rate in the HCV program. By
reducing the average cost per households, we can assist more households (and maximize utilization) within
funding constraints.

Impact on meeting the MTW statutory goals of cost effectiveness, self-sufficiency, and/or housing
choice
This MTW activity would support the goal of cost effectiveness.

Impact on the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory requirements
This MTW activity would positively impact the agency’s ability to meet the statutory requirements by
increasing cost effectiveness.

Impact on the rate of hardship requests and the number granted and denied as a result of this
activity.
This MTW activity requires a hardship policy and may increase the number of hardship requests.

Across the other factors above, the impact on protected classes (and any associated disparate
impact).
None

Implementation timeline.
Upon approval of the Amended MTW Supplement.

Description of a hardship policy, if needed. The MTW agency must adopt a written policy for
determining when a requirement or provision of an MTW activity constitutes a financial or other
hardship for the family. The agency must include this policy as an attachment to its MTW Supplement

Page 42 of 92
Revised 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended
Annual Submission\Word Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\1.h. Tenant Payment as
Modified Percentage of Income - Impact Analysis.docx



Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

to the Annual PHA Plan. The agency may use a single hardship policy, as applicable, for multiple
MTW waivers or develop different hardship policies for different MTW waivers as it finds appropriate.

The hardship policy is described in the attached Hardship Policy.

Page 43 of 92

Revised 10/22/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended

Annual Submission\Word Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\1.h. Tenant Payment as
Modified Percentage of Income - Impact Analysis.docx



Safe Harbor Waiver

1.h. Tenant Rent Policies — Tenant Payment as a Modified Percentage of Income (HCV)

The specific safe harbor and its implementing regulation:

The specific safe harbor HACSC requests to waive for Activity 1.h. Tenant Rent Policies — Total Tenant
Payment as a Percentage of Income (HCV) is:

iii. “Agency must exempt elderly and disabled families from rent policy.”

The relevant implementing regulation is 24 CFR 5.628(a)(1).

The proposed MTW activity the MTW agency wishes to implement via this Safe Harbor Waiver:

The HACSC intends to apply this waiver to all households instead of excluding elderly and disabled
households, which is outside of Safe Harbor.

A description of the local issue and why such an expansion is needed to implement the MTW
activity:

The waiver being requested would allow the HACSC to apply up to 35% of monthly adjusted income
when calculating the Total Tenant Payment (TTP) for all families including elderly and disabled families.

Imposing higher costs on program participants, particularly elderly and disabled families, is not
something HACSC would choose to implement unless absolutely necessary.

The agency anticipates the HCV program will continue to experience increasing costs, and that federal
funding is unlikely to keep up with these costs. If this waiver is implemented at the 35% level for ALL
households, the agency is estimated to save approximately $7.9 million per year due to the decreased
HAP costs. This decrease in HAP expenses will allow HACSC to continue to assist the same number of
households while absorbing the reduction in federal funding. This cost savings of this waiver is roughly
equivalent to the cost of housing nearly 300 families per year. Therefore, this waiver could allow
HACSC to avoid termination of assistance for existing families if there are reductions in funding.

By exempting elderly and disabled families, HACSC would lose approximately $3.4 million in savings.
The cost of those lost savings is roughly equivalent to the cost of housing around 130 families per year.
Not achieving these cost savings could necessitate terminating program participants from the program
which could include elderly and disabled households.

For these reasons, we request the Safe Harbor waiver.

An impact analysis is required for this activity.

An impact analysis is required and is attached.

A description of the hardship policy for the MTW activity, if applicable:

A hardship policy is required and is attached.

C:\Users\raynep\Desktop\D. 1. Safe Harbor Waiver Request - iii. - Activity 1.h. - Tenant
Pmt as Modified Pct of Income.docx

Page 44 of 92



A copy of all comments received at the public hearing along with the MTW agency’s description of
how the comments were considered.

Pending 12/10/2025 Public Hearings.

C:\Users\raynep\Desktop\D. 1. Safe Harbor Waiver Request - iii. - Activity 1.h. - Tenant
Pmt as Modified Pct of Income.docx

Page 45 of 92



CA072
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz

AGENCY SPECIFIC WAIVER

Waiver Title: Place HCV families on PHA-Managed PBV Site-Based Waitlists

Regulation to Waive: Certain provisions of 24 CFR 982.204 and 24 CFR 982.206

HACSC seeks to waive certain provisions of 982.204 and 982.206, as necessary, to allow HACSC to place existing
participants of the HACSC tenant-based voucher program on HACSC-managed site-based waiting lists for Project Based
Voucher (PBV), without requiring the families to submit individual applications and without public notice of opening and
closing of the site-based waiting lists. This waiver would achieve administrative efficiencies and increase housing choice.

A specific example of how HACSC will utilize this waiver is offering opportunities for continued assistance to EHV-assisted
families whose rental assistance program is ending. The flexibility under this waiver will expand the universe of possible
PBV units which may be offered to such families, increasing the likelihood that they will have continued rental assistance
after the EHV program funding is exhausted. Time is of the essence so that opportunities may begin to be offered as
soon as possible while EHV program funding is running out.

Families will be permitted to remove their names from the site-based waiting list at any time and any housing opportunity
offered to them would be accepted only on a voluntary basis.

No hardships are anticipated due to implementation of this waiver.

An impact analysis is required and is attached.

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:

Housing Choice

Cost Implications

Neutral (no cost implications)

Different policy by household status/family types/sites? Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all
assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

If previous question is a subset.

Household Status. Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted
households, or to both new admissions and currently assisted households?

New admissions and currently assisted households

If waiver doesn’t apply to all assisted households:
Family Types. Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
The MTW activity applies to all family types.

If not all assisted households are selected.
For HCV activities:

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?

Page 46 of 92

Revision Date 10/22/2025

S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended
Annual Submission\Word Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\E.1.d ASW Waiver
Request - Place HCV families on PHA-Managed PBV Site-Based Waitlists.docx




CA072
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz

The MTW activity applies to all HCV tenant-based units and all PHA-owned properties with site-based waiting lists for
project-based vouchers

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Does this MTW activity require a Hardship Policy:
No

Does the MTW activity require an impact analysis?

Yes

Does the impact analysis apply to more than this MTW activity?
No

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

N/A

Comments received at the public hearing for the Agency-Specific waiver and the agency’s description of how
the comments were considered.

PENDING PUBLIC COMMENT 12/10/2025

Page 47 of 92

Revision Date 10/22/2025

S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended
Annual Submission\Word Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\E.1.d ASW Waiver
Request - Place HCV families on PHA-Managed PBV Site-Based Waitlists.docx




Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

IMPACT ANALYIS
E1.d

Agency Specific Waiver Title: Place HCV families on PHA-Managed PBV Site-Based Waitlists

Regulation to Waive: Certain provisions of 24 CFR 982.204 and 24 CFR 982.206

Describe the MTW activity (including what specifically the agency is proposing to waive), the MTW agency’s
goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW activity contributes to a larger initiative.

HACSC seeks to waive certain provisions of 982.204 and 982.206, as necessary, to allow HACSC to place existing
participants of the HACSC tenant-based voucher program on HACSC-managed site-based waiting lists for Project
Based Voucher (PBV) units, without requiring the families to submit individual applications and without public notice of
opening and closing of the site-based waiting lists. This waiver would achieve administrative efficiencies and increase
housing choice.

A specific example of how HACSC will utilize this waiver is offering opportunities for continued assistance to EHV-
assisted families whose rental assistance program is ending. The flexibility under this waiver will expand the universe
of possible PBV units which may be offered to such families, increasing the likelihood that they will have continued
rental assistance after the EHV program funding is exhausted.

Families will be permitted to remove their names from the site-based waiting list at any time and any housing
opportunity offered to them would be accepted only on a voluntary basis.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Housing Choice

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to a subset or subsets of assisted households.

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
This MTW activity applies to all family types.

Impact on the agency’s finances (e.g., how much will the activity cost, and any change in the agency’s per
family contributions).

No change to agency’s finances. No change to agency’s per family contributions.

Impact on affordability of housing costs for affected families (e.g. any change in how much affected families
will pay towards their housing costs.)

No change in housing costs for families.

Impact on the agency’s waitlist(s) (e.g., any change in the amount of time families are on the waitlist)

This MTW activity may reduce the amount of time that families are on the waiting list as this will expand the number of
PBV units that a family may be eligible for.

Revision Date 10/22/2025

S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual
Submission\Word Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\E.1.d ASW Impact Analysis - Place HCV
families on PHA-Managed PBV Site-Based Waitlists.docx

Page 48 of 92



Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

Impact on the agency’s termination rate of families (e.g., any change in the rate at which families non-
voluntarily lose assistance from the agency)

This MTW activity may reduce the termination rate of families because it will allow families more flexibility to live in PBV
units and changing their family size or composition may no longer result in them needing to vacate a PBV unit.

Impact on the agency’s current occupancy level in public housing and utilization rate in the HCV program

This MTW activity is anticipated to improve the utilization rate of PBV units by expanding the pool of eligible families.

Impact on meeting the MTW statutory goals of cost effectiveness, self-sufficiency, and/or housing choice

This MTW activity improves housing choice.

Impact on the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory requirements

This MTW activity positively impacts the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory requirements.

Impact on the rate of hardship requests and the number granted and denied as a result of this activity.

The agency anticipates that there will be no hardships associated with this waiver.

Across the other factors above, the impact on protected classes (and any associated disparate impact).

None.

Implementation timeline.

Upon approval of the MTW Supplement.

Description of a hardship policy, if needed. The MTW agency must adopt a written policy for determining when
a requirement or provision of an MTW activity constitutes a financial or other hardship for the family. The
agency must include this policy as an attachment to its MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan. The agency
may use a single hardship policy, as applicable, for multiple MTW waivers or develop different hardship
policies for different MTW waivers as it finds appropriate.

The agency anticipates that there will be no hardships associated with this waiver.

Page 49 of 92

Revision Date 10/22/2025

S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\Work in Progress\October 2025 Amended Annual
Submission\Word Versions of Amendment to Annual Submission Files\E.1.d ASW Impact Analysis - Place HCV
families on PHA-Managed PBV Site-Based Waitlists.docx



Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

IMPACT ANALYSIS
1.0.

1.0. Tenant Rent Policies — Initial Rent Burden (HCV)

Waiver Description: The agency may waive the maximum family share at initial occupancy of 40% of the
family’s monthly income.

Describe the MTW activity (including what specifically the agency is proposing to waive), the MTW
agency’s goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW activity contributes to a larger
initiative.

HACSC will waive the maximum family share at initial occupancy of 40% of the family’s monthly income.
HACSC will not allow the family share at initial occupancy to exceed 50% of the family’s monthly income.

Santa Cruz County is currently the most expensive rental market in the nation. HACSC requests this waiver
to promote increased housing choice for households, allowing HCV participants more options in their housing
search. Implementation of this activity allows participants to look for housing that may be more costly than
otherwise permitted under HUD regulations, but it also gives participants the option to live in lower poverty
neighborhoods with access to better schools and employment opportunities.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Housing Choice

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets
of assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to all assisted households.

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
The MTW activity applies to all family types.

Impact on the agency’s finances (e.g., how much will the activity cost, and any change in the agency’s
per family contributions).

No changes to the agency’s finances. No changes to the agency’s per family contributions.

Impact on affordability of housing costs for affected families (e.g. any change in how much affected
families will pay towards their housing costs.)

For families that voluntarily elect to exceed the standard 40% maximum at initial occupancy, their family
share may go up to as much as 50% of the family’s monthly income.

Page 50 of 92

Revision Date 4/8/2025
2025 MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan - 1.13.2025 - Rev. 4.8.2025 for Public Comment - FINAL



Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

Impact on the agency’s waitlist(s) (e.g., any change in the amount of time families are on the waitlist)
No change.

Impact on the agency’s termination rate of families (e.g., any change in the rate at which families non-
voluntarily lose assistance from the agency)

No change.

Impact on the agency’s current occupancy level in public housing and utilization rate in the HCV
program

No change.

Impact on meeting the MTW statutory goals of cost effectiveness, self-sufficiency, and/or housing choice
This waiver supports the MTW statutory goal of increasing housing choice.

Impact on the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory requirements.
This waiver positively impacts the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory requirements.

Impact on the rate of hardship requests and the number granted and denied as a result of this activity.
Not applicable, the agency does not anticipate any hardship due to implementation of this waiver.

Across the other factors above, the impact on protected classes (and any associated disparate impact).

None.

Implementation timeline.
Upon HUD approval of the MTW Supplement.

Description of a hardship policy, if needed. The MTW agency must adopt a written policy for
determining when a requirement or provision of an MTW activity constitutes a financial or other
hardship for the family. The agency must include this policy as an attachment to its MTW Supplement
to the Annual PHA Plan. The agency may use a single hardship policy, as applicable, for multiple MTW
waivers or develop different hardship policies for different MTW waivers as it finds appropriate.

None, not applicable, there is no hardship policy needed.

Page 51 to 92

Revision Date 4/8/2025
2025 MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan - 1.13.2025 - Rev. 4.8.2025 for Public Comment - FINAL



Medical Expense Hardship Policy
MTW Activity: 1.u. Standard Deduction (HCV)

Description of the MTW Activity

Under MTW Activity 1.u., Standard Deduction, the HACSC intends to establish a standard
deduction for medical expenses applicable to all elderly and disabled households with medical
expenses exceeding an established threshold. The standard deduction for medical expenses and the
threshold at which it applies shall both be indicated in the HACSC Section 8 Administrative Plan.
Eligible elderly and disabled families who claim medical expenses at or above the established
threshold will be required to sign a self-certification.

This MTW activity doesn’t impact the family’s eligibility to receive the elderly/disabled and
dependent deductions in accordance with §5.611(a)(1) — (a)(2).

For purposes of this MTW activity, medical expenses are defined in accordance with 24 CFR
§5.603: Health and medical care expenses are any costs incurred in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation,
treatment, or prevention of disease or payments for treatments affecting any structure or function
of the body. Health and medical care expenses include medical insurance premiums and long-term
care premiums that are paid or anticipated during the period for which annual income is computed.

For FY starting 7/1/2024, the proposed standard deduction for medical expenses is $1,500 for
elderly and disabled households with expenses at or above a $1,500 threshold. HACSC will
periodically adjust the amount of the standard medical deduction, adhering to HUD’s methodology
for calculating inflationary adjustments for the elderly/disabled family deduction, pursuant to a
pending HUD Federal Register notice.

The MTW activity applies to all tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers.

Hardship Policy

L Elderly and disabled households for whom application of the standard deduction for
medical expenses policy results in an increase in tenant share of rent may apply for the
Medical Expense Hardship.

II. Medical Expense Hardships must be requested by the household. To request a Medical
Expense Hardship, the household must complete a Medical Expense Hardship Request
form, complete a medical expense verification packet and may be asked to provide
supporting documents, receipts, and/or contact information of healthcare providers that
can verify. Staff will review and determine the total amount of unreimbursed allowable
medical expenses. HACSC will approve all hardship requests from elderly and disabled
households having verified eligible expenses above the threshold and for whom this
MTW activity results in an increase in tenant share of rent.

III.  Approved Medical Expense Hardships will provide a medical expense deduction equal
to the household’s total annual unreimbursed allowable medical expenses that exceed 3%
of household income. HACSC is using MTW authority to continue to use a 3% threshold

Revised 7.5.2024 Page 52 of 92



IV.

VL

Medical Expense Hardship Policy
MTW Activity: 1.u. Standard Deduction (HCV)

in lieu of following HOTMA requirements at 5.611(a)(3) that increase the threshold to
10% including Hardship Exemptions (general and phased in relief) at 5.611(c)(1);
5.611(c)(1)(D); and 5.611(c)(2).

The approved Medical Expense Hardship will remain in force until the household’s next
scheduled reexamination.

A Medical Expense Hardship denial may be issued, and the household will be sent a
denial letter, if the medical expenses submitted did exceed the threshold or included
ineligible expenses. If the household believes the decision is in error, they may request a
secondary review which much include supporting documentation sufficient for staff to
verify their allowable expenses exceed the threshold.

As a reasonable accommodation, upon request, the Medical Expense Hardship Request
form will be made available in an accessible format.

HACSC will provide residents with information about the Hardship policies on our webpage, in
Annual Recertification packets, and upon request. HACSC will consider if a resident qualifies for
a hardship exemption at the time of a potential termination of assistance that is due to this MTW
activity. HACSC will make the determination of whether a financial or other hardship exists
within a reasonable time after the family's request.

Page 53 of 92

Revised 7.5.2024



Impact Analysis
MTW Activity 1.u. Standard Deductions (HCV)

MTW Activity 1.u. Standard Deductions (HCV) — Impact Analysis

Waiver Description: Standard Deduction for Medical Expenses

Describe the MTW activity (including what specifically the agency is proposing to waive), the MTW
agency’s goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW activity contributes to a
larger initiative.

The HACSC intends to establish a standard deduction for medical expenses applicable to all elderly and
disabled households with medical expenses exceeding an established threshold. The standard deduction for
medical expenses and the threshold at which it applies shall both be indicated in the HACSC Section 8
Administrative Plan. Eligible elderly and disabled families who claim medical expenses at or above the
established threshold will be required to sign a self-certification.

This MTW activity doesn’t impact the family’s eligibility to receive the elderly/disabled and dependent
deductions in accordance with §5.611(a)(1) — (a)(2).

For purposes of this MTW activity, medical expenses are defined in accordance with 24 CFR §5.603: Health
and medical care expenses are any costs incurred in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention
of disease or payments for treatments affecting any structure or function of the body. Health and medical care
expenses include medical insurance premiums and long-term care premiums that are paid or anticipated during
the period for which annual income is computed.

For FY starting 7/1/2024, the proposed standard deduction for medical expenses is $1,500 for elderly and
disabled households with expenses at or above a $1,500 threshold. HACSC will periodically adjust the amount
of the standard medical deduction, adhering to HUD’s methodology for calculating inflationary adjustments
for the elderly/disabled family deduction, pursuant to a pending HUD Federal Register notice.

The MTW activity applies to all tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers.

Households may request a Medical Expense Hardship exemption to the standard deduction in accordance with
the HACSC Medical Expense Hardship Policy. Families requesting a hardship exception will be asked to
complete a medical expense verification packet, and may be asked to provide supporting documents, receipts,
and/or contact information of healthcare providers that can verify the expenses.

Staff currently spend a significant amount of time calculating medical expenses to determine a household’s
allowable medical expense deduction. By establishing a standard deduction for medical expenses, and by
allowing households eligible for the standard deduction to self-certify their medical expenses and applying a
standardized deduction, significant staff time will be saved. It’s anticipated that savings in staff time
previously spent calculating medical expenses can be redirected to direct client services or other programs
benefiting the clients served by HACSC.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness.

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets
of assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset of assisted households.

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
The MTW Activity applies to elderly and disabled family types.

Revision Date 7.5.2024

Page 54 of 92



Impact Analysis
MTW Activity 1.u. Standard Deductions (HCV)

Location: For HCV activities: Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and
properties with project-based vouchers?
Yes. The MTW activity applies to all tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers.

Impact on the agency’s finances (e.g., how much will the activity cost, and any change in the agency’s
per family contributions).
The change in annual total HAP is anticipated to be a reduction of $53,556.

Impact on affordability of housing costs for affected families (e.g. any change in how much affected
families will pay towards their housing costs.)

There are currently 5,370 households, 581 of which have medical expenses.

2,620 households will have no change.

2,495 households will have a decrease averaging $4.

255 households will have an increase averaging $54.

Impact on the agency’s waitlist(s) (e.g., any change in the amount of time families are on the waitlist);
No changes anticipated.

Impact on the agency’s termination rate of families (e.g., any change in the rate at which families non-
voluntarily lose assistance from the agency).
No changes anticipated.

Impact on the agency’s current occupancy level in public housing and utilization rate in the HCV
program.
No changes anticipated.

Impact on meeting the MTW statutory goals of cost effectiveness, self-sufficiency, and/or housing choice.
Anticipated to enhance the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory goal of cost effectiveness.

Impact on the rate of hardship requests and the number granted and denied as a result of this activity.
It is anticipated that some households experiencing an increase will submit hardship requests, but it is not yet
known how many. This will be easier to assess after the first year of implementation.

Across the other factors above, the impact on protected classes (and any associated disparate impact).
None anticipated.

Implementation timeline.
Upon HUD approval of the MTW Supplement for FY starting 7/1/2024.

Description of a hardship policy, if needed. The MTW agency must adopt a written policy for
determining when a requirement or provision of an MTW activity constitutes a financial or other
hardship for the family. The agency must include this policy as an attachment to its MTW Supplement
to the Annual PHA Plan. The agency may use a single hardship policy, as applicable, for multiple MTW
waivers or develop different hardship policies for different MTW waivers as it finds appropriate.

Elderly and disabled households for whom application of the standard deduction for medical expenses
policy results in an increase in tenant share of rent may apply for the Medical Expense Hardship.

Medical Expense Hardships must be requested by the household. To request a Medical Expense Hardship,
the household must complete a Medical Expense Hardship Request form, complete a medical expense
verification packet and may be asked to provide supporting documents, receipts, and/or contact information
of healthcare providers that can verify. Staff will review and determine the total amount of unreimbursed
allowable medical expenses. HACSC will approve all hardship requests from elderly and disabled
households having verified eligible expenses above the threshold and for whom this MTW activity results
in an increase in tenant share of rent.

Approved Medical Expense Hardships will provide a medical expense deduction equal to the household’s

Revision Date 7.5.2024
Page 55 of 92



Impact Analysis
MTW Activity 1.u. Standard Deductions (HCV)

total annual unreimbursed allowable medical expenses that exceed 3% of household income. HACSC is
using MTW authority to continue to use a 3% threshold in lieu of following HOTMA requirements at
5.611(a)(3) that increase the threshold to 10% including Hardship Exemptions (general and phased in relief)
at 5.611(c)(1); 5.611(c)(1)(D); and 5.611(c)(2).

The approved Medical Expense Hardship will remain in force until the household’s next scheduled
reexamination.

A Medical Expense Hardship denial may be issued, and the household will be sent a denial letter, if the
medical expenses submitted did exceed the threshold or included ineligible expenses. If the household
believes the decision is in error, they may request a secondary review which much include supporting
documentation sufficient for staff to verify their allowable expenses exceed the threshold.

As a reasonable accommodation, upon request, the Medical Expense Hardship Request form will be made
available in an accessible format.

HACSC will provide residents with information about the Hardship policies on our webpage, in Annual
Recertification packets, and upon request. HACSC will consider if a resident qualifies for a hardship
exemption at the time of a potential termination of assistance that is due to this MTW activity. HACSC will
make the determination of whether a financial or other hardship exists within a reasonable time after the
family's request.

Page 56 of 92

Revision Date 7.5.2024



Safe Harbor Waiver

1.w. Tenant Rent Policies — Alternative Income Exclusions (HCV)

The specific safe harbor and its implementing regulation:

The safe harbor for the Alternative Income Exclusion (HCV) waiver states that an agency must exempt
elderly and disabled individuals from this rent determination policy. The relevant implementing
regulation is the definition for Annual Income located at 24CFR5.609.

The proposed MTW activity the MTW agency wishes to implement via this Safe Harbor Waiver:

The HACSC intends to apply this waiver to all households instead of excluding elderly and disabled
households, which is outside of Safe Harbor.

A description of the local issue and why such an expansion is needed to implement the MTW
activity:

The waiver being requested would allow the HACSC to exclude income from MTW asset building
activities for the purpose of determining adjusted annual income used for calculating rental subsidy.
This waiver benefits households by reducing their contribution to rent through the exclusion of certain
income. The HACSC does not wish to prevent any eligible elderly and disabled households who may
receive asset-building and/or guaranteed income from the benefit of having those incomes excluded.

An impact analysis is required for this activity.

The proposed waiver will benefit households. No household will be adversely impacted by the
proposed waiver.

A description of the hardship policy for the MTW activity, if applicable: No hardship policy is needed
for this MTW activity, as the waiver being requested benefits households by reducing their
contribution to rent through the exclusion of certain income.

A copy of all comments received at the public hearing along with the MTW agency’s description of
how the comments were considered.

No comments were received at the public hearing.

Page 57 of 92




Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Hardship Policy
Activity 2.b. — Payment Standards — Fair Market Rents

Under MTW Activity 2.b., the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz (HACSC) will establish
payment standards for the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program that are between 80% and 120% of
the Fair Market Rent (FMR) for each applicable bedroom size. Without this MTW flexibility, payment
standards must be established between 90% and 110% of the applicable FMR.

By establishing more flexible payment standards, HACSC projects that overall program participants will
benefit and that additional housing opportunities will be affordable to HCV participants including housing
units in higher opportunity areas, i.e. areas with lower poverty rates and greater access to jobs, education,
services and other amenities. An additional projected benefit is that housing cost burdens may decrease
for some households living in units for which the payment standard increases.

The MTW Operations Notice requires that HACSC implement a hardship policy for MTW activity 2.b.
HACSC will review this hardship policy during its intake and recertification process. While it is highly
unlikely that any household’s assistance will be terminated as a result of this activity, if this situation
arises, HACSC will consider if a household qualifies for a hardship exemption at the time of potential
termination of assistance that is due to this activity.

HUD requires that the hardship policy address the following potential situations:

The family has experienced a decrease in income because of changed circumstances, including loss or
reduction of employment, death in the family, or reduction in or loss of earnings or other assistance.

Activity 2.b. will not result in decreases to household income and, therefore, will not create a hardship in
this situation. However, households who experience income decreases can request an interim
recertification in accordance with HACSC's existing Administrative Plan policies.

The family has experienced an increase in expenses, because of changed circumstances, for medical costs,
childcare, transportation, education, or similar items.

If HACSC reduces payment standards below 90% of FMR pursuant to Activity 2.b., some existing HCV
participants may experience an increase in total tenant payment (TTP) compared to their TTP prior to
implementation of the reduced payment standards. To eliminate any hardship caused by this activity,
HACSC will not apply the lower payment standard to families who have already leased units under the
higher standard until they move to a new unit. HACSC does not expect any hardship requests as a result
of this waiver and no secondary level of review will be required.

Page 58 of 92



Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis: Activity 2b

Waiver Number: 2.b.

Waiver Description: Payment Standards — Fair Market Rents

Describe the MTW activity (including what specifically the agency is proposing to waive), the MTW
agency’s goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW activity contributes to a
larger initiative.

HACSC proposes to waive the requirement to establish Payment Standards between 90% - 110% of
FMRs. Instead, HACSC proposes to establish Payment Standards between 80% - 120% of FMRs in
order to provide the agency with more flexibility to establish Payment Standards that better reflect
actual market rents.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

[ Cost effectiveness.
L1 Self-sufficiency.
Housing Choice

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or
subsets of assisted households?

The proposed waiver applies to all assisted households.

Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to
both new admissions and currently assisted households?

The proposed waiver applies to both new admissions and currently assisted households.

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?

The proposed waiver applies to all family types.

Please select the family types subject to this MTW activity.

The proposed waiver applies to all family types.

Impact on the agency’s finances (e.g., how much will the activity cost, and any change in the
agency’s per family contributions).

The proposed waiver is cost neutral. The cost of any particular payment standard will be analyzed
prior to establishment and implementation.

Impact on affordability of housing costs for affected families (e.g. any change in how much affected
families will pay towards their housing costs.)

The proposed waiver would allow HACSC to establish Payment Standards that better reflect market
rents with the goal of increasing housing choice and reducing rent burden for families.

Impact on the agency’s waitlist(s) (e.g., any change in the amount of time families are on the
waitlist);

The proposed waiver will not impact HACSCs waiting list.

Page 59 of 92




Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis: Activity 2b

Impact on the agency’s termination rate of families (e.g., any change in the rate at which families
non-voluntarily lose assistance from the agency);

The proposed waiver will not impact HACSCs termination rate.

Impact on the agency’s current occupancy level in public housing and utilization rate in the HCV
program

The proposed waiver could potentially improve the utilization rate of HCV program.

Impact on meeting the MTW statutory goals of cost effectiveness, self-sufficiency, and/or housing
choice

The proposed waiver will support housing choice by providing the agency with greater flexibility to
establish Payment Standards that reflect market rents.

Impact on the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory requirements;

The proposed waiver will not impact HACSCs ability to meet statutory requirements.

Impact on the rate of hardship requests and the number granted and denied as a result of this
activity.

HACSC does not anticipate hardship requests related to this waiver.

Across the other factors above, the impact on protected classes (and any associated disparate
impact).

HACSC does not anticipate any impact on protected classes as a result of this waiver.

Implementation timeline.

HACSC will implement this initiative upon approval of the MtW Supplement, Agency and
Administrative Plan, with an anticipated operation period beginning 7/1/2023.

Description of a hardship policy, if needed. The MTW agency must adopt a written policy for
determining when a requirement or provision of an MTW activity constitutes a financial or other
hardship for the family. The agency must include this policy as an attachment to its MTW
Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan. The agency may use a single hardship policy, as applicable, for
multiple MTW waivers or develop different hardship policies for different MTW waivers as it finds
appropriate.

HACSC has prepared “Hardship Policy Activity 2.b. — Payment Standards” for this activity which is
included with the MTW Supplement submission.

Page 60 of 92




5.1.b. Opt-Out Savings Account (HCV)

Statutes and Regulations Waived: Certain provisions of sections 23(b)-(f), and (n)(1) of the 1937 Act
and 24 CFR 984.101-105, 984.201-204, 984.301-306 and 984.401.

The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz (HACSC) — the agency - is authorized to provide
funds to assisted households with the goal of increasing savings of assisted households.

Narrative: Funds shall be provided in the form of a savings account that will accrue for at least one
year or until the account reaches $120; no contract of participation will be required; households do not
need to meet eligibility requirements in the FSS statute; all HCV assisted households shall be eligible to
participate in the savings program, regardless of elderly and/or disabled status; and the amounts of
contributions are not tied to income and contributions will be made whether or not there is a
corresponding increase in participant contribution. The HACSC shall select one randomly selected
treatment group and one deeply targeted treatment group in order to test our hypothesis that
targeting such an asset building intervention to deeply targeted population would result in more
significantly measurable positive outcomes than a randomly selected population of Section 8
participants.

Structure: The HACSC shall contribute a pre-determined, set amount of funds per household, per
month into an escrow or personal savings account for the benefit of each assisted household
participating in the savings program.

Eligibility: All Section 8 and Section 9 assisted households shall be eligible to participate in the savings
program, regardless of elderly and/or disabled status.

Implementation Period: The HACSC shall provide the monthly contributions to assisted households
participating in the savings program for at least 24 consecutive months.

Number of Households: The HACSC shall select one randomly selected treatment group and one
deeply targeted treatment group and shall offer the savings program to at least 25 Section 8 assisted
households per treatment group but in total not more than 50% of our total Section 8 assisted
households during the 24-month implementation period. The Asset Building Cohort evaluator may
assist the HACSC in randomly selecting assisted households to participate in the savings program as
needed.

Amount of Savings Contribution: The HACSC shall contribute at least $10 per month for the benefit of
each assisted household participating in the savings program. The HACSC shall not contribute more per
month for the benefit of each assisted household participating in the savings program than the
applicable fair market rent of the unit in which they reside, and this amount must be the same for each
assisted household participating in the savings program.

Access to Banking: The HACSC shall develop and implement a strategy to connect assisted households
participating in the savings program with banking resources in the community. Banking resources
should seek to maximize access to banking and minimize fees and other risks to the financial position of
assisted households. This strategy could be developed internally at the HACSC or in conjunction with a

Page 61 of 92




community partner organization. Assisted households participating in the savings program must have
or obtain a bank account in order to receive funds from the savings program.

Access to Funds by Assisted Households: The HACSC may opt to pre-fund the account with $120 or
more so that the assisted household may access funds immediately if needed. Alternatively, the HACSC
may establish guidelines wherein assisted households may receive funds for an urgent need before the
account has reached a balance of $120. The HACSC shall not place restrictions on how the funds are
utilized by the assisted household after the account has reached a balance of $120.

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:
Housing Choice

Self-Sufficiency

A MTW activity may apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of assisted
households by having a different policy by household status/family types/sites. This MTW activity
applies:

All assisted households

This MTW activity has the following cost implications:

Increased expenditures

The implementation timeline for the initiative is:

Upon approval of MTW Supplement, Agency and Administrative Plan, design of and approval by
evaluator of asset-building program, and training of staff.

Safe Harbors:

i. The PHA must continue to follow all requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

ii. 24 CFR 984.305(a) on accounting and reporting must be retained.

iii. The PHA must contribute at least $10 per month for the benefit of each assisted household
participating in the savings program.

iv. The PHA must not contribute more per month for the benefit of each assisted household
participating in the savings program than the applicable fair market rent of the unit in which they
reside.

v. The PHA must provide an opportunity for households to opt-out of this activity.

This MTW activity does not require an impact analysis.

This MTW activity does not require a hardship policy.

Comments received at the public and the agency’s description of how the comments were
considered. There were no comments received at the public hearing.

Page 62 of 92




2023 HUD-APROVED
AGENCY SPECIFIC WAIVERS
and
Associated
Impact Analysis

1. ASW Extend Zero HAP to 360 Days
2. ASW Use of TIC for PBV Eligibility

Page 63 of 92



Agency-Specific Waiver

1. 24 CFR 982.455 Automatic termination of HAP contract. Extend zero HAP participation
from 180 days to 360 days.

Waive: 24 CFR 982.455 Automatic termination of HAP contract. The HAP contract terminates
automatically 180 calendar days after the last housing assistance payment to the owner.

This activity waives certain provisions of 24 CFR 982.455(a) and extends the length of time a
household may stay on the HCV program after the last housing assistance payment (HAP) was
made to the owner to 360 days. This activity will impact all household types in the HCV program.
This extension of time gives incentives to families with children, and to all participants, to become
economically self-sufficient without losing their housing assistance after only 180 days without a
HAP payment. The additional time on the HCV program offers the household protection against
changes in their income and provides encouragement to the household that they can continue
maintaining their current income level after successfully doing so for a full year.

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:
XICost effectiveness

XlSelf-sufficiency

This initiative achieves one or more of the 3 MTW above statutory objectives by:

This activity promotes the MTW statutory goals of self-sufficiency and cost effectiveness. The
extension of time gives incentives to families with children, and to all participants, to become
economically self-sufficient without losing their housing assistance after only 180 days without a
HAP payment. The additional time on the HCV program offers the household protection against
changes in their income and provides encouragement to the household that they can continue
maintaining their current income level after successfully doing so for a full year.

A MTW activity may apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of assisted
households by having a different policy by household status/family types/sites. This MTW
activity applies:Xlto all assisted households

A MTW activity can apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to
both new admissions and currently assisted households. This MTW activity applies to:

XICurrently assisted households only

A MTW activity can apply to all family types or only selected family types. This MTW activity
applies to:

Xlall family types

An MTW activity can apply to a tenant-based and or project-based voucher.

XIThe MTW activity applies to all properties with project-based vouchers.

Page 64 of 92



https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=444d740de09ba7c23a920981c2dc1c13&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:B:Chapter:IX:Part:982:Subpart:J:982.455
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=f28cd009bafebfbfee3e005a25c73d32&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:B:Chapter:IX:Part:982:Subpart:J:982.455
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=9d649778ebbf57e8c7796ad6c83632dd&term_occur=999&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:B:Chapter:IX:Part:982:Subpart:J:982.455

This MTW activity has the following cost implications:

XINeutral

The implementation timeline for the initiative is:

Upon approval of MTW Supplement, approval of revised Administrative Plan and training of staff.

This MTW activity does require an impact analysis.

Hardship: No households will be adversely affected by this MTW activity. The proposed activity
allows families whose incomes have increased to the point that their rent is affordable without
subsidy and who are no longer receiving any rental subsidy to have additional time before the
automatic termination of their contract.

Comments received at the public hearing for the Agency-Specific waiver and the agency’s
description of how the comments were considered will be inserted after public hearing.

No comments were received at the public hearing.

Page 65 of 92




Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

Agency-Specific Waiver

Waiver Description: 24 CFR 982.455 Automatic termination of HAP contract. Extend zero HAP
participation from 180 days to 360 days.

Describe the MTW activity (including what specifically the agency is proposing to waive), the MTW
agency’s goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW activity contributes to a
larger initiative.

This activity waives certain provisions of 24 CFR 982.455(a) and extends the length of time a household may
stay on the HCV program after the last housing assistance payment (HAP) was made to the owner to 360
days. This activity will impact all household types in the HCV program. This extension of time gives
incentives to families with children, and to all participants, to become economically self-sufficient without
losing their housing assistance after only 180 days without a HAP payment. The additional time on the HCV
program offers the household protection against changes in their income and provides encouragement to
the household that they can continue maintaining their current income level after successfully doing so for
a full year.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Cost effectiveness.
Self-sufficiency.
O Housing Choice

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets
of assisted households?

The waiver applies only to currently assisted households.

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?

This waiver applies to all family types

Please select the family types subject to this MTW activity.

All family types.

Impact on the agency’s finances (e.g. how much will the activity cost, and any change in the agency’s per
family contributions.)

HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver is cost neutral and will not impact agency costs.

Impact on affordability of housing costs for affected families (e.g. any change in how much affected
families will pay towards their housing costs.)

HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver will not affect how much affected families will pay towards
housing costs. The proposed waiver is directly specifically to households whose incomes have increased to
the point where they are not receiving any subsidy whatsoever. The increase in time before automatic
termination of the HAP contracts provides an additional safety net in case the family experiences a decrease
in income and needs to resume receiving rental assistance.

Impact on the agency’s waitlist(s) (e.g., any change in the amount of time families are on the waitlist.)

HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver will not impact the amount of time families wait on the waiting
list.

Page 66 of 92




Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

Impact on the agency’s termination rate of families (e.g., any change in the rate at which families non-
voluntarily lose assistance from the agency.)

HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver may prevent some families from being terminated from the
program in the case of decreases in income.

Impact on the agency’s current occupancy level in public housing and utilization rate in the HCV program.

HACSC anticipates that to the extent this proposed waiver prevents families from being terminated, it
would not result in reductions to the utilization rate of the HCV program.

Impact on meeting the MTW statutory goals of cost effectiveness, self-sufficiency, and/or housing choice.

This proposed waiver will support the MTW statutory goal of self-sufficiency by providing incentives to
families with children, and to all participants, to become economically self-sufficient without losing their
housing assistance after only 180 days without a HAP payment. The additional time on the HCV program
offers the household protection against changes in their income and provides encouragement to the
household that they can continue maintaining their current income level after successfully doing so for a full
year.

Impact on the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory requirements.

HACSC does not anticipate that this waiver would result in any change in the Agency’s ability to meet the
MTW statutory requirements.

Impact on the rate of hardship requests and the number granted and denied as a result of this activity.

Given that this waiver would benefit the impacted families, the HACSC does not anticipate any hardship
requests resulting from this waiver.

Across the other factors above, the impact on protected classes (and any associated disparate impact.)

HACSC does not anticipate that this waiver would result in any disparate impact to any protected class.

Implementation timeline.

HACSC will implement this initiative upon approval of the MtW Supplement, Agency and
Administrative Plan, with an anticipated operation period beginning 7/1/2023.

Description of a hardship policy, if needed. The MTW agency must adopt a written policy for determining
when a requirement or provision of an MTW activity constitutes a financial or other hardship for the
family. The agency must include this policy as an attachment to its MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA
Plan. The agency may use a single hardship policy, as applicable, for multiple MTW waivers or develop
different hardship policies for different MTW waivers as it finds appropriate.

Not applicable. Given that this waiver would benefit the impacted families, the HACSC does not anticipate
any hardship requests resulting from this waiver.

Page 67 of 92




CA072
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz

Agency-Specific Waiver

Allow use of Low-Income Housing Credit (26 U.S.C. 42 ) (LIHTC) Tenant Income Certification
(TIC) for PBV eligibility determination.

Waive: 24 CFR Part 5 5.609(c)(3)Use of other programs' determination of income and 24
CFR Section 982.516 (family income and composition; regular and interim examinations) as
necessary to implement use of the Low-Income Housing Credit (26 U.S.C. 42 ) (LIHTC)
Tenant Income Certification (TIC) for PBV eligibility determination.

For PBV units that also use LIHTC, HACSC proposes to use the attached Tenant Income
Certification (TIC) form required under The Low-Income Housing Credit (26 U.S.C. 42 ) (LIHTC)
Program as verification of the income and assets.

Owners of PBV units that receive tax credits must already comply with Federal LIHTC
regulations which are similar to HCV regulations regarding verification of income and assets
when determining and recertifying income eligibility of residents. Therefore, at initial
eligibility and reexamination for each tenant residing in PBV units that also has LIHTC, the
owner and HACSC are duplicating efforts in the verification process. This causes unnecessary
delays in processing new tenants and creates redundant demands on clients to submit the
same documentation to both the owner and the HACSC.

Following language is excerpted from Federal Register / Vol. 88, No. 30 / Tuesday, February
14, 2023 / Rules and Regulations

HOTMA mandates that HUD allow PHAs and owners to use income determinations
from TANF block grants, Medicaid, and SNAP assistance. In addition, HUD

believes that the definition of adjusted gross income used for the EITC is

similar enough to the definition of income used by HUD to justify the inclusion of

the EITC on the list. In this final rule, HUD is adding several forms of assistance to the
list of means-tested public assistance that a PHA or owner may rely upon for

an alternative income determination under § 5.609(c)(3): LIHTC; WIC; the

SSI program; and other HUD programs, such as the HOME program. In addition, PHAs
or owners may use income determinations from other forms of means-tested Federal
public assistance if HUD has established a memorandum of understanding with the
agency administering the assistance. Because the use of outside

income determinations is permissive for PHAs or owners, PHAs or owners must
specify in their written admission and continued occupancy policies,

HCV administrative plan, or House Rules, as applicable, the policies that they

are adopting, including which programs from the HUD-approved list, if any, they will
accept and their method for choosing between potentially competing determinations
from different programs.

In response to questions received in public comments, HUD is also adding regulatory
language specifying how PHAs or owners that choose to use income determinations

Revision Date 9/14/2023
Page 68 of 92 Page 1 of 5



CA072
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz

from other programs are to verify the information. PHAs or owners are to use third-
party verification, which must include the tenant’s family size and composition and
state the family’s annual income. The verification must also be dated within the time
frame specified for the type of verification, including within the previous 12-month
period for purposes of the specified means-tested forms of Federal public assistance.
If the PHA or owner cannot obtain the required third-party verification, or if the
family disputes the determination, the PHA or owner must calculate the family’s
annual income using the methods established in § 5.609(c)(1) and (2) or in the
applicable program regulations.

In this rule, HUD, to the extent practicable and allowed by statute, is aligning
programmatic regulations and requirements across HUD programs. Aligning with
LIHTC is outside this rule’s scope, but HUD would note that income for

tenants occupying LIHTC projects is calculated in accordance with 26 U.S.C.

42(g)(4) (referencing 26 U.S.C. 142(d)(2)(B)), which says “income of individuals

and area median gross income shall be determined by the Secretary in a manner
consistent with determinations of lower income families and area median gross
income under section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937.” Section 1.42—
5(b)(1)(vii) of title 26, Code of Federal Regulations, has similar language that states,
“Itlenant income is calculated in a manner consistent with the determination of
annual income under Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 (‘Section
8’).” Therefore, HUD believes that LIHTC and HUD program income calculations

are currently aligned and will continue to be aligned when the changes in HOTMA are
codified. When a project is using multiple sources of HUD funding, HUD already has in
place programmatic policies and requirements on how to combine and administer
those multiple sources. For example, MFH addresses tenant rent issues for units with
LIHTC financing and HAP assistance in the Multifamily Occupancy Handbook. PHAs
and owners should continue to follow such policies.

The use of the TIC for income verification at PBV properties is consistent with the rules that
will be codified by HUD effective 1/1/2024:

Effective 1/1/2024
5.609(c)(3)Use of other programs’ determination of income.

(i) The PHA or owner may, using the verification methods in paragraph ©(3)(ii) of this
section, determine the family’s income prior to the application of any deductions
applied in accordance with § 5.611 based on income determinations made within the
previous 12-month period for purposes of the following means-tested forms of
Federal public assistance:

Page 63 of 32 Revision Date 9/14/2023

Page 2 of 5



CA072
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz

(A) The Temporary Assistance for Needy Families block grant (42 U.S.C. 601, et seq.).
(B) Medicaid (42 U.S.C. 1396 et seq.).

(C)The Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (42 U.S.C. 2011 et seq.).

(D) The Earned Income Tax Credit (26 U.S.C. 32) .

(E) The Low-Income Housing Credit (26 U.S.C. 42 ).

(F) The Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Woman, Infants, and Children (42
U.S.C.1786).

(G) Supplemental Security Income (42 U.S.C. 1381 et seq.).
(H) Other programs administered by the Secretary.

(1) Other means-tested forms of Federal public assistance for which HUD has
established a memorandum of understanding.

(J) Other Federal benefit determinations made in other forms of means-tested
Federal public assistance that the Secretary determines to have comparable reliability
and announces through the Federal Register .

(i) If a PHA or owner intends to use the annual income determination made by an
administrator for allowable forms of Federal means-tested public assistance under
this paragraph (c)(3), the PHA or owner must obtain it using the appropriate third-
party verification. If the appropriate third-party verification is unavailable, or if the
family disputes the determination made for purposes of the other form of Federal
means-tested public assistance, the PHA or owner must calculate annual income in
accordance with 24 CFR part 5, subpart F. The verification must indicate the tenant’s
family size and composition and state the amount of the family’s annual income. The
verification must also meet all HUD requirements related to the length of time that is
permitted before the third-party verification is considered out-of-date and is no
longer an eligible source of income verification.

The TIC form used by the LIHTC Program follows HUD Handbook 4350.3 for complete
instructions on verifying and calculating income, including acceptable forms of verification.
The form requires the client’s statement of income and assets, the client’s signature, and the
property owner’s certification that they verified the data provided by the client and is
therefore reliable documentation of the client’s income/asset profile.

For Project Based Voucher Applicants applying for PBV units at a property with low-income
housing tax credits the property management company conducts income and asset
verifications utilizing methods outlined in the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee
compliance manual following income and asset verification guidelines from chapter 5 of the
HUD handbook. Once property management completes verification of income and assets,

Page 70 of 92 Revision Date 9/14/2023
Page 3 of 5



CA072
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz

they compile the data on the Tenant Income Certification (TIC) form, which will be submitted
with consent from the applicant to the PHA along with the Housing Authority application
packet. The PHA will utilize the TIC as verification of income and assets for an applicant
household for initial certification. The PHA will conduct its standard background screening and
collect any additional information needed for the 50059 as part of the initial certification
process in addition to using the TIC as verification of income and assets.

The TIC form collects all information that is required for a PBV rent calculation except childcare
deduction, disability assistance deduction, medical expense deduction, and elderly family
deduction. The TIC form records income, income from assets, and identifies the utility
allowance. Information on the TIC also allows the HACSC to record dependent deductions.
HACSC will continue to allow households to supply any documentation that will permit them
to claim the other applicable deductions.

While the TIC does not collect all the information that is required for the Form 50058
submission to PIC, HACSC will collect all the appropriate data from the household. The TIC will
only be used as verification of income and assets for the income eligibility and rent calculation
processes.

The Housing Authority intends to continue use of Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) after
implementation of this Agency-Specific Waiver.

Considerations around Section 102/104 of HOTMA: In accordance with Federal Register /Vol.
88, No. 30 /Tuesday, February 14, 2023 /Rules and Regulations, “MTW agencies remain subject
to statutory and regulatory provisions not waived by the MTW Agreement and those
statutory and regulatory provisions outside the scope of MTW waiver authority, including any
changes thereto. Any provisions of the 1937 Act and itsimplementing regulations that
are amended by HOTMA and already explicitly waived by the MTW Agreement will continue
to be waived by the relevant provisions of the MTW Agreement.”

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:

XICost effectiveness

This activity corresponds with the HUD goal of increasing cost effectiveness by simplifying the
calculation process.

A MTW activity may apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households by having a different policy by household status/family types/sites.
This MTW activity applies:

Xonly to a subset or subsets of assisted households: PBV Only

If previous questions is subset.

Page 71 of 92

Revision Date 9/14/2023
Page 4 of 5



CA072
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz

A MTW activity can apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted households, or to
both new admissions and currently assisted households. This MTW activity applies to:

XINew admissions (i.e., applicants) only - PBV Only

If above questions is subset.

A MTW activity can apply to all family types or only selected family types. This MTW activity
applies to:

Xonly to selected family types

Please select the family types subject to this MTW activity:

XOther — another specifically defined target population or populations. The description of
this population is: PBV only.

If above questions is subset.

An MTW activity can apply to a tenant-based and or project-based voucher.

XIThe MTW activity applies to all properties with project-based vouchers.

This MTW activity has the following cost implications:

XDecreased expenditures

The implementation timeline for the initiative is:

Upon approval of MTW Supplement, Agency and Administrative Plan, and training of staff.

Impact Analysis: This MTW activity does require an impact analysis.

Hardship Policy: No households will be adversely affected by this MTW activity. The
proposed activity will benefit tenants of LIHTC units to streamline the eligibility determine
and reexamination process and will eliminate redundant demands on tenants to submit the
same paperwork to both the owner and HACSC.

Comments received at the public hearing for the Agency-Specific waiver and the agency’s
description of how the comments were considered.

There were no comments received at the public hearing.

Page 72 of 92

Revision Date 9/14/2023
Page 5 of 5



Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

Agency-Specific Waiver

Waiver Description: 24 CFR 982. 516 and 982 Subpart E and 983 - Allow use of Tenant Income Certification
(TIC) for PBV eligibility determination at Initial Lease-up and Reexamination.

Describe the MTW activity (including what specifically the agency is proposing to waive), the MTW
agency’s goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW activity contributes to a
larger initiative.

This activity waives certain provisions of 24 CFR 982.516 and 982 Subpart E, and 983 as necessary to
determine and recertify income eligibility for residents of LIHTC units receiving PBV assistance. Owners of
PBV units that receive LIHTC will provide a copy of the TIC form to determine PBV initial eligibility and
reexamination for continued occupancy. This activity will impact all household types in the HCV program
that reside in PBV units in which the owner receives LIHTC. This activity will enhance coordination with
owners of LIHTC units in the PBV program that will result in reduced time to lease vacant PBV units and will
decrease the administrative burden associated to eliminate the need for tenants to submit duplicative
verification documents.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Cost effectiveness.
[ Self-sufficiency.
O Housing Choice

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets
of assisted households?

The waiver applies only to new and currently assisted households in PBV units with LIHTC.

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?

This waiver applies to all family types

Please select the family types subject to this MTW activity.

All family types.

Impact on the agency’s finances (e.g., how much will the activity cost, and any change in the agency’s per
family contributions).

HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver is cost neutral and will not impact agency costs.

Impact on affordability of housing costs for affected families (e.g. any change in how much affected
families will pay towards their housing costs.)

HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver will not affect how much affected families will pay towards
housing costs.

Impact on the agency’s waitlist(s) (e.g., any change in the amount of time families are on the waitlist);

HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver will not impact the amount of time families wait on the waiting
list.

Impact on the agency’s termination rate of families (e.g., any change in the rate at which families non-
voluntarily lose assistance from the agency);

Page 73 of 92




Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver will not impact the agency’s termination rate of families.

Impact on the agency’s current occupancy level in public housing and utilization rate in the HCV program

HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver will not impact the agency’s current utilization rate in the HCV
program.

Impact on meeting the MTW statutory goals of cost effectiveness, self-sufficiency, and/or housing choice

This proposed waiver will support the MTW statutory goal of cost effectiveness self-by providing enhancing
the coordination between PBV owners with LIHTC, prospective tenants and residents of these units, and
HACSC. This waiver will provide efficiency to obtain the necessary verification of income and assets needed
at initial eligibility and continued occupancy.

Impact on the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory requirements;

HACSC does not anticipate that this waiver would result in any change in the Agency’s ability to meet the
MTW statutory requirements.

Impact on the rate of hardship requests and the number granted and denied as a result of this activity.

Given that this waiver would benefit the impacted families, the HACSC does not anticipate any hardship
requests resulting from this waiver.

Across the other factors above, the impact on protected classes (and any associated disparate impact).

HACSC does not anticipate that this waiver would result in any disparate impact to any protected class.

Implementation timeline.

HACSC will implement this initiative upon approval of the MtW Supplement, Agency and Administrative
Plan, with an anticipated operation period beginning 7/1/2023.

Description of a hardship policy, if needed. The MTW agency must adopt a written policy for determining
when a requirement or provision of an MTW activity constitutes a financial or other hardship for the
family. The agency must include this policy as an attachment to its MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA
Plan. The agency may use a single hardship policy, as applicable, for multiple MTW waivers or develop
different hardship policies for different MTW waivers as it finds appropriate.

Not applicable. Given that this waiver would benefit the impacted families, the HACSC does not anticipate
any hardship requests resulting from this waiver.

Page 74 of 92




2023 HUD-APROVED
AGENCY SPECIFIC WAIVERS
and
Associated
Impact Analysis

1. ASW Establish Alternative Subsidy Standards for PBV

Page 75 of 92



AGENCY SPECIFIC WAIVER
E.1.c

Agency Specific Waiver Title: Establish Alternative Subsidy Standards Schedule for Project-Based Voucher Units
Citations/Regulations/Statutes to be Waived: 42 USC § 1437a(b)(3)(A), 24 CFR 982.402(b)(3), and 983.260

Describe the MTW activity (including what specifically the agency is proposing to waive), the MTW agency’s
goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW activity contributes to a larger initiative.

HACSC proposes an alternative subsidy standard schedule for all PBV units. In the tenant-based HCV Program, the
subsidy standards determine the voucher size for the family and help to inform the applicable payment standard used
in the rent calculation. In the PBV Program they determine the appropriate unit size, but they do not impact the rent
calculation as most PBV participants simply pay their TTP regardless of the unit size they occupy or the amount of rent
to owner.

HACSC proposes to establish an alternative subsidy standards schedule for PBV units that better aligns with occupancy
standards of the affordable housing industry. An example of an alternative schedule, which shall be established annually
in the HCV Administrative Plan, is below:

Unit Size Minimum Family Size Maximum Family Size
1-bedroom 1 person 3 persons
2-bedrooms 2 persons 5 persons
3-bedrooms 3 persons 7 persons

HACSC fills standard PBV vacancies with the following method: For a given PBV vacancy, HACSC conducts outreach
to the HCV Waiting List or PBV site-based waiting list and selects families to apply. Interested families apply to the
property directly and the owner processes families in accordance with the requirements of the tenant selection plan.
Owner-approved applicants are referred back to HACSC and the owner indicates which vacant PBV unit the applicant
has chosen and/or been assigned to. HACSC processes the owner-approved applicant for PBV eligibility, during which
HACSC will confirm eligibility in accordance with the HACSC subsidy standards. Owners are encouraged to ensure
families meet the subsidy standards while performing their own eligibility determinations, before sending an owner-
approved applicant to HACSC.

The existing requirements result in difficulty filling larger units and has caused unnecessary displacement of existing
households since the required use of HCV subsidy standards is overly rigid.

Upon approval of an alternative subsidy standard, HACSC shall ensure the policy does not result in overcrowding and
will still permit families to transfer to tenant-based assistance after they have met all the applicable criteria, such as the
one-year assistance requirement.

Page 76 of 92

Revision Date 6/17/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\June 2025 Revisions Resubmitted in HIP\2025 MTW Supplement to the
Annual PHA Plan - June 2025.docx



If the family becomes over-housed or underhoused based on the alternative subsidy standard schedule, HACSC will
follow the regulations for occupancy of a “wrong-sized” unit pursuant to 24 CFR 983.260.

Typically, affordable housing utilizes occupancy standards, which are a range. Occupancy standards ensure that units
are not overcrowded and that families are not severely over housed, but are also designed to give families more flexibility
in the unit types that they are able to rent. This contrasts with the subsidy standards, which is a fixed number and is
more restrictive. Since the subsidy standards must be consistent for both the HCV and PBV Programs, this creates
difficulties in filling PBV units and reduces housing choice for families, since families are only able to occupy the exact
PBV unit size as determined by the subsidy standards. However, HCV families may choose to rent a larger or smaller
unit than their voucher size.

This activity will support HACSC's ability to stably house families, improve housing choice, and improve PBV utilization
in the following ways:

New Admissions

The average household size of families on HACSC’s HCV Waiting List is approximately 2.35 persons, meaning that it
can be difficult to fill larger-sized PBV units (such as 3- or 4-bedroom units) as the restrictive subsidy standards limit the
eligible pool of families that can be selected for such units. By establishing an alternative subsidy standard schedule for
PBVs as a range, families will be eligible for a unit if their family size aligns with any value within that range. This may
expand the eligible pool of families for any given unit, which may reduce the length of vacancies, and increase the
number of housing opportunities that families are eligible to apply for.

Existing Participants

Additionally, the more restrictive existing subsidy standards strains current PBV participants since if they change their
family size or composition and their new family size or composition exceeds or drops below the subsidy standard for the
unit size that they occupy, current regulations require them to vacate the PBV unit. Therefore, families that wish to
change their family size or composition may be unable to do so for fear of jeopardizing their housing stability.

By establishing the subsidy standards as a range, families will continue to occupy a “right-sized” unit if their family size
aligns with any value within that range. Therefore, there will be more opportunities for families to add or remove family
members without disrupting their housing.

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:
Housing Choice

Cost Implications
Neutral (no cost implications)

Different policy by household status/family types/sites? Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all
assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

If previous question is a subset.

Household Status. Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted
households, or to both new admissions and currently assisted households?

New admissions and currently assisted households

If waiver doesn’t apply to all assisted households:
Family Types. Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?

Revision Date 6/17/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\June 2025 Revisions Resubmitted in HIP\2025 MTW Supplement to the
Annual PHA Plan - June 2025.docx

Page 77 of 92



The MTW activity applies to all family types.

If not all assisted households are selected.

For HCV activities:

Does the MTW activity apply to all HCV tenant-based units and properties with project-based vouchers?
The MTW activity applies to all properties with project-based vouchers

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Does this MTW activity require a Hardship Policy:
No

Does the MTW activity require an impact analysis?
Yes

Does the impact analysis apply to more than this MTW activity?
No

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a description
about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.

N/A

Comments received at the public hearing for the Agency-Specific waiver and the agency’s description of how
the comments were considered.

No public comment received.

Page 78 of 92

Revision Date 6/17/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\June 2025 Revisions Resubmitted in HIP\2025 MTW Supplement to the
Annual PHA Plan - June 2025.docx



IMPACT ANALYIS
E.1.c

Agency Specific Waiver Title: Establish Alternative Subsidy Standards Schedule for Project Based Voucher Units

Citations/Regulations/Statutes to be Waived: 42 USC § 1437a(b)(3)(A), 24 CFR 982.402(b)(3), and 983.260

Describe the MTW activity (including what specifically the agency is proposing to waive), the MTW agency’s
goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW activity contributes to a larger initiative.

HACSC proposes an alternative subsidy standard schedule for all PBV units. In the tenant-based HCV Program, the
subsidy standards determine the voucher size for the family and help to inform the applicable payment standard used
in the rent calculation. In the PBV Program they determine the appropriate unit size, but they do not impact the rent
calculation as most PBV participants simply pay their TTP regardless of the unit size they occupy or the amount of rent
to owner.

HACSC proposes to establish an alternative subsidy standards schedule for PBV units that better aligns with occupancy
standards of the affordable housing industry. An example of an alternative schedule, which shall be established annually
in the HCV Administrative Plan, is below:

Unit Size Minimum Family Size Maximum Family Size
1-bedroom 1 person 3 persons
2-bedrooms 2 persons 5 persons
3-bedrooms 3 persons 7 persons

HACSC fills standard PBV vacancies with the following method: For a given PBV vacancy, HACSC conducts outreach
to the HCV Waiting List or PBV site-based waiting list and selects families to apply. Interested families apply to the
property directly and the owner processes families in accordance with the requirements of the tenant selection plan.
Owner-approved applicants are referred back to HACSC and the owner indicates which vacant PBV unit the applicant
has chosen and/or been assigned to. HACSC processes the owner-approved applicant for PBV eligibility, during which
HACSC will confirm eligibility in accordance with the HACSC subsidy standards. Owners are encouraged to ensure
families meet the subsidy standards while performing their own eligibility determinations, before sending an owner-
approved applicant to HACSC.

The existing requirements result in difficulty filling larger units and has caused unnecessary displacement of existing
households since the required use of HCV subsidy standards is overly rigid.

Upon approval of an alternative subsidy standard, HACSC shall ensure the policy does not result in overcrowding and
will still permit families to transfer to tenant-based assistance after they have met all the applicable criteria, such as the
one-year assistance requirement.

If the family becomes over-housed or underhoused based on the alternative subsidy standard schedule, HACSC will
follow the regulations for occupancy of a “wrong-sized” unit pursuant to 24 CFR 983.260.

Typically, affordable housing utilizes occupancy standards, which are a range. Occupancy standards ensure that units
are not overcrowded and that families are not severely over housed but are also designed to give families more flexibility
in the unit types that they are able to rent. This contrasts with the subsidy standards, which is a fixed number and is

Page 79 of 92

Revision Date 6/17/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\June 2025 Revisions Resubmitted in HIP\2025 MTW Supplement to the
Annual PHA Plan - June 2025.docx



more restrictive. Since the subsidy standards must be consistent for both the HCV and PBV Programs, this creates
difficulties in filling PBV units and reduces housing choice for families, since families are only able to occupy the exact
PBV unit size as determined by the subsidy standards. However, HCV families may choose to rent a larger or smaller
unit than their voucher size.

This activity will support HACSC's ability to stably house families, improve housing choice, and improve PBYV utilization
in the following ways:

New Admissions

The average household size of families on HACSC’s HCV Waiting List is approximately 2.35 persons, meaning that it
can be difficult to fill larger-sized PBV units (such as 3- or 4-bedroom units) as the restrictive subsidy standards limit the
eligible pool of families that can be selected for such units. By establishing an alternative subsidy standard schedule for
PBVs as a range, families will be eligible for a unit if their family size aligns with any value within that range. This may
expand the eligible pool of families for any given unit, which may reduce the length of vacancies, and increase the
number of housing opportunities that families are eligible to apply for.

Existing Participants

Additionally, the more restrictive existing subsidy standards strains current PBV participants since if they change their
family size or composition and their new family size or composition exceeds or drops below the subsidy standard for the
unit size that they occupy, current regulations require them to vacate the PBV unit. Therefore, families that wish to
change their family size or composition may be unable to do so for fear of jeopardizing their housing stability.

By establishing the subsidy standards as a range, families will continue to occupy a “right-sized” unit if their family size
aligns with any value within that range. Therefore, there will be more opportunities for families to add or remove family
members without disrupting their housing.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Housing Choice

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?

The MTW activity applies to a subset or subsets of assisted households.

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
This MTW activity applies to all family types.

Impact on the agency’s finances (e.g., how much will the activity cost, and any change in the agency’s per family
contributions).

No change to agency’s finances. No change to agency’s per family contributions.

Impact on affordability of housing costs for affected families (e.g. any change in how much affected families
will pay towards their housing costs.)

No change in housing costs for families.

Impact on the agency’s waitlist(s) (e.g., any change in the amount of time families are on the waitlist)

This MTW activity may reduce the amount of time that families are on the waiting list as this will expand the number of
PBYV units that a family may be eligible for.

Page 80 of 92

Revision Date 6/17/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\June 2025 Revisions Resubmitted in HIP\2025 MTW Supplement to the
Annual PHA Plan - June 2025.docx



Impact on the agency’s termination rate of families (e.g., any change in the rate at which families non-voluntarily
lose assistance from the agency)

This MTW activity may reduce the termination rate of families because it will allow families more flexibility to live in PBV
units and changing their family size or composition may no longer result in them needing to vacate a PBV unit.

Impact on the agency’s current occupancy level in public housing and utilization rate in the HCV program
This MTW activity is anticipated to improve the utilization rate of PBV units by expanding the pool of eligible families.

Impact on meeting the MTW statutory goals of cost effectiveness, self-sufficiency, and/or housing choice
This MTW activity improves housing choice.

Impact on the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory requirements
This MTW activity positively impacts the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory requirements.

Impact on the rate of hardship requests and the number granted and denied as a result of this activity.
The agency anticipates that there will be no hardships associated with this waiver.

Across the other factors above, the impact on protected classes (and any associated disparate impact).
None.

Implementation timeline.
Upon approval of the MTW Supplement.

Description of a hardship policy, if needed.
The agency anticipates that there will be no hardships associated with this waiver.

Page 81 of 92

Revision Date 6/17/2025
S:\Programs\Moving to Work (MTW)\MtW Supplement\2025\June 2025 Revisions Resubmitted in HIP\2025 MTW Supplement to the
Annual PHA Plan - June 2025.docx



HUD APPROVAL PENDING

2025 AGENCY SPECIFIC WAIVERS
and
Associated
Impact Analyses

1. ASW Independent Entity Requirements for
Project Based Vouchers

2. ASW Alternative Development Cost Limits

Page 82 of 92



E.1.a ASW

Independent Entity Requirements for Project-Based Vouchers

Citations/Regulations/Statutes to be Waived:

42 USC 1437f(0)(11)(A), 24 CFR 983.57(b)(1), 983.57(b)(3)-(b)(4), 983.155(b), 983.156(d), 983.157(i),
983.212(c), and 983.301(g)

HACSC proposes to waive all remaining Independent Entity requirements in the Project Based Voucher
(PBV) Program for PHA-owned unit not included in waivers for Rent Reasonableness (Waiver 2.d.),
HQS Inspections (Waiver 5.c.) and Project Selection (Waiver 9.c.).

The Independent Entity functions to be waived under this request include:

(A) initial and annual redetermining rent to owner, including calculating any rent adjustments by an
OCAF, where applicable;

(B) accepting evidence of completion of the work for development or substantial improvement activity;
and

(C) approving proposals and accepting completion of substantial improvements

HACSC proposes to waive all Independent Entity requirements in the Project Based Voucher (PBV)
Program for PHA-owned units, in order to create administrative efficiencies and reduce agency costs.
Independent entity functions include determining rent to owner, rent reasonableness, unit inspections,
accepting evidence of completion of the work, project selection, and approving and accepting completion
of substantial improvements.

The agency already has MTW Authority to waive Independent Entity requirements at PHA-owned
properties for Rent Reasonableness (Waiver 2.d.), HQS Inspections (Waiver 5.c.) and Project Selection
(Waiver 9.c.).

This waiver request is to waive all remaining Independent Entity functions, empowering HACSC staff to
perform all functions previously required to be performed by an Independent Entity. This will streamline
and simplify the administrative functions relating to PHA-owned units.

Implementation of this waiver will result in cost effectiveness and decreased expenditures.

The Housing Authority will ensure impartiality and compliance with 982.302(b)(6), 983.155(b), 983.156,
and 983.212 by maintaining a separation of responsibilities between departments where possible and
integrating standardized transaction-specific checklists and/or forms and certifications to ensure that the
same processes and policies are followed for each PBV project.

Page 83 of 92



Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

IMPACT ANALYSIS
E.l.a

Agency Specific Waiver Title: Independent Entity Requirements for Project Based Vouchers

Describe the MTW activity (including what specifically the agency is proposing to waive), the MTW
agency’s goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW activity contributes to a larger
initiative.

HACSC proposes to waive all Independent Entity requirements in the Project Based Voucher (PBV) Program
for PHA-owned units, in order to create administrative efficiencies and reduce agency costs. Independent entity
functions include determining rent to owner, rent reasonableness, unit inspections, accepting evidence of
completion of the work, project selection, and approving and accepting completion of substantial
improvements. The agency already has MTW Authority to waive Independent Entity requirements at PHA-
owned properties for Rent Reasonableness (Waiver 2.d.), HQS Inspections (Waiver 5.c.) and Project Selection
(Waiver 9.c.).

This waiver request is to waive all remaining Independent Entity functions, empowering HACSC staff to
perform all functions previously required to be performed by an Independent Entity. This will streamline and
simplify the administrative functions relating to PHA-owned units.

The Independent Entity functions to be waived under this request include:

(A) determining rent to owner;

(B) accepting evidence of completion of the work; and

(C) approving and accepting completion of substantial improvements.

Implementation of this waiver will result in cost effectiveness and decreased expenditures.

The Housing Authority will ensure impartiality and compliance with 982.302(b)(6), 983.155(b), 983.156, and 983.212 by

maintaining a separation of responsibilities between departments where possible and integrating standardized transaction-
specific checklists and/or forms and certifications to ensure that the same processes and policies are followed for each
PBV project.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?
Cost effectiveness

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets
of assisted households?

The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households.

Household Status. Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted
households, or to both new admissions and currently assisted households?

New admissions and currently assisted households

Page 84 of 92



Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
All family types.

Impact on the agency’s finances (e.g., how much will the activity cost, and any change in the agency’s
per family contributions).

Positive impact on the agency’s finance as there will no longer be a need to pay for independent entity
services. No changes to the agency’s per family contributions.

Impact on affordability of housing costs for affected families (e.g. any change in how much affected
families will pay towards their housing costs.)

This MTW activity would not impact housing costs for families.

Impact on the agency’s waitlist(s) (e.g., any change in the amount of time families are on the waitlist)
This MTW activity would not impact the agency’s waitlist.

Impact on the agency’s termination rate of families (e.g., any change in the rate at which families non-
voluntarily lose assistance from the agency)

This MTW activity would not impact the termination rate of families.

Impact on the agency’s current occupancy level in public housing and utilization rate in the HCV
program

This MTW activity would not impact the utilization rate in the HCV Program

Impact on meeting the MTW statutory goals of cost effectiveness, self-sufficiency, and/or housing choice

This MTW activity would support the goal of cost effectiveness through streamlining administrative
operations relating to the PBV Program.

Impact on the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory requirements
This MTW activity would positively impact the agency’s ability to meet the statutory requirements.

Impact on the rate of hardship requests and the number granted and denied as a result of this activity.
This MTW activity does not require a hardship policy.

Page 85 of 92




Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
Impact Analysis

Across the other factors above, the impact on protected classes (and any associated disparate impact).
None

Implementation timeline.
Upon approval of the MTW Supplement.

Description of a hardship policy, if needed.
This MTW activity does not require a hardship policy.

Across the other factors above, the impact on protected classes (and any associated disparate impact).
None

Implementation timeline.
Upon approval of the MTW Supplement.

Description of a hardship policy, if needed.
This MTW activity does not require a hardship policy.

Page 86 of 92




Agency-Specific Waiver

E.1.b

Agency Specific Waiver Title: E.1.b. Alternative Development Cost Limits

Regulation to Waive: 905.314

The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz (HACSC) proposes to waive 905.314 and establish an
alternative to the existing Total Development Cost (TDC) and Housing Construction Cost (HCC) limits.

MTW housing authorities that wish to develop new affordable housing have the unique opportunity to leverage
local, non-traditional abilities and directly support the development costs of a project with MTW funds. However,
the established TDCs and HCCs limit the amount of MTW funds that HACSC can include in the project’s budget.
These limits are too low and do not align with the actual cost to develop a project, so HACSC is unable to leverage
enough MTW funds to adequately support new projects.

Construction costs have increased significantly in recent years and continue to rise rapidly in the form of increased
material and labor costs and higher interest rates. Current industry construction cost projections anticipate continued
increases due to supply chain issues and other market factors. Further, Santa Cruz County is part of a larger metro-
region, and competition for general contractors and trades, which includes Santa Clara, San Mateo, and the greater
Bay Area, increases construction costs in Santa Cruz.

HUD’s TDC'’s are based on national average costs derived from cost estimation books, which do not reflect real-
world conditions. HACSC has been unsuccessful in replicating HUD’s calculation using R.S. Means for “average”
and Marshall & Swift for “good,” specifically for Santa Cruz County. It is unclear how these databases apply and
sort their data, as several variables and filters are not publicly disclosed. Additionally, these indexes require a paid
subscription, which is costly. Furthermore, the underlying market data is limited in scope and does not adequately
represent high-cost regions such as Santa Cruz County. The results are then aggregated and adjusted by location
factors. Location factors are applied after the fact to account for differences in market costs, but the derivation of
these location factors is not evident. These insufficiencies result in TDCs and HCCs being far below actual costs
experienced in Santa Cruz County.

Due to these insufficiencies, HACSC must depend on conventional methods for funding affordable housing projects,
primarily low-income housing tax credits (LIHTCs), tax-exempt bonds, and other state subsidies. In California,
HACSC must contend for these awards alongside other public and private developers, simply increasing the
competition for funds that are already heavily oversubscribed. This means that if HACSC wins an award, another
developer has not, and vice versa, which would likely result in the unawarded project not moving forward. The
competitive nature of LIHTCs and similar subsidies is compounded by the fact that these programs are limited and
underfunded. Because of this, the inefficient level of existing TDCs and HCCs effectively renders HACSC unable to
create more affordable housing than what would otherwise be built through these standard funding opportunities.
Further, due to the intense competitive environment, HACSC cannot rely on winning these awards, and HACSC
seeks to construct affordable housing regardless of whether the funds are ultimately obtained.

Additionally, a UC Berkeley Terner Center study of California projects awarded LIHTCs between 2020 and 2023
found that “the inclusion of one additional public funding source adds, on average, four months to the timeline of
being able to start construction and is associated with an increase of approximately $20,460 in per-unit total
development costs.” As such, decreasing the number of sources needed to finance a project will likely lead to shorter
development timelines and a reduction in overall project costs.

Therefore, HACSC seeks to establish TDCs and HCCs that better align with the actual construction costs of a
project in Santa Cruz County and when necessary, can fully support projects with MTW funds, thereby reducing
competition for already oversubscribed subsidies and facilitating the creation of more affordable housing than what
would already otherwise be funded through existing channels.

Revised 6/18/2025 Page 87 of 92




HACSC proposes to establish an alternative TDC that is equivalent to the annual Threshold Basis Limits as
established by the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (CTCAC), the state low-income housing
credit agency, for the South and West Bay Region.

The CTCAC Threshold Basis Limits cap the maximum “eligible basis” that a project may claim low-income
housing tax credits against. The eligible basis includes hard construction costs of the housing and other soft costs
directly related to that construction.

The CTCAC Basis Limits are established for each CTCAC region and are based on a combination of estimated and
actual construction costs of new construction projects that have received tax credits within the previous five-year
period. Estimated project costs are replaced with actual costs upon project completion and receipt of final cost
certifications from developers. The Basis Limits are evaluated annually by CTCAC and adjusted every year as costs
change. This will allow HACSC to utilize revised limits on an annual basis, allow HACSC to rely on an objective
third party’s measure, and allow HACSC to utilize costs that are based on actual, changing market values. Further,
the usage of objective and replicable examples contrasts from HUD’s TDC methodology.

The regulations outlined in CTAC’s Qualified Action Plan establish eleven Geographical Regions within California
for the annual credit apportionment. A geographic region is comprised of a group of counties. CTAC has designated
Santa Cruz County to the Central Coast Region which includes four other counties (Monterey, San Luis Obispo,
Santa Barbara, and Ventura) all located south of Santa Cruz. The South and West Bay Region includes San Mateo
County and Santa Clara County. Santa Cruz County shares a boarder with San Mateo to the north and Santa Clara to
the east. HACSC has identified the Basis Limits for the South and West Bay Area region to be more reflective of the
costs that developers experience in Santa Cruz County, and therefore, proposes to utilize the South and West Bay
Region Basis Limits instead of the Central Coast Region Basis Limits.

HACSC based this analysis on South and West Bay projects that received 4% or 9% tax credits during the 2023 and
2024 tax credit cycles and on projects that received an award of Project-Based Vouchers through HACSC’s 2023
and 2024 Requests for Proposals. These years reflect the most recent costs of construction, which are similarly
impacted by recent inflationary pressures, and are more easily comparable. Projects that did not pay for land and/or
acquired land for well below market value (ex. $55), were excluded from the analysis.

The average per-unit cost for the projects in the South and West Bay Region is $789,454.93, and the per-square foot
cost is $808.58. For Santa Cruz County projects, the average-per unit cost and per-square foot are $953,437.91 and
$1,185.39 respectively.

For the South and West Bay Regions, each project’s unit count, total project cost, land cost, total square footage,
average cost per square foot, and average cost per unit, are listed in Appendix A. For the Santa Cruz County PBV
projects, some of which were also awarded tax credits in the 2023/4 cycles, the unit count, total project cost, land
cost, total square footage, average cost per square foot, and average cost per unit, are listed in Appendix B.

HACSC proposes a single TDC for all building and unit types (elevator, walkup, rowhouse, detached, etc.), as these
differences are not identified by CTCAC, and does not propose establishing a separate HCC. Each year, HACSC
will use the most recently established CTCAC Basis Limits as the applicable TDCs, as they are updated.

The 2025 Basis Limits for the South and West Bay Region, which will serve as the 2025 TDCs, are below:

SRO & STUDIO 1 BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 3 BEDROOM 4 BEDROOM
$523,060 $613,460 $740,000 $947,200 $1,055,240
Revised 6/18/2025

Page 88 of 92




Contrastingly, the TDCs and HCCs for an elevator building in Santa Cruz County are the following:

0 BEDROOM 1 BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 3 BEDROOM 4 BEDROOM

HCC TDC HCC TDC HCC TDC HCC TDC HCC TDC

$128,432 | $205,491 | $179,805 | $287,688 | $231,178 | $369,884 | $308,237 | $493,179 | $385,296 | $616,473

As shown, the TDCs and HCCs are not reflective of the actual costs of construction in Santa Cruz County and
significantly inhibit the ability of HACSC to support projects with MTW funds, while the CTCAC Basis Limits
better represent the experience of developers in Santa Cruz County and will directly enable HACSC to create more
affordable housing in the community.

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:
X Cost effectiveness
XHousing Choice

Cost Implications
Cost neutral

Different policy by household status/family types/sites? Does the MTW activity under this waiver
apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of assisted households?

XThe MTW activity applies only to all assisted families

If previous question is a subset.
Household Status. Does the MTW activity apply only to new admissions, only to currently assisted
households, or to both new admissions and currently assisted households?

New admissions and currently assisted households

If waiver doesn’t apply to all assisted households:
Family Types. Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?

The MTW activity applies to all family types

Does the MTW agency need a Safe Harbor Waiver to implement this MTW activity as described?
No

Does this MTW activity require a Hardship Policy:
No

Does the MTW activity require an impact analysis?
Yes

Does the impact analysis apply to more than this MTW activity?
No

Based on the Fiscal Year goals listed in the activity’s previous Fiscal Year’s narrative, provide a
description about what has been accomplished or changed during the implementation.
N/A

Comments received at the public hearing for the Agency-Specific waiver and the agency’s description
of how the comments were considered.
No public comments received.

Page 89 of 92
Revised 6/18/2025




IMPACT ANALYSIS
E.1.b.

Agency-Specific Waiver Title— E.1.b. Alternative Development Cost Limits

Regulations to Waive: 905.314

Describe the MTW activity (including what specifically the agency is proposing to waive), the MTW agency’s
goal(s) for the MTW activity, and, if applicable, how the MTW activity contributes to a
larger initiative.

The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz (HACSC) proposes to waive 905.314 and establish an alternative
to the existing Total Development Cost (TDC) and Housing Construction Cost (HCC) limits.

MTW housing authorities that wish to develop new affordable housing have the unique opportunity to leverage local,
non-traditional abilities and directly support the development costs of a project with MTW funds. However, the
established TDCs and HCCs limit the amount of MTW funds that HACSC can include in the project’s budget. These
limits are too low and do not align with the actual cost to develop a project, so HACSC is unable to leverage enough
MTW funds to adequately support new projects.

Construction costs have increased significantly in recent years and continue to rise rapidly in the form of increased
material and labor costs and higher interest rates. Current industry construction cost projections anticipate continued
increases due to supply chain issues and other market factors. Further, Santa Cruz County is part of a larger metro-
region, and competition for general contractors and trades, which includes Santa Clara, San Mateo, and the greater
Bay Area, increases construction costs in Santa Cruz.

HUD’s TDC’s are based on national average costs derived from cost estimation books, which do not reflect real-world
conditions. HACSC has been unsuccessful in replicating HUD’s calculation using R.S. Means for “average” and
Marshall & Swift for “good,” specifically for Santa Cruz County. It is unclear how these databases apply and sort their
data, as several variables and filters are not publicly disclosed. Additionally, these indexes require a paid subscription,
which is costly. Furthermore, the underlying market data is limited in scope and does not adequately represent high-
cost regions such as Santa Cruz County. The results are then aggregated and adjusted by location factors. Location
factors are applied after the fact to account for differences in market costs, but the derivation of these location factors
is not evident. These insufficiencies result in TDCs and HCCs being far below actual costs experienced in Santa Cruz
County.

Due to these insufficiencies, HACSC must depend on conventional methods for funding affordable housing projects,
primarily low-income housing tax credits (LIHTCs), tax-exempt bonds, and other state subsidies. In California, HACSC
must contend for these awards alongside other public and private developers, simply increasing the competition for
funds that are already heavily oversubscribed. This means that if HACSC wins an award, another developer has not,
and vice versa, which would likely result in the unawarded project not moving forward. The competitive nature of
LIHTCs and similar subsidies is compounded by the fact that these programs are limited and underfunded. Because of
this, the inefficient level of existing TDCs and HCCs effectively renders HACSC unable to create more affordable
housing than what would otherwise be built through these standard funding opportunities. Further, due to the intense
competitive environment, HACSC cannot rely on winning these awards, and HACSC seeks to construct affordable
housing regardless of whether the funds are ultimately obtained.

Additionally, a UC Berkeley Terner Center study of California projects awarded LIHTCs between 2020 and 2023 found
that “the inclusion of one additional public funding source adds, on average, four months to the timeline of being able
to start construction, and is associated with an increase of approximately $20,460 in per-unit total development costs.”
As such, decreasing the number of sources needed to finance a project will likely lead to shorter development
timelines and a reduction in overall project costs.

Therefore, HACSC seeks to establish TDCs and HCCs that better align with the actual construction costs of a project
in Santa Cruz County and when necessary, can fully support projects with MTW funds, thereby reducing competition
for already oversubscribed subsidies and facilitating the creation of more affordable housing than what would already
otherwise be funded through existing channels.

Revised 6/18/2025 Page 90 of 92




HACSC proposes to establish an alternative TDC that is equivalent to the annual Threshold Basis Limits as
established by the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (CTCAC), the state low-income housing credit
agency, for the South and West Bay Region.

The CTCAC Threshold Basis Limits cap the maximum “eligible basis” that a project may claim low-income housing tax
credits against. The eligible basis includes hard construction costs of the housing and other soft costs directly related
to that construction.

The CTCAC Basis Limits are established for each CTCAC region and are based on a combination of estimated and
actual construction costs of new construction projects that have received tax credits within the previous five-year
period. Estimated project costs are replaced with actual costs upon project completion and receipt of final cost
certifications from developers. The Basis Limits are evaluated annually by CTCAC and adjusted every year as costs
change. This will allow HACSC to utilize revised limits on an annual basis, allow HACSC to rely on an objective third
party’s measure, and allow HACSC to utilize costs that are based on actual, changing market values. Further, the
usage of objective and replicable examples contrasts from HUD’s TDC methodology.

The regulations outlined in CTAC’s Qualified Action Plan establish eleven Geographical Regions within California for
the annual credit apportionment. A geographic region is comprised of a group of counties. CTAC has designated Santa
Cruz County to the Central Coast Region which includes four other counties (Monterey, San Luis Obispo, Santa
Barbara, and Ventura) all located south of Santa Cruz. The South and West Bay Region includes San Mateo County
and Santa Clara County. Santa Cruz County shares a boarder with San Mateo to the north and Santa Clara to the
east. HACSC has identified the Basis Limits for the South and West Bay Area region to be more reflective of the costs
that developers experience in Santa Cruz County, and therefore, proposes to utilize the South and West Bay Region
Basis Limits instead of the Central Coast Region Basis Limits.

HACSC based this analysis on South and West Bay projects that received 4% or 9% tax credits during the 2023 and
2024 tax credit cycles and on projects that received an award of Project-Based Vouchers through HACSC’s 2023 and
2024 Requests for Proposals. These years reflect the most recent costs of construction, which are similarly impacted
by recent inflationary pressures, and are more easily comparable. Projects that did not pay for land and/or acquired
land for well below market value (ex. $55), were excluded from the analysis.

The average per-unit cost for the projects in the South and West Bay Region is $789,454.93, and the per-square foot
cost is $808.58. For Santa Cruz County projects, the average-per unit cost and per-square foot are $953,437.91 and
$1,185.39 respectively.

For the South and West Bay Regions, each project’s unit count, total project cost, land cost, total square footage,
average cost per square foot, and average cost per unit, are listed in Appendix A. For the Santa Cruz County PBV
projects, some of which were also awarded tax credits in the 2023/4 cycles, the unit count, total project cost, land cost,
total square footage, average cost per square foot, and average cost per unit, are listed in Appendix B.

HACSC proposes a single TDC for all building and unit types (elevator, walkup, rowhouse, detached, etc.), as these
differences are not identified by CTCAC, and does not propose establishing a separate HCC. Each year, HACSC will
use the most recently established CTCAC Basis Limits as the applicable TDCs, as they are updated.

The 2025 Basis Limits for the South and West Bay Region, which will serve as the 2025 TDCs, are below:

SRO & STUDIO

1 BEDROOM

2 BEDROOM

3 BEDROOM

4 BEDROOM

$523,060

$613,460

$740,000

$947,200

$1,055,240

Contrastingly, the TDCs and HCCs for an elevator building in Santa Cruz County are the following:

0 BEDROOM 1 BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 3 BEDROOM 4 BEDROOM
HCC TDC HCC TDC HCC TDC HCC TDC HCC TDC
$128,432 | $205,491 | $179,805 | $287,688 | $231,178 | $369,884 | $308,237 | $493,179 | $385,296 | $616,473

Revised 6/18/2025

Page 91 of 92




As shown, the TDCs and HCCs are not reflective of the actual costs of construction in Santa Cruz County and
significantly inhibit the ability of HACSC to support projects with MTW funds, while the CTCAC Basis Limits better
represent the experience of developers in Santa Cruz County and will directly enable HACSC to create more
affordable housing in the community.

Which of the MTW statutory objectives does this MTW activity serve?

Cost effectiveness.
Housing Choice

Does the MTW activity under this waiver apply to all assisted households or only to a subset or subsets of
assisted households?
The waiver applies to all assisted households.

Does the MTW activity apply to all family types or only to selected family types?
This waiver applies to all family types.

Impact on the agency’s finances (e.g., how much will the activity cost, and any change in the agency’s per
family contributions).

HACSC anticipates that the use of MTW funds applied to development projects through an alternative TDC
methodology will be cost neutral as these funds will be returned to HACSC during the project lifecycle through a
combination of sources, which includes fees and rental income.

Impact on affordability of housing costs for affected families (e.g. any change in how much affected families
will pay towards their housing costs.)
HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver will not affect how much affected families will pay towards housing costs.

Impact on the agency’s waitlist(s) (e.g., any change in the amount of time families are on the waitlist);
HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver will reduce the amount of time families wait on the waiting list through
additional affordable housing development, making more housing available sooner.

Impact on the agency’s termination rate of families (e.g., any change in the rate at which families non-
voluntarily lose assistance from the agency)
HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver will not impact the agency’s termination rate of families.

Impact on the agency’s current occupancy level in public housing and utilization rate in the HCV program
HACSC anticipates that this proposed waiver will not impact the agency’s current utilization rate in the HCV Program.

Impact on meeting the MTW statutory goals of cost effectiveness, self-sufficiency, and/or housing choice
This proposed waiver will support the MTW statutory goal of housing choice by providing additional affordable housing
units through increased development activity and support cost effectiveness due to the ability to build affordable
housing quicker.

Impact on the agency’s ability to meet the MTW statutory requirements

HACSC does not anticipate that this waiver would result in any change in the Agency’s ability to meet the MTW
statutory requirements.

Impact on the rate of hardship requests and the number granted and denied as a result of this activity.
Given that this waiver would benefit assisted households, the HACSC does not anticipate any hardship requests
resulting from this waiver.

Across the other factors above, the impact on protected classes (and any associated disparate impact).
HACSC does not anticipate that this waiver would result in any disparate impact to any protected class.

Implementation timeline.
HACSC will implement this initiative upon approval from HUD.

Description of a hardship policy, if needed. The MTW agency must adopt a written policy for determining when
a requirement or provision of an MTW activity constitutes a financial or other hardship for the family. The
agency must include this policy as an attachment to its MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan. The agency
may use a single hardship policy, as applicable, for multiple MTW waivers or develop different hardship
policies for different MTW waivers as it finds appropriate.

Given that this waiver would benefit the impacted families, HACSC does not anticipate any hardship requests resulting
from this waiver.

Page 92 of 92

Revised 6/18/2025




AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

MEETING DATE: November 12, 2025 ITEM NUMBER: 6B

FROM: Development Director

SUBJECT: Financing for the Development of 136 River Street

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution 2025-09 to authorize the Executive Director to provide a
$2,000,000 loan, which may be forgivable, to New Horizons to support the development of 136 River
Street and enter into all documents necessary to effectuate the loan.

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

During the closed session of the New Horizons Board of Directors meeting on May 28, 2025, the Board
authorized the Secretary to negotiate a co-development agreement with For the Future Housing (FTF),
including the provision of a $2,000,000 loan to support the development of affordable housing at 136
River Street. The loan would be provided by New Horizons utilizing MTW eligible non-HAP funds
through a loan, which may be forgivable, from the Housing Authority. The MTW funds must be spent
prior to the end of the calendar year.

The development at 136 River Street has received a 4% tax credit award, a $3.42 million loan from the
City of Santa Cruz, and For the Future has submitted building a building permit application for
construction. NEPA is substantially complete and authorization from HUD is expected before the end
of the year.

The loan from the Housing Authority to New Horizons would allow for residual receipts loan of
$2,000,000 to the partnership to assist in project financing. The loan would carry a 55-year term with
simple interest at 4%. Repayment of the loan would be made from any available project cost savings
and, annually, from the loan’s proportional share of residual receipts over the term. It is estimated that
payments on the loan would begin approximately 11-15 years after stabilization.

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution 2025-09 to authorize the Executive Director to provide a
$2,000,000 loan, which may be forgivable, to New Horizons to support the development of 136 River
Street and enter into all documents necessary to effectuate the loan.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ



HOUSING AUTHORITY RESOLUTION NO. 2025-09

A RESOLUTION OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA

CRUZ AUTHORIZING A LOAN TO NEW HORIZONS AFFORDABLE HOUSING

AND DEVELOPMENT, INC. TO SUPPORT THE DEVELOPMENT OF 136 RIVER
STREET, SANTA CRUZ

At a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners (the "Board") of the
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz (the "Authority") held on November 12, 2025,
the following resolution was adopted:

WHEREAS, in this Resolution, when it states that the Authority shall act, the Board is
authorizing such action on behalf of the Authority and deems such action to be in the best
interests of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is a duly formed housing authority of the State of California,
and is vested with the responsibilities set forth in Division 24, Part 2, Article 4 (Sections 34310-
34334) of the California Health and Safety Code (the "California Housing Authority Law"),
which includes providing low and moderate income housing within its jurisdiction;

WHEREAS, the Authority formed New Horizons Affordable Housing and Development,
Inc. ("New Horizons"), a California nonprofit public benefit 501¢3 exempt corporation to help
support the Authority's mission of developing and operating affordable housing within its
jurisdiction;

WHEREAS, The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz seeks to provide a
$2,000,000 loan, which may be forgivable, to New Horizons Affordable Housing and
Development to support the development of affordable housing at 136 River Street in the City of
Santa Cruz (the "Property");

WHEREAS, The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz desires to enter into any
and all documents necessary to provide the Loan (collectively, the "Authority Loan
Documents");

WHEREAS, by staff report (the "Staff Report") accompanying this Resolution The
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz has been provided with additional information
upon which the actions set forth in this Resolution are based.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF THE HOUSING
AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: The Board finds and determines that the above recitals are true and correct and
have served, together with the Staff Report, as a basis in part, for the actions of the Board set
forth below.



Section 2: The Board approves the issuance of a Loan, which may be forgivable, from the
Housing Authority to New Horizons Affordable Housing and Development.

Section 3: The Board authorizes the Executive Director of The Housing Authority of the
County of Santa Cruz or, in the absence of the aforementioned, any other officer acting alone on
behalf of The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz (the "Authorized Officer"), to
enter into and execute any and all necessary documents listed in and/or contemplated by this
Resolution, including, without limitation, the Conveyance Documents, the Loan Documents, in
such form as is recommended by The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz special
legal counsel, and approved by the Authorized Officer, such approval to be conclusively
evidenced by the execution by the Authorized Officer of such documents, and to take any other
actions, necessary to enable the issuance of the Loan, and to do any and all other activities
contemplated in this Resolution.

Section 4: This Resolution shall take immediate effect upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of The Housing Authority of the
County of Santa Cruz, State of California on November 12, 2025, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ASTAIN:

Chairperson of the Authority

ATTEST:

Secretary of the Authority



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

MEETING DATE: November 12, 2025 ITEM NUMBER: 8

FROM: Exec. Director; Deputy Exec. Director

SUBJECT: Director’s Report — November 12, 2025

RECOMMENDATION: Receive Report

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:
Please call or e-mail me with questions you might have on any of the Agenda Items for the November 12,
2025 meeting. My phone number is (831) 454-5931 and my email address is jennyp@hacosantacruz.org.

Government Shutdown and Federal Appropriations Update — The federal government entered a
shutdown on October 1, 2025, after Congress failed to pass required appropriations or a continuing
resolution. As of the date of this report, the current shutdown is now the longest on record, at over 35 days,
with no definitive end in sight. Fortunately, HUD has confirmed that funding for the Housing Choice
Voucher (HCV) Program will be obligated for both November and December 2025. Therefore, there will
be no interruption or delays of November or December HAP payments to landlords. Although a few
essential HUD staff remain working, most HUD functions are on hold during the shutdown. Therefore,
staff are experiencing delays with approval of waivers, processing and execution of grants and contracts,
and ongoing technical assistance.

Emergency Housing Vouchers — Staff have contacted all EHV households to provide information on the
status of EHV funding including informing households that rental assistance through the EHV program is
expected to end in December 2026. Additionally, staff have also begun outreach to EHV families for all
vacancies in Housing Authority owned properties, as well as for all PBV vacancies as they occur. As of
October 1, 2025 there were 272 households in the EHV program. Staff are closely tracking the status of
each EHV household as we attempt to connect them all to other affordable housing opportunities. Over the
past month, there have been 5 program exits, including three expired vouchers, one deceased household,
and one household terminated for program violations. Additionally, two households are in the process of
moving into PBV units, with an additional few households in the application process for other PBV units.
Finally, staff are continuing to work with tax credit owners to explore opportunities to prioritize EHV
families for non-PBV tax credit units.

Leaked Proposed Federal Regulations — On September 29™, ProPublica (a nonprofit news publication)
published an article with information pertaining to drafts of unpublished proposed changes to federal
regulations that had been obtained by the news outlet. ProPublica also provided links to these leaked
unpublished draft regulatory changes. The leaked draft regulations detail information that provides clues



to the Administration’s plans relating to time limits, work requirements, and potential changes in eligibility
for households that include undocumented household members.

The first draft proposed rule, pertaining to time limits and work requirements, was drafted to allow housing
authorities to adopt work requirements and time limits within certain parameters, but did not require
housing authorities to adopt those policies. The second proposed rule would impact “mixed status families”
where one or more household members does not have legal residency. Ultimately, the draft proposed rule
would require that all household members of assisted households provide proof of citizenship or legal
residency, and families with undocumented household members would be required to either remove those
household members or they could lose their rental assistance. However, this draft proposed rule change is
slightly different than the version proposed in 2019. In this leaked draft, housing authorities would have
more time to come into compliance with the rule, and would have more discretion to allow families a
“reasonable” time to make transitions, with the goal of minimizing the separation and displacement of
families. The documents leaked by ProPublica are unofficial drafts. When and if HUD publishes proposed
rule changes pertaining to work requirements, time limits, or changes in eligibility for mixed status
households, they may or may not align with these unofficial drafts. Staff will continue to monitor the
situation and will keep the Board informed of any updates pertaining to program rule changes.

“What Housing Means to Me” Poster Contest Winner — The National Association of Housing and
Redevelopment Officials (NAHRO) has held an annual art contest, inviting children who live in affordable
housing to submit a piece of artwork that demonstrates “What Housing Means to Me”. Every year, hundreds
of children, ages 5-18, participate in the contest at the state and regional level. The national contest is the
culmination of numerous regional poster contests across the United States. Three NAHRO judges choose
12 winners from the regional entries to be featured in NAHRO’s “What Home Means to Me” calendar for
the following year. The grand prize winner, whose art is featured on the calendar cover, receives an iPad
and an all expenses paid trip to NAHRO’s Washington DC Conference to meet their Congressional
representatives. This year, I am thrilled to announce that an entry submitted by Rafael, age 14, from the
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz, is the national poster contest winner!




Senior Fair — The Housing Authority hosted our second Senior Resource Fair of the year in Watsonville
on October 10™. The event connected more than 100 seniors with valuable community resources and
services. Fifteen local organizations hosted tables, including Santa Cruz METRO, Community Bridges,
Hope Services, and the Diversity Center. The Fair offered free refreshments and connections to programs
supporting housing, health, transportation, and aging services.

Chanticleer — Staff met with the architect, 10 Over Studio Inc. to review the initial schematic designs. The
architect is making further refinements to these drawings to add more detail on massing, impact to existing
vegetation, parking, and solar shading. Staff expect to schedule a meeting with the Development
Subcommittee in November to review these plans. 10 Over will incorporate the feedback from the
Development Subcommittee to present updated schematic plans at the December 10 Board meeting.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ



	1- agenda 11 HA
	Motion to Adopt Resolution 2025-09 to authorize the Executive Director to
	provide a $2,000,000 loan, which may be forgivable, to New Horizons to support the
	development of 136 River Street and enter into all documents necessary to effectuate
	the loan.

	8. 3A September 24  2025 Minutes Housing  Authority FINAL
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 4    Oral Communications

	3B Agency Goals Q1 Report
	3C1 PBV Staff Report for BOC - Q1
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY
	FROM: Executive Director
	RECOMMENDATION: Receive Report
	BACKGROUND SUMMARY:
	RECOMMENDATION: Receive Report

	3C2 PBV Matrix for BOC - Q1 July Aug Sept 2025
	6A1 MTW Amended Submission staff report
	6A2 2025-MTW-Amended-Annual-Submission-Includes-all-Attachments
	1. For Public Comment - 2025 MTW Amended Annual Submission
	0 - 2025 MTW Amendment to the Annual Submission
	1.h. Tenant Payment as Modified Percentage of Income - Hardship Policy 
	1.h. Tenant Payment as Modified Percentage of Income - Impact Analysis
	D. 1. Safe Harbor Waiver Request - iii. - Activity 1.h. - Tenant Pmt as Modified Pct of Income
	E.1.d ASW Impact Analysis - Place HCV families on PHA-Managed PBV Site-Based Waitlists
	E.1.d ASW Waiver Request - Place HCV families on PHA-Managed PBV Site-Based Waitlists

	2. 2023-2024-2025 Standard Waiver IAs and Hardships
	1.o. Impact Analysis - Tenant Rent Policies - Initial Rent Burden - 4.8.2025
	1.u. Hardship Policy 1.u. Standard Deduction - Medical Expenses Rev. 7.5  Clean
	1.u. Impact Analysis for 1.u. Standard Deduction - Medical Expenses - Rev. 7.5 Clean
	1.w. Safe Harbor  Waiver 1.w. Tenant Rent Policies
	2.b. Hardship Policy Activity 2.b. - Fair Market Rents - Final for Public Comment
	2.b. Impact Analysis - 2.b. -Fair Market Rents - Final for Public Comment

	3. 2023 5.1.b. Opt-Out Savings Account - HCV - Final
	4. 2023 HUD-Approved ASWS with Cover Page corrected
	4. 2023 HUD-Approved ASWS with Cover Page.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	E. ASW2 - Impact Analysis - Agency Waiver - Use of TIC for PBV Eligibility - Final for Public Comment

	Binder2.pdf
	E. ASW1 - Agency Specific Waiver 24 CFR 982.455 Extend Zero HAP to 360 Days
	E. ASW1 Impact Analysis - Agency Waiver - Zero HAP Extended to 360 Days - Final

	Blank Page

	E. Agency Specific Waiver Allow Use of TIC for PBV Eligibility Rev. 9.14.2023 - Final Clean.pdf

	5. 2025 HUD-Approved ASWs with Cover Page
	E.1.c. ASW Alternative Subsidy Standards for PBV
	E.1.c. Impact Analysis - Alternative Subsidy Standards for PBV
	Blank Page

	6. HUD Approval Pending - 2025 ASWs with Cover Page
	E.1.a ASW - IE Requirements for PBV - Revised Narrative  06.17.2025
	E.1.a Impact Analysis - IE Requirements for PBV - rev. 06.17.2025
	E.1.b ASW Alternative Development Cost Limits - rev. 06.18.2025
	E.1.b Impact Analysis - Alternative Development Cost Limits - rev. 06.18.2025
	Blank Page


	6B1 Housing Authority 136 River Loan Staff Report.tg
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY
	FROM: Development Director
	RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution 2025-09  to authorize the Executive Director to provide a $2,000,000 loan, which may be forgivable, to New Horizons to support the development of 136 River Street and enter into all documents necessary to effectuate th...
	BACKGROUND SUMMARY:
	RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution 2025-09 to authorize the Executive Director to provide a $2,000,000 loan, which may be forgivable, to New Horizons to support the development of 136 River Street and enter into all documents necessary to effectuate the...

	6B2 Housing Authority 136 River Loan Resolution.tg
	8 Director's Reports



